Public Document Pack

sir ddinbych '1
4

County Council

To: Chair and Members of the Planning  Date: 4 September 2014
Committee

Direct Dial: 01824 712568

e-mail: dcc_admin@denbighshire.gov.uk

Dear Councillor

You are invited to attend a meeting of the PLANNING COMMITTEE to be held at 9.30
am on WEDNESDAY, 10 SEPTEMBER 2014 in COUNCIL CHAMBER, COUNTY
HALL, RUTHIN LL15 1YN.

Yours sincerely

G Williams
Head of Legal and Democratic Services

AGENDA

1 APOLOGIES

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members to declare any personal or prejudicial interests in any business
identified to be considered at this meeting.

3 URGENT MATTERS AS AGREED BY THE CHAIR

Notice of items which, in the opinion of the Chair, should be considered at the
meeting as a matter of urgency pursuant to Section 100B(4) of the Local
Government Act, 1972.

4 MINUTES (Pages 9 -42)

To confirm the accuracy of the minutes of the Planning Committee meeting
held on the 30 July 2014 (copy attached).



5 APPLICATIONS FOR PERMISSION FOR DEVELOPMENT (Pages 43 -

186)

To consider applications for permission for development (copies attached).

6 FORMER COACH PARK GRAIGFECHAN (Pages 187 - 206)

To consider report by the Head of Planning and Public Protection to request

reconsideration of application reference 45/2013/1545/PO

MEMBERSHIP
Councillors

Councillor Raymond Bartley (Chair)

lan Armstrong

Joan Butterfield
Jeanette Chamberlain-Jones
Bill Cowie

Ann Davies

Meirick Davies
Richard Davies
Stuart Davies

Peter Evans

Huw Hilditch-Roberts
Colin Hughes

Rhys Hughes

Alice Jones

Pat Jones

COPIES TO:

All Councillors for information
Press and Libraries
Town and Community Councils

Councillor Win Mullen-James (Vice-
Chair)

Margaret McCarroll
Bob Murray

Peter Owen

Dewi Owens
Merfyn Parry

Paul Penlington
Arwel Roberts
David Simmons
Bill Tasker

Julian Thompson-Hill
Joe Welch

Cefyn Williams
Cheryl Williams
Huw Williams



Agenda ltem 1

WELCOME TO DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL'S
PLANNING COMMITTEE

HOW THE MEETING WILL BE CONDUCTED

Unless the Chair of the Committee advises to the contrary, the order in which the main items will be taken will follow the
agenda set out at the front of this report.

General introduction
The Chair will open the meeting at 9.30am and welcome everyone to the Planning Committee.
The Chair will ask if there are any apologies for absence and declarations of interest.

The Chair will invite Officers to make a brief introduction to matters relevant to the meeting.

Officers will outline as appropriate items which will be subject to public speaking, requests for deferral, withdrawals,
special reports, and any Part 2 items where the press and public may be excluded. Reference will be made to additional
information circulated in the Council Chamber prior to the start of the meeting, including the late
representations/amendments summary sheets (‘Blue Sheets’) and any supplementary or revised plans relating to items
for consideration.

The Blue Sheets'contain important information, including a summary of material received in relation to items on the
agenda between the completion of the main reports and the day before the meeting. The sheets also set out the
proposed running order on planning applications, to take account of public speaking requests.

In relation to the running order of items, any Members seeking to bring forward consideration of an item will be expected
to make such a request immediately following the Officer's introduction. Any such request must be made as a formal
proposal and will be subject to a vote.

The Planning Committee consists of 30 elected Members. In accordance with protocol, 15 Members must be present at
the start of a debate on an item to constitute quorum and to allow a vote to be taken.

County Council Members who are not elected onto Planning Committee may attend the meeting and speak on an item,
but are not able to make a proposal to grant or refuse, or to vote.

CONSIDERING PLANNING APPLICATIONS

The sequence to be followed

The Chair will announce the item which is to be dealt with next. In relation to planning applications, reference will be
made to the application number, the location and basis of the proposal, the relevant local Members for the area, and the
Officer recommendation.

If any Member is minded to propose deferral of an item, including to allow for the site to be visited by a Site Inspection
Panel, the request should be made, with the planning reason for deferral, before any public speaking or debate on that
item.

If there are public speakers on an item, the Chair will invite them to address the Committee. Where there are speakers
against and for a proposal, the speaker against will be asked to go first. The Chair will remind speakers they have a
maximum of 3 minutes to address the Committee. Public speaking is subject to a separate protocol.

Where relevant, the Chair will offer the opportunity for Members to read any late information on an item on the 'Blue
Sheets' before proceeding.

Page 3



Prior to any debate, the Chair mayinvite Officers to provide a brief introduction to an item where this is considered to be
worthwhile in view of the nature of the application.

There are display screens in the Council Chamber which are used to show photographs, or plans submitted with
applications. The photographs are taken by Officers to give Members a general impression of a site and its surroundings,
and are not intended to present a case for or against a proposal.

The Chair will announce that the item is open for debate and offer Members opportunity to speak and to make
propositions on the item.

If any application has been subject to a Site Inspection Panel prior to the Committee, the Chair will normally invite those
Members who attended, including the Local Member, to speak first.

On all other applications, the Chair will permit the Local Member(s) to speak first, should he/she/theywish to do so.

Members are normallylimited to a maximum of five minutes speaking time, and the Chair will conduct the debate in
accordance with Standing Orders.

Once a Member has spoken, he/she should not speak again unless seeking clarification of points arising in debate, and
then only once all other Members have had the opportunity to speak, and wih the agreement of the Chair.

At the conclusion of Members debate, the Chair will ask Officers to respond as appropriate to questions and points
raised, including advice on any resolution in conflict with the recommendation.

Prior to proceeding to the vote, the Chair will invite or seek clarification of propositions and seconders for propositions for
or against the Officer recommendation, or any other resolutions including amendments to propositions . Where a
proposition is made contrary to the Officer recommendation, the Chair will seek clarification of the planning reason (s) for
that proposition, in order that this may be recorded in the Minutes of the meeting. The Chair may request comment from

the Legal and Planning Officer on the validity of the stated reason(s).

The Chair will announce when the debate is closed, and that voting is to follow.

The voting procedure

Before requesting Members to vote, the Chair willannounce what resolutions have been made, and how the vote is to
proceed. If necessary, further clarification may be sought of amendments, new or additional conditions and reasons for
refusal, so there is no ambiguity over what the Committee is voting for or against.

If any Member requests a Recorded Vote, this must be dealt with first in accordance with Standing Orders. The Chair
and Officers will clarify the procedure to be followed. The names of each voting Member will be called out and each
Member will announce whether their vote is to grant, to refuse, or to abstain. Officers will announce the outcome of the
vote on the item.

If a vote is to proceed in the normal manner via the electronic voting system, the Chair will ask Officers to set up the
voting screen(s) in the Chamber, and when requested, Members mustrecord their votes by pressing the appropriate
button (see following sheet).

Members have 10 seconds to record their votes once the voting screen is displayed, unless advised otherwise by
Officers.

On failure of the electronic voting system, the vote may be conducted by a show of hands. The Chair and Officers will
clarify the procedure to be followed.

On conclusion of the vote, the Chair will announce the decision on the item.
Where the formal resolution of the Committee is contrary to Officer recommendation, the Chair will requestMembers to
agree the process through which planning conditions or reasons for refusal are to be drafted, in order to release the

Decision Certificate (e.g. delegating authority to the Planning Officer, to the Planning Officer in liaison with Local
Members, or by referral back to Planning Committee for ratification).

Page 4



PLANNING COMMITTEE

VOTING PROCEDURE

Members are reminded of the procedure when casting their vote.
The Chair or Officers will clarify the procedure to be followed as
necessary.

Once the display screens in the Chamber have been cleared in

preparation for the vote and the voting screen appears, Councillors
have 10 seconds to record their vote as follows:

On the voting keyboard press the

+ To GRANT Planning Permission
- To REFUSE Planning Permission
0) to ABSTAIN from voting

Or in the case of Enforcement items:

+ To AUTHORISE Enforcement Action
- To REFUSE TO AUTHORISE Enforcement Action
0 to ABSTAIN from voting

Page 7




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 4

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Minutes of the meeting of the Planning Committee held in the Council
Chamber, County Hall, Ruthin on Wednesday 30" July 2014 2014 at 9.30am.

PRESENT

Councillors J.R. Bartley (Chair), | W Armstrong, J Chamberlain-Jones, W L
Cowie, J A Davies, M LI Davies, R J Davies, R L Feeley (observer), M Holland
(observer), C. Hughes, H Hilditch-Roberts, T.R. Hughes, E A Jones, M.
McCarroll, W M Mullen-James, R M Murray, P W Owen, D Owens, T M Parry,
P Penlington, A Roberts, D Simmons, B A Smith, W H Tasker, J Thompson-
Hill, C H Williams, C L Williams and H O Williams

ALSO PRESENT

Head of Planning and Public Protection (Graham Boase), Head of Legal
(Gary Williams), Development Management and Compliance Manager (Paul
Mead), Principal Planning Officer (lan Weaver), Senior Highways Engineer
(Mike Parker), Planning Officer (Denise Shaw), Development Planning and
Policy Manager (Angela Loftus), Environmental Health Officer (Sean Awbery),
Senior Support Officer (Judith Williams), Democratic Services Manager
(Steve Price) and Translator (Sandra Williams).

1 APOLOGIES

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors J A Butterfield,
S A Davies, P M Jones, J S Welch,

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor Paul Penlington declared an interest in Items 2 & 8 of the
Applications for Permission for Development.

Councillor Alice Jones declared an interest in Item 6 of the Agenda.
Councillor Colin Hughes declared an interest in Iltems 11 & 12 of the
Applications for Permission for Development.

3 URGENT ITEMS: There were no urgent items

4 MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 14" May 2014.

Agreed as a true record with an amendment to record :

a) Apologies section should read ClIr Ann Davies, not Clir Ann Jones

b) The first item speaker was Martin Bill not Bill Martin

c) That the minutes did not show what the changes were to the
Protocol for Site Visits. Graham Boase agreed that the revised
protocol would be sent out to Members after the meeting.

d) There were various items where the voting figures were not
recorded

Page 9



5 APPLICATIONS FOR PERMISSION FOR DEVELOPMENT

Report by the Head of Planning and Public Protection (previously
circulated) relating to applications submitted and requiring
determination by the Committee were considered.

It was RESOLVED that:-
(@) the recommendations of Officers, as contained within the reports
submitted, be confirmed and planning consents or refusals as the case

may be, be issued as appropriate under the relevant legislation in
relation to:-

Page 10



ltem: 1 Page: 21
Application No: 09/2014/0547/PF
Location: Ty’r Aer Bach, Llandyrnog, Denbigh

Description: Erection of timber barn for storage purposes and
creation of concrete hard-standing

General debate:

Clir Mervyn Parry stated that he would go with officer's recommendation on
this application. He wanted a condition relating to the materials due to the
impact on the Clwydian Range. Also, he felt that if the building was to be
used for animals then he would like to see some control over effluent. Clir
Parry proposed the application and Clir Huw Hildtich Roberts seconded the
proposal.

lan Weaver explained that the applicants were proposing a timber cladding
which would be acceptable to the Clwydian Range AONB and also confirmed
that the description of the application was for ‘storage’ purposes only,
therefore if it was used for housing animals, this would be in breach of the
permission. He stated if justified, that a condition could be used to restrict the
use.

Clir Mervyn Parry sought clarification that the shed was for storage only and
lan Weaver confirmed that this was the stated use.

Proposals:

Clir Mervyn Parry proposed that the application be GRANTED subiject to the
conditions in the Officers report and also with an additional condition relating
to the prevention of use of the building for livestock. This was seconded by

Clir Huw Hilditch Roberts.

VOTE:

GRANT - 25
ABSTAIN -0
REFUSE -0

PERMISSION WAS THEREFORE GRANTED WITH AN ADDITIONAL

CONDITION PRECLUDING TO THE USE OF THE BUILDING FOR
LIVESTOCK

Page 11



Item: 2 Page: 29

Application No: 21/2014/360/PF
Location: Bryn Ffynnon Sawmills, Llanferres

Description: Change of use of part of existing agricultural
building and rear yard area to sawmill business
use, erection of a dry wood storage building and
retention of staff car parking (partly retrospective)

The following additional information was reported to Committee in the Late
sheets:

LATE REPRESENTATIONS
Consultees:

Clwydian Range and Dee Valley AONB Joint Advisory Committee
(Comments on amended details)

“The JAC notes that the amended description and plans now include the
retention of existing staff parking outside the original site boundary. The
Committee is disappointed and concerned that this element of the
proposals is also retrospective.

At a recent meeting of the JAC, concerns were expressed by some
members about the increasing scale of operations at the site and the
need for particular care to ensure that the business does not exceed the
capacity of the site given the environmental limits set by its location within
the AONB. In this context, the JAC has serious concerns about extending
the operational area to include this external parking and associated
turning area and would prefer all operations to be contained within the
existing site. In addition, the proposed landscaping of the parking area
incorporating a close boarded timber fence and Leylandi tree planting is
not sympathetic to the rural setting. The JAC would also suggest that
additional tree and hedgerow planting comprising native local species on
adjoining land in the applicant's ownership would help screen and
assimilate the complex into the surrounding landscape.” (AONB
Management Plan Policies: PCP1, PCP2 and PCP4)”

Public Speakers:

Mr Mark Wilding (neighbour) — Against

Mr Wilding stated that both applications being heard for this site today were
retrospective and that they were both outside of the original agricultural site.
He felt that neighbour amenity was being eroded due to conditions imposed
earlier being breached. The noise, dust and disturbance were now dominating
their enjoyment of their own dwelling and that the impact was now a long way
from the type of disturbance experienced when the site was a small family
farm. Letters of objection had been lodged from all three of the closest
neighbours. The fact that the site was within an AONB should require
applications to enhance the natural beauty of the area. The application would
not create enough economic benefit to outweigh the harm so Mr Wilding felt
that the application should be refp@ge 12



Mr Mathew Davies (applicant) - For

Mr Davies explained that the proposals were a diversification project and the
application before the Committee formed part of a waste management
strategy for the business. The application was made up of two parts, the first
part being a replacement shed for one that had collapsed previously due to
heavy snow, the second being a car park area for staff. Mr Davies explained
that the new building would be for storage purposes and would also help to
act as an acoustic barrier between the application site and the neighbours.
He also explained that the new car park would be screened with new fencing
and also some planting with species agreed by the AONB Joint Advisory
Committee.

General Debate:

Clir Martyn Holland (Local Member) stated that this was a difficult application
for him as he understood the view of both parties. However, he did feel that it
would be a logical move to use the waste from the sawmill to generate
energy. ClIr Holland said that he was aware of issues of noise that have been
raised in the past and felt that the erection of the new shed would help to
alleviate some of these problems. However, Clir Holland did feel that if any
activity was to be carried out in the shed, the doors should be kept closed in
order to reduce any disturbance. ClIr Holland’s only real concern was the
addition of a new staff car park. He felt that it was located very close to the
neighbouring property and that it was likely to have an impact on the
residents. It was suggested that the conditions should be kept tight in order to
control the use of the car park and prevent it being used for any other purpose
than for staff.

Clir Huw Williams supported the Officer recommendation as he felt that the
applicants have tried to work with the community and their neighbours. He
pointed out that the applicants provided 12 jobs in the AONB and that these
were welcome. ClIr Williams proposed the officer recommendation and ClIr
Huw Hilditch Roberts seconded the proposal.

Clir Mervyn Parry also supported the application and felt that the appearance
of the site would be improved with the addition of the new shed as the new
drive had already been a big improvement. He felt that the new car parking
would be a good addition and that it would not be a problem.

lan Weaver (Principal Planning Officer) explained that the new car parking
area would be some 37 metres from the neighbouring dwelling and that the
addition of the new fence and extra planting would mitigate the visual impact.
He accepted that this was not an ideal solution but felt that given the
circumstances, the proposals did not justify a refusal recommendation. He
agreed that tighter controls on the car park would be a reasonable addition to
the conditions.

Sean Awbery (Pollution Control) confirmed that he had monitored the
premises and that it was working within recommended noise levels and
provided that conditions imposed previously at the site were carried forward
he did not see a problem.

Page 13



Clir Huw Hilditch Roberts felt that the site looked better recently. He asked if
there had been any smoke or odour problems experienced, or any breaches.
Clir Roberts supported ClIr Williams and applauded the applicants for their
success. He felt that the conditions already in the report were fair and
reminded the Committee that Denbighshire was “open for business”.

Clir Meirick Lloyd Davies asked if it could be agreed that the car park be used
for cars only. He also wanted to know if there could be more done to alleviate
noise at the site, and whether the applicants could look at using the kind of
materials that helped to reduce the noise impact. He pointed out that the
AONB JAC had raised a number of points which were reported on the late
representations sheet and wanted to know whether these could be taken into
account in creating stronger conditions.

lan Weaver confirmed that there had been no recorded breaches in relation to
noise and no action had been taken in relation to this issue. He did feel that a
reasonable condition could be imposed on the restriction of the car park but it

would require someone to propose this. He accepted that the AONB JAC had
expressed concerns about the planting but this could be controlled at approval
of condition stage.

Graham Boase felt that the discussion on impact with regard to noise, odour
etc. was something that would have been more significant had this been a
new use being proposed. However, the principle of the use had long been
accepted in that this was an established business and the shed being
proposed was for storage purposes. He pointed out that the Council’s
Pollution Control Officer had not found any breaches within the current
operation. Mr Boase felt that Condition 6 could be amended to prevent the
use of the car park by any HGVSs.

Clir Martyn Holland did not want to see excessive use of conditions but did not
want to see HGVs using the car park overnight adjacent to a neighbouring

property.

Proposals:

Clir Huw Williams proposed that permission should be GRANTED subject to
Condition 6 being amended to exclude the use of the car park for HGVs. This
was seconded by Clir Huw Hilditch Roberts

VOTE:

On being put to the vote:
Grant - 22

Abstain - 0

Refuse -0

PERMISSION WAS THEREFORE GRANTED

Page 14



Item: 3 Page: 37
Application No: 21/2014/0427/PF
Location:  Bryn Ffynnon Sawmills, Llanferres, Mold

Description: () Installation of 2 no. biomass boilers to serve
existing sawmill business and dwelling (ii)
Erection of dry wood storage building

Public Speakers:

Mr Peter Jelley (Neighbour) — Against

Mr Jelley pointed out that he was speaking on behalf of his family and also
two other neighbours living close to the sawmill. Mr Jelley explained that a
biomass boiler had already been installed at the site approximately 9 months
ago without permission along with other structures and equipment. He
suggested the boilers had emitted smoke 24 hours a day, 7 days a week.
The neighbours have suffered dust, smoke and odour pollution ever since as
the applicants were not using the correct fuel. This has meant that at times
his family have not been able to use their garden. He felt that this type of
business should be operated on a business park, not in a Country park and
that this application poses a serious health risk to the adjoining neighbours.
Therefore he strongly recommended that the Members refuse this application.

Mr Mathew Davies (Applicant) — For

Mr Davies explained that the sawmill produces waste wood and having taken
guidance from Welsh Government and DCC it had been decided to implement
a waste management strategy and reduce their carbon footprint. In 2013 the
sawmill had 2 boilers installed by a reputable company. Introducing these
boilers has meant that the applicants have not used any oil for heating since
that time. The application in front of the Members today was to seek
permission to move the boilers due to the smoke issues experienced by the
neighbours. The installations have been passed by both the installers and the
pollution department of DCC. Only dry, virgin wood is used in the boilers as
all other waste material is taken off site. The boilers will be screened by trees
of a species recommended by the AONB Joint Advisory Committee.

General Debate:

lan Weaver clarified what was involved in this application by explaining that
the application was not for new boilers, but simply to move them to another
location further away from the neighbouring properties. He pointed out the
plan that showed the location of the boiler and the dry wood store.

Clir Holland (Local Member) stated that he was no expert on biomass boilers
but in principle, they sounded like a sensible option. He explained that there
had been complaints from the neighbours and acknowledged the fact that due
to the recent weather, the issues had more impact due to people being
outdoors. The boiler company had advised the applicant that planning
permission was not required. He wondered whether the Council ought to be
writing to a national body to explain to them that planning permission is
indeed required.

Page 15



Clir Huw Williams proposed that the application be granted. This was
seconded by Clir Rhys Hughes.

Clir Mervyn Parry had visited the site and advised that he knows little about
biomass boilers. However, he noticed that they are not noisy but tick away
constantly. Sometimes mistakes can be made when learning how to use
these boilers. He felt that as they were moving the boilers closer to the
applicant’s house, if there was any problem with them, the issues would be
more for the applicant rather than the neighbours.

lan Weaver explained that the boilers were used to heat water and if operated
properly they should not create problems. However, there was no guarantee

that smoke would not be generated but the question is whether this is enough
to cause a problem. A lot of work had taken place to ensure that there would

be limited impact in the new location.

Sean Awbery (Pollution Control) explained that he had carried out monitoring
of this site and did support the application to move the boilers further away
from the neighbouring properties. He had not withessed any statutory
nuisance from the current boilers.

lan Weaver confirmed that the issue of companies giving the wrong advice is
something that happens and the Council can only ask that individuals seek
advice from the Planning section before they go ahead with potentially, costly
projects. However, this application had been put in to seek to regularise the
situation and we could only deal with the application that is before Committee.

Clir Penlington declared an interest as his wife’s uncle is the architect on this
item.

Cllr Huw Hilditch Roberts was confused. He heard the first speaker saying
how bad the smoke was, the Pollution Officer had explained that there was no
statutory nuisance and the applicant was seeking to move the boilers further
away from the current site. He pointed out that if Members were to refuse this
application the current unsatisfactory situation would stay the same.

Clir Meirick Lloyd Davies explained that the speaker had mentioned
photographs of smoke billowing out of the boilers from as far afield as Moel
Famau and wanted to know if the Officers had seen these photographs.

lan Weaver explained that he understood why the objectors were objecting
but felt that it was better to grant the boilers and exercise control rather than
refuse and be left with the situation that is currently causing a problem.

Sean Awbery acknowledged that the boilers would smoke on occasion but as
long as they did not cause a statutory nuisance he would be happy to support
them.

Graham Boase explained that these boilers were commercially available

products and if installed and used properly they should not cause a problem
and felt that this application is an improvement on the current situation.

Page 16



Clir Martyn Holland was happy to support the application as it made sense to
use the waste materials. He was also happy that there would still be a
mechanism in place if a statutory nuisance arose in the future.

Proposals:
Cllr Huw Williams proposed that the application be granted in accordance with
the Officer recommendation. This was seconded by Clir Rhys Hughes.

VOTE:

GRANT 24
ABSTAIN 1
REFUSE 0

The application was therefore GRANTED subject to the conditions in the
Officers report.

Page 17



Item: 4 Page: 49
Application No: 23/2014/0375/PO

Location: Land adjacent to LIys Gwilym, Llanrhaeadr, Denbigh

Description: Development of 0.53 ha of land by the erection of 15 no.
dwellings and construction of a new vehicular access
(outline application including access and layout)

General Debate:

Clir Richard Davies passed on the comments of Cllr Joe Welch in his
absence. He was in full support of the Community Council and moved that
the application be granted with the conditions in the officers report

Clir Rhys Hughes proposed the recommendation and Cllir Mervyn Parry
seconded the proposal

Clir Meirick Lloyd Davies questioned the statement that the development “may
slightly add to the number of non-welsh speakers in the development but this
will not be a significant increase”. He wanted to know numbers and how they
came to this conclusion.

Clir Colin Hughes asked how the affordable housing element would be
calculated on a proposal such as this.

Clir Bill Cowie asked if the Highway Officers anticipated any problems in
implementing the new speed restrictions that were mentioned in the officer’s
report.

Graham Boase emphasised that there is a very clear adopted Supplementary
Planning Guidance on affordable housing and recommended that Members
read this thoroughly before dealing with issues on affordable housing as the
issue of percentages is clearly explained within the guidance.

lan Weaver explained that when there are 10 or more dwellings then clearly 1
unit can be provided. However, when there is a .5 on top of that, there would
be a commuted sum payment for that proportion. The Highways section is
happy that the speed sign could be moved if the application was granted. In
answer to ClIr Meirick Lloyd Davies’ question regarding the welsh language,
lan explained that what he had quoted was part of the applicants submission
and he had not seen any documents that laid down figures on what
percentage of change made an application acceptable or unacceptable in
terms of impact on the local language and culture. The LDP has already gone
through a Welsh language assessment and this was one of the allocated sites
in the approved plan

Proposals:

Clir Rhys Hughes proposed that the application be GRANTED. ClIr Mervyn
Parry seconded the proposal.

VOTE: Page 18



GRANT - 23
ABSTAIN -1
REFUSE -1

Permission was therefore GRANTED subject to the conditions within the
Officers report.

Page 19



ltem: 5 Page: 63
Application No: 25/2014/0337/PFT
Location: Hafoty Ddu, Saron, Denbigh

Description: Erection of a single 850kw horizontal axis wind turbine
55m ub height with three 26m blades, associated access
track and substation building

Public Speaker:

Mr Richard Welch (Against)

Officers had expressed initial concern over cumulative visual and noise
impact. He explained that in 2008 the Committee had refused an application
for the Gorsedd Bran windfarm and this had gone through a number of appeal
judgements including conclusions that enough was enough for residents.
Although the appeals related to a much bigger proposal, Mr Welch pointed out
that there is also another approved site for 16 more turbines at Brenig.

Although the current application was originally justified as ‘farm
diversification’, Mr Welch pointed out that the Officer had disagreed with this
and felt that it should be considered to be a commercial venture.

Mr Welch also pointed out that all the representations received against the
application were from local people and most of those in support were from out
of the area. The Community Council objected to the proposal.

He wanted to know what has changed since the Council’s landscape advisor
described the area as highly sensitive and felt that granting this application
may set a precedent and that more turbines may appear along the ridge line.

Mr Welch felt that the commercial venture did not outweigh the impact on the
local residents and urged the Committee to refuse the application.

Mr Rheinallt Williams (For)

Mr Williams felt that the views expressed by the Community Councils within
their objection did not reflect the views of the majority of the community. He
felt that had the objectors read the Environmental Statement that was
submitted as part of the application, they would have realised that their
concerns had been addressed within it.

Mr Williams felt that the decline of the Welsh Language is due to the lack of
opportunities for local people and felt that applications such as this would
safeguard local employment.

Mr Williams explained that the Officer had given a fair and balanced view of

the proposal and pointed out that the project will generate sufficient energy to
meet the demands of over 300 homes within the local area.

General Debate: Page 20



Clir Huw Williams supported the officer's recommendation and therefore
proposed that the application be granted. This was seconded by ClIr Richard
Davies.

Clir Meirick Lloyd Davies explained that he was aware of the Tir Mostyn
windfarm and asked for clarification on the whereabouts of the new turbine.

Clir Mervyn Parry supported the application and pointed out that wind turbine
applications always raise delicate issues. He felt that Officers had done in
depth work on the application therefore he felt comfortable in supporting the
Officer's recommendation.

CliIr Colin Hughes stated that he had supported agricultural diversification
projects in the past but would like to know what Government targets are for
producing energy through wind.

Denise Shaw (Planning Officer) indicated on the presentation where the wind
turbine was to be sited. In terms of wind turbine targets these were set out in
UK and Welsh Government policy and are expressed in Gigawatt hours.

Clir Dewi Owen asked if a S106 was linked to this proposal.

Denise Shaw explained that it was not a material planning consideration to

secure community benefit via a S106 although sometimes these are offered
as part of an application on bigger wind turbine applications.

Proposals:

Clir Huw Williams proposed that the application be GRANTED subject to the
conditions in the Officers report. This was seconded by ClIr Richard Davies

VOTE:

GRANT - 19
ABSTAIN -0
REFUSE - 6

PERMISSION WAS THEREFORE GRANTED

Page 21



Item: 6 Page: 87
Application No: 43/2014/262/PF
Location: Prestatyn High School, 2 Princes Avenue, Prestatyn

Description: Erection of a lean-to canopy extension and decking/stage
area with timber seating to existing grass bank to form
outdoor performance area/auditorium and 2m high mesh
fencing to enclose boundary

The following additional Information was reported in the late sheets.
LATE REPRESENTATIONS

Private individuals
From:
Mrs Merriel Jones, 88 Meliden Road, Prestatyn, Denbighshire

- Summary of representations
Following a site meeting, having received reassurances that
Environmental Health will be monitoring noise levels, wish to withdraw
objection

Phil Pierce, Head Teacher, Prestatyn High School

- Summary of representations :
Proposal will support the school’s delivery of creative arts subjects as
well as adding much needed capacity for meeting space for activities
such as assemblies. Accept the inclusion of planning restrictions to
minimise impact on neighbours.

General debate:

Clir Julian Thompson Hill said that the application was to regularise existing
activities which occur on a more informal basis. Putting it in a more formal
structure would help to alleviate problems that are currently experienced.
Obviously there would be a potential noise impact; however the conditions
sought to alleviate that. Cllr Julian Thompson Hill proposed the Officer
recommendation and Cllr Bob Murray seconded this.

Clir Meirick Lloyd Davies asked whether an acceptable level could be set for
noise as he felt that there would be a high dependency on Officers to be in
attendance to monitor the situation.

Clir Win Mullen James had concerns about the close proximity to neighbours
and noted that the new structure would also be used during the daytime as
extra classroom space as well as being used for evening functions. It was
considered that this could create extra noise nuisance all day long.

Page 22



Clir Penlington lived very close to this site and confirmed that the only time
that this does cause a problem is during sports day and that area is usually
used by pupils all day currently so felt that this proposal would not make
matters worse but will formalise what is already on site.

Paul Mead (Development Manager) confirmed that the area is currently used
and it is a Denbighshire County Council school. Imposing too many restrictive
conditions would not be necessary and the Council should strive to work with
neighbours to achieve a harmonious relationship.

Clir Meirick Lloyd Davies questioned where the Council could not enforce
conditions against the school. The Legal Officer, Gary Williams confirmed that
it would not be adopted procedure for a Council to take enforcement action
against itself but felt that there were sufficient controls that the public could
rely on should any problems be experienced.

Proposals:

Clir Julian Thompson Hill proposed the Officer recommendation to GRANT
and ClIr Bob Murray seconded this.

VOTE:

GRANT - 21
ABSTAIN -0
REFUSE - 3

PERMISSION WAS THEREFORE GRANTED

Page 23



ltem: 7 Page: 95
Application No: 43/2014/0609/PF
Location: 79 High Street, Prestatyn

Description: Change of use of 1% and 2" floors to provide 3 no. 1-
bed self-contained flats and external access staircase

Public Speaker:

Mr Goodwin (For)

The proposal seeks to bring back into use the floors above a retail unit on the
High Street. Policy BSC7 supports the subdivision of premises into self-
contained flats and this was particularly relevant in town centre areas.

Mr Goodwin explained that only one local resident objected to this proposal
due to what he felt was poor pedestrian access and this was adequately
addressed within the application.

It was pointed out that within the Officer’s report; there was a need for the
provision of open space and affordable housing. Mr Goodwin acknowledged
the need for open space but questioned the need for affordable housing as a
condition as the proposal was seeking to provide 3 apartments and would
already be affordable due to the fact that the flats would be below the
threshold for local income levels.

General debate:

Paul Mead introduced the item and acknowledged that there was a general
feeling amongst Members around the provision of flats within the County and
a little fear that flats mean problems with the kind of occupants that they
attract and difficulties that this may produce in some areas. However, in the
location that the flats were being proposed, he felt that as long as they met
the space standards within the SPG then they were acceptable. The
requirement for a mix of housing types meant that flats such as these were
acceptable. The vitality and viability of town centres required the upper floors
of retail units to be used and not left empty. Mr Mead explained that the
provision of affordable housing is required as part of the recommendation to
grant and unfortunately information relating to the subsequent value of the
proposed flats had not been included as part of the application therefore it
could not be considered whether or not these units would be kept affordable.
This could be dealt with at a later date when dealing with the relevant
approval of condition submission.

CllIr Julian Thompson Hill pointed out that the Town Council had objected to
this proposal and acknowledged that fact that the proposal had been reduced
in relation to the number of units to enable the proposal to meet the current
space standards. However, that was only one part of the objection. He felt
that the external staircase would also be a problem and that the application
failed to meet adequate amenity provision within a town centre location. If
Members were of a mind to grant, he would like to see an additional condition
on the materials relating to the covering of whatever is to be used on the
external staircase. He proposed that the application be refused and it was
seconded by Clir Bob Murray.

Page 24



Clir Meirick Lloyd Davies asked whether there had been an area set aside for
a drying area and bin store. He also asked if the external staircase that was
already there would have a roof put on it.

Clir Bob Murray agreed with the other Members that this could open the flood
gates for one bedroom flats within the County and could not support this
application.

Cllr Rhys Hughes noted that the Town Council had objected due to the lack of
car parking but wondered whether there are car parks around the area as
there are many places around the County that do not have car parking.

Paul Mead went through some of the points raised. He did not feel that there
would be a problem with the additional condition relating to the stair case and
pointed out that the staircase has been at the property for many years and
was originally a fire escape. Mr Mead felt that the external staircase would
not harm any residential amenity as the property backed onto a primarily
commercial area. He also explained that there was a large car park nearby
and also some off street car parking.

Clir Penlington pointed out that all the car parking in Prestatyn is pay and
display.

Graham Boase asked that Clir Julian Thompson Hill provided some clarity of
the basis of any reasons for refusal should the vote go with his proposal to
refuse.

ClIr Julian Thompson Hill said that the reason would have to be unacceptable
impact on amenity due to the external staircase.

Clir Rhys Hughes proposed to grant and Clir Huw Hilditch Roberts seconded
this.

Proposals:

ClIr Julian Thompson Hill proposed that the application be REFUSED on the
grounds that the external staircase did not provide adequate residential
amenity. This was seconded by Clir Bob Murray.

Clir Rhys Hughes proposed that the application be GRANTED subject to the
conditions in the Officers report and a couple of additional conditions around
the materials for the external staircase and the bin/drying area. This was
seconded by ClIr Huw Hilditch Roberts.

VOTE:
GRANT - 13
ABSTAIN -1
REFUSE - 11

PERMISSION WAS THEREFORE GRANTED WITH ADDITIONAL

CONDITIONS RELATING TO THE EXTERNAL STAIRCASE AND A
BIN/DRYING AREA

Page 25



Item: 8 Page: 105
Application No: 43/2014/0664/PF
Location: Bodnant Junior School, Nant Hall Road, Prestatyn

Description: Erection of extensions and remodelling of school,
construction of new vehicular access, parking, hard
play areas, landscaping and associated works

General debate:

CliIr Julian Thompson Hill felt that the issues with this application relate to
transport, parking and impact on surrounding residential areas. There was a
considerable amount of consultation in relation to this application and plenty
of modifications relating to this. He felt that this was the best application that
could be hoped for given the circumstances and therefore proposed to grant
the application. Clir Peter Owen seconded this.

Proposals:

Clir Julian Thompson Hill proposed the Officer recommendation to GRANT
and ClIr Peter Owen seconded this.

VOTE:

GRANT - 24
ABSTAIN -1
REFUSE -0

PERMISSION WAS THEREFORE GRANTED

Page 26



Item: 9 Page: 117
Application No: 45/2014/0037/PS

Location: Former Children’s Resource Centre, Ysgol Plas
Cefndy, South Meadow, Cefndy Road, Rhyl

Description: Variation of condition No. 1 of original

application/approval 45/2008/0601 to further extend
permitted use for a further 5 years

General debate:
There was no debate on this item.
Proposals:

Clir Jeanette Chamberlain Jones proposed the Officer recommendation to
GRANT and ClIr Cheryl Williams seconded this.

VOTE:

GRANT - 25
ABSTAIN -0
REFUSE -0

PERMISSION WAS THEREFORE GRANTED

Page 27



Item: 10 Page: 125
Application No: 45/2014/0042/PF
Location: Land at Cefndy Trading Estate, Ffordd Derwen, Rhyl

Description: Erection of 24 dwelling including 22 affordable dwellings,
access, parking, open space and landscaping

The following additional information was reported in the late sheets:

LATE REPRESENTATIONS
Consultees:

Rhyl Town Council

“Objection on the grounds of over intensification of social housing in
accordance with Policy BSC 4 of the adopted local Development Plan —
“....in the interests of creating and maintaining sustainable mixed
communities, proposals for 100% affordable housing sites will only be
considered on sited of 10 units or less.”

Dwr Cymru Welsh Water
No comments.

General debate:

Clir Margaret McCarroll welcomed this application it brought much needed
affordable housing and employment to the area. Clir McCarroll proposed the
Officer recommendation. ClIr Jeanette Chamberlain Jones seconded this.

Clir M LI Davies pointed out that this application meant the loss of
employment land and wondered why this was different to the application that
was rejected for similar reasons in Rhyl.

Clir Win Mullen James said that this land was in a flood zone and wanted
reassurance that this has been dealt with.

Clir Jeanette Chamberlain Jones stated that this proposal was for housing
that linked up to existing housing before reaching the industrial park, which
gave a natural progression rather than being part of the industrial park. The
current neighbours of the site welcomed this housing development rather than
having an industrial park next to them.

Paul Mead noted the comments of support from the Members. He confirmed
that this site was allocated for employment in the Unitary Development Plan
and that this had followed through to the Local Development Plan. However,
there had been a planning appeal on the initial larger site following a refusal
due to the ratio of housing to employment being unacceptable previously.
The appeal inspector felt that the economic viability of the site meant that
100% commercial use would not be acceptable, and a ratio closer to 50/50
residential/commercial would be more appropriate. Mr Mead now felt that the
right balance had been achieved. The biggest change in the proposal as
opposed to the previous refusal was that there were now 22 out of 24 units
being offered as affordable. Thispggjz@ @@ the policy of not being 100%



affordable. The flood risk issue had been addressed with a flood bund wall
and NRW are happy with this.

Clir Meirick Lloyd Davies asked whether the proposed ‘wall bund’ had been
suggested by NRW as previous bunds in the County had not been sufficient.

Mr Mead clarified that this proposal was for a ‘wall’ rather than a ‘bund’. It
was explained that raising the floor levels on this site would have been
unacceptable due to the surrounding dwellings being bungalows.

Proposals:

Clir McCarroll proposed that the application be GRATED as the Officer
recommendation. ClIr Jeanette Chamberlain Jones seconded this.

VOTE:
GRANT - 24
ABSTAIN -0
REFUSE - 1

PERMISSION WAS THEREFORE GRANTED

Page 29



ltem: 11 Page: 145

Application No: 46/2014/0436/PS

Location: Land at north side of Bryn Gobaith, Bryn Gobaith, St
Asaph
Description: Removal of condition no. 15 of outline planning

permission code no. 46/2013/0802 requiring a scheme
of improvements at the Mount Road/Bryn Gobaith
Junction and traffic calming on Mount Road and Bryn
Gobaith.

The following additional letters of representation were received:

LATE REPRESENTATIONS
Consultees:

Dwr Cymru Welsh Water
Repeat the need for inclusion of relevant conditions and advisory notes
(referred to in the Officer report).

General debate:
There was no debate on this item.

Proposals:
Clir Dewi Owen proposed that this application be deferred for a site visit and
this was seconded by Clir Meirick Lloyd Davies.

VOTE:

On a show of hands this item was deferred.
DEFER - 24

ABSTAIN -1

Page 30



ltem: 12 Page: 153
Application No: 46/2013/1222/PF
Location: Land at Bronwylfa Nurseries, Bryn Gobaith, St Asaph

Description: Erection of 15 no. detached dwellings and construction
of new vehicular accesses on 1.44 hectares of land

Insert late reps

General debate:
There was no debate on this item.

Proposal:
Clir Dewi Owen proposed that this application be deferred for a site visit due
to road safety issues and this was seconded by ClIr Meirick Lloyd Davies.

VOTE:

On a show of hands this item was deferred.
DEFER - 23

ABSTAIN -1

Page 31



ltem: 13 Page: 169
Application No: 47/2014/0577/PC

Location: Ty Capel, Waen, St Asaph

Description: Retention of conservatory extension

General debate:

Clir Barbara Smith explained that this was subject to an enforcement report
previously and whilst she did not like retrospective planning application, she
would prefer this than no applications at all.

Proposals:

Clir Arwel Roberts proposed that the application be GRANTED as per the
Officer recommendation. Clir Bill Cowie seconded this.

VOTE:
GRANT -24
ABSTAIN -0
REFUSE - 1

PERMISSION WAS THEREFORE GRANTED

Page 32



ltem: 14 Page: 177
Application No: 47/2014/0579PC
Location: Waen Chapel, Waen, St Asaph

Description: Retention of previously formed vehicular access and
alteration to form new disabled access and
turning/parking area

The following Information was reported to Committee in the late sheets:
LATE REPRESENTATIONS
In support, from:

Councillor Bobby Feeley (as Older Peoples Champion and Lead Member
for Social Care)

Emphasises the value of the voluntary service provided at the property and
supports moves to achieve a compromise in relation to the access and
parking situation.

General debate:

Clir Barbara Smith again explained that the developments had been the
subject of enforcement. However, she suggested that the applicants had
made considerable effort in terms of the details to make this a much safer
proposal.

Mike Parker explained that this had been a difficult situation, particularly given
that this was a retrospective application. The access arrangements
previously created were dangerous but he believed that the best option had
now been agreed upon in the current application.

Clir M Lloyd Davies thanked the Officers for all their hard work in this case as
it had been a difficult one.

Proposals:

Clir Arwel Roberts proposed that the application be GRANTED as per the
Officer recommendation. Clir M Lloyd Davies seconded this.

VOTE:

GRANT -22
ABSTAIN - 1
REFUSE - 2

PERMISSION WAS THEREFORE GRANTED

Page 33



AGENDA ITEM NO. 6

REPORT BY THE HEAD OF PLANNING AND PUBLIC PROTECTION
BODELWYDDAN DEVELOPMENT BRIEF

Clir Alice Jones, the Local Member declared an interest in this item due to
owning property nearby and being a Member of the Bodelwyddan Action
Group. ClIr Jones had completed a Declaration of Interest form and had been
advised previous to the meeting by the Legal Officer that her interest was
non-prejudicial.

A late letter of representation had been received from Bodelwyddan Action
Group and circulated at the meeting.

Angela Loftus introduced the item and explained that the Development Brief
has been produced to add detail to back up the LDP Policy BSC5. This report
was written following a full consultation on the draft version. The current
report shows the changes that had been made following the consultation. An
outline planning application has been received for the site but that has no
bearing in this report.

If the Brief was approved, it would be a material planning consideration.

Angela then outlined what information the various papers contained for the
benefit of the Members.

There was early community involvement which was facilitated by, “Planning
for Real” which helped to inform work on the draft Brief. The Brief was then
reported to the LDP Steering Group before being reported to Planning
Committee for authority to go out to consultation. Planning Committee agreed
for the brief to go out to 2 month consultation which finished on 6™ May. 107
responses were received.

Main issues related to:

e traffic impact, including construction traffic

e a spine road through the development

¢ impacts on conservation area and Marble Church

¢ requirements for landscape buffers around the edge and the back of
Marble Church Grove

¢ flood risk and drainage

¢ location of school

¢ need for employment

Main changes proposed:

o Clarification of site access (no access from front of Marble Church, no
construction traffic through the village or the road in front of Marble
Church

Added reference for spine road from J26 and Sarn Lane
Maximise benefit for biodiversity

Reference to AONB

Amendments to masterpla}ﬁé(biacélgre landscape buffers



Clarifying the line of the spine road as being indicative

Plan also shows an extension to St Margaret’s Church yard
Additional design guidance to protect St Margaret’s Church
Greater emphasis on footways and cycle routes

Additional reference to lifetime homes

ClIr Alice Jones explained that the biggest concern that the Community had
was the position of the spine road. Cllr Jones pointed out two plans, one that
was part of the Committee papers and one referred to as the BE plan that
showed a different line. (the BE plan had been circulated to Members as part
of the late papers in the blue sheet).

Clir Jones said the Elwy Member Area Group members had been informed by
the developers that they did not intend to develop a substantial link road. This
was a disappointment as the Group understood this to be a key element of
the key strategic site and they were told that the proposal was now to be a
meandering street. It was felt that this would now split the key strategic site
into two halves. This is not what was envisaged. The Group had never been
consulted on the current plan. The LDP Steering Group had chosen the
original plan showing the road around the site as the preferred option.

Clir Jones stated that Bodelwyddan town would not be a joined up town with a
connected community if it were to have a road splitting it down the middle.

Clir Jones also said the Inspector had explored the viability issue during the
examination of the LDP and requested a full statement of Barwoods financial
position for the key strategic site. This statement showed that the developers
had £30 million set aside for this site and it was this strong financial position
that deemed the LDP a sound plan by the Inspector. It was this that made
Clir Jones feel that viability could not therefore be used as an issue at this
stage.

Angela Loftus clarified the fact that the plan circulated was taken from the BE
Group/Faber Maunsell — Bodelwyddan MMDA Report produced in 2007. The
plan was produced at the time as the Council was looking at a number of
different options for the LDP. The Council was looking at various other areas
with a view to allocating a key strategic site. The plan circulated was part of
an option that was suggested which would also have enabled another parcel
of land to the west of the Bodelwyddan to be opened up to development,
including a HGV lorry park, a conference centre etc. The plan was an historic
background document and was not taken forward as part of the LDP
examination although it did form part of the “library” of background
information. The Council’s pre-deposit consultation in 2008 showed the
potential site for development with a link road through the development, not
around the boundary of the site. This went out for public consultation. The
BE Group report plan was not part of this consultation but was part of the
examination library of documents. All documents that had formed
background evidence to inform development of the LDP and consideration of
the site had to be submitted along with the documents that considered Rhyl
and St Asaph as potential key strategic sites.

The road had been shown through the development, not around the boundary
of the site throughout the consultatBage&EDP Members Working group



looked at various options in 2009 and this showed the road going through the
site and not around it. A draft Development Brief was submitted to the LDP
Inspector as part of the Examination library. This had been considered by the
LDP Members Working Group and it included a masterplan with a line
indicating a road through the site, not around it.

The draft Development Brief which had just been out for consultation also
showed an indicative road going through the site, not around it and this had
been agreed for consultation by both the LDP Steering Group and Planning
Committee. However, it was felt that from the responses received, further
clarity was needed in the Brief to indicate a clear link through the site.. There
was also a motion that was agreed in the public meeting arranged by the
Bodelwyddan Development Action Group regarding the site stating that there
was a requirement for a properly constructed link road from the St Asaph
business park roundabout through the site to Sarn Lane and this had been
reflected by the majority of the comments from the public. No comments were
received to say that the public wanted a bypass around the site or a boundary
road. If a road was built around the site, then it would still require a road to be
built through the site in order to access it. There will be employment and
residential development on the site and by having a road through the middle,
this would provide access for both. A more commercially viable bus route
would be created with the road also. There would also be an opportunity to
provide a vehicle free, safe pedestrian/cycle route around the site but this
would be more difficult if there was a bypass around the site.

The exact line of the road is something that would be debated as part of a
detailed planning application but at the Development Brief stage, it is simply
indicative, and we simply need to say a road will be provided between
Junction 26 and Sarn Lane.

Mike Parker (Highways) explained that the spine road would permeate the
development and provide good access from the A55 and Sarn Lane. Mr
Parker also stated that a pedestrian/cycle path would be more suitable around
the outside of the site.

Clir M Lloyd Davies felt that Cllr Jones had outlined the situation well. Bryn
Cwnin (Rhyl) was a spine road and that had not worked well. A road around
the site would allow ambulances and other emergency vehicles to get around
the site quicker. He was surprised and disappointed that highways are
supporting the spine road option. The open meeting that he had attended
made it clear that the public wanted a road that went around the site. He felt
that the smaller road through the site would inevitably end up with speed
bumps along it. He urged Members not to listen to Officers.

Graham Boase pointed out that this is a development brief which is indicative,
not a detailed planning application. The broad concept is that a road running
through the site is required as part of the site. His recommendation is that the
paragraph 6.29 page 215 should not be changed. A subsequent planning
application would be the time to discuss details. However, if he was asked as
a Planner which option is best, he would have to say that a spine road running
through the site would be a better design solution, than a boundary road
running along the perimeter of the site

Page 36



Clir Arwel Roberts stated that in the LDP Steering Group meeting Clir Smith
had proposed that the road should be placed “around” the site, not “through”
the site. He felt that Clir Jones’ proposal was a fair proposal.

Graham Boase explained that on page 1 of the late representation received
from the Bodelwyddan Development Action Group; they are asking a properly
constructed road "through” the site. This is exactly what is being proposed in
the Development Brief. Details should be left until the detailed planning
application stage. The wording of the Development Brief is appropriate to set
the broad concepts.

Cllr J Chamberlain-Jones felt that she had to disagree with Graham Boase.
The problems that a spine road would bring would be similar to those
experienced by those who live on Bryn Cwnin Road. The money it has cost to
have traffic calming measures onto this road and the effort that it had taken to
get these measures put into place. Clir Chamberlain-Jones felt that now is
the time to make changes to ensure that the road is not put through the
middle of the site.

Clir Mervyn Parry felt that CllIr Jones was right. He felt that the road should be
future proof as the roads are getting busier and not everyone would want to
have to go through the site. He felt that the road around the outside would
benefit the wider area instead of just the development site.

Clir Rhys Hughes stated that if he were the developer, he would not put a
road around the outside of the site as he felt that this would condemn the land
on the other side from ever being developed in the future.

Graham Boase felt that changing the Development Brief as proposed
dismissed the option of the spine road but what the Development Brief
intended was to try and keep those options open. It simply stated that a road
should go from one point to another through the site. Clir Jones’ option would
be redesigning the brief, committing the Council to one option only.

Clir Penlington was going to suggest taking the word ‘spine’ out of the Brief.

Clir Jones explained that this is a massive development and that she had a
job to do in defending this site as the Local Member. The BE Group/Faber
Maunsell report gave the bigger picture on how this site sits within the wider
area and recommended that all Members read this report. The site would
require a road through the site anyway to serve the dwellings, by making it the
main road of the site, this would divide the community of Bodelwyddan into
five parts making it more divisive not inclusive.

Gary Williams (Legal) suggested that paragraph 6.29 should read “a road
connecting these two locations is required to ensure the safe and efficient
operation of the local highway network improving access to Ysbhyty Glan
Clwyd and relieving pressure on Junction 27 of A55” and without having an
indicative line on the map would then ensure that it would not predetermine
where the road is going to be and would be determined by Members and
Officers when all the relevant assessments have been submitted as part of an
application.

Page 37



Clir Jones however stated that her proposal, as seconded was for the words
“‘development boundary road” to be added to the Brief to replace the words
“spine road”.

Garry Williams clarified that the word “spine” would be deleted and replaced
with the word “development boundary”.

Proposal

ClIr Alice Jones proposed that the development brief be amend so that the
word “spine” is replaced with the words “development boundary road” and to
remove the line of the road on the map. This was seconded by Arwel Roberts
The reasons for the amendment to the Brief were the need for the community
on the site not to be split by a main spine road, the need for a route for
emergency vehicles and others between the hospital and the A55, and
concerns about the impact that other spine roads have had elsewhere in the
County.

Vote for amendment:

GRANT - 19
ABSTAIN -1
REFUSE -4

THEREFORE THE AMENDMENT WAS ACCEPTED

Vote on recommendation for the Development Brief:

GRANT - 18
ABSTAIN -1
REFUSE -4

THEREFORE THE DEVELOPMENT BRIEF WAS ADOPTED WITH THE
ABOVE AMENDMENT

Page 38



AGENDA ITEM NO. 7

REPORT BY THE HEAD OF PLANNING AND PUBLIC PROTECTION

AFFORDABLE HOUSING TASK AND FINISH GROUP
The following Information was reported to Committee in the late sheets:

Update in relation to update to para 4.5 of the report on page 344 —
The following dates, times and venues for all 6 sessions have been confirmed

Each is booked for 2 hours

Tuesday, 16th September at 3.00 pm - Meeting Room 2, Brighton Road, Rhyl
Tuesday, 23rd September at 1.30 pm - Conference Room 3, County Hall,
Ruthin

Thursday, 9th October at 2.30 pm - Meeting Room 1, Caledfryn, Denbigh
Friday, 24th October at 1.30 pm - Conference Room 3, County Hall, Ruthin
Tuesday, 4th November at 3.00 pm - Conference Room 3, County Hall,
Ruthin

Friday, 28th November at 1.00 pm - Conference Room 3, County Hall, Ruthin

The Chair nominated ClIr Rhys Hughes as a representative. This was
seconded by ClIr Arwel Roberts.
Clir Peter Owen was proposed and seconded as a representative.

A nomination for two reserves was also suggested to mitigate the fact that
there were dates already set that may not be suitable for the main nominees.

Clir Rhys Hughes nominated ClIr Stuart Davies as a reserve.
Clir Joan Butterfield was also nominated by Cllr J Chamberlain Jones

Page 39



AGENDA ITEM NO. 8
REPORT BY THE HEAD OF PLANNING AND PUBLIC PROTECTION

LLANBEDR HALL APPEAL

lan Weaver explained that there was to be an informal hearing and this report
sought to formalise the representation of two Members at the hearing. The
Members that actually proposed and seconded the refusal were Clir Huw
Williams and ClIr Huw Hilditch Roberts. A Planning Consultant has already
been engaged on this appeal because of the dates involved.

Proposal
It was proposed that Clir Huw Williams and Clir Huw Hilditch Roberts
represent the Council at the appeal and that a Planning Consultant is
engaged.

Page 40



AGENDA ITEM NO. 9

DENBIGH HERITAGE INITIATIVE

Phil Ebbrell gave a brief presentation regarding the work done by the
Townscape Heritage Initiative in Denbigh.

The Committee applauded all the Officers that had been involved in the
scheme for the excellent results achieved.

The meeting closed at 1.45 p.m.

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL Agenda Item 5

PLANNING COMMITTEE
INDEX TO REPORT

ltem Application No Location and Proposal Page
No No
1 12/2014/0611/PF Land to south east of Maes Llan Derwen Corwen 45

Erection of a detached dwelling together with a detached
single garage, formation of a new vehicular access and
installation of a new septic tank

2 43/2014/0205/PF 105-107 High Street Prestatyn 57
Conversion of upper floors over existing retail unit to form
3 no. flats, demolition of two storey rear outrigger building
and erection of extension to rear to form 5 no. 1 bed flats
and associated works

3 43/2014/0206/CA 105-107 High Street Prestatyn 71
Conservation Area Consent for the demolition of a
garage (redevelopment of site subject to separate
application - ref: 43/2014/0205)

4 43/2014/0250/PF 55 Pendre Avenue Prestatyn 77
Erection of a single-storey extension to rear of dwelling
with alterations to roof and dormer window to side
elevation to provide accommodation in roofspace

5 45/2014/0617/AC Shirley 23 Marine Drive Rhyl 87
Details of proposed screen to prevent access from
existing balcony to flat roof area submitted in accordance
with condition no. 5 of planning permission code no.
45/2013/0805

6 45/2014/0924/PF Shirley 23 Marine Drive Rhyl 97
Amended details of alterations and extensions to dwelling
(previously granted under code no. 45/2013/0805),
eliminating external staircase, involving alternative design
of first floor lobby to incorporate internal staircase to
ground floor level and the erection of a 1.8m high side
boundary screen to permit use of additional section of flat
roof area as extension to existing balcony

7 45/2014/0746/PF Fronfraith 1 Boughton Avenue Rhyl 109
Change of use of offices to form 6 no. residential
apartments

8 45/2014/0787/PF Fronfraith 1 Boughton Avenue Rhyl 119

Conversion, alterations and extensions of existing office
to form a residential institution

9 45/2014/0927/PO Former Honey Club Site 21-26 West Parade Rhyl 127
Development of 0.18ha of land by the erection of a 70
bedroom hotel (Class C1), Restaurant (Class A3) and a
ground floor Class Al /A3 unit (retail shop / food and
drink use) (Outline application including access,
appearance, layout and scale).

10 46/2013/1222/PF Land at Bronwylfa Nurseries Bryn Gobaith 141
St Asaph
Erection of 15 No. detached dwellings and construction

Page 43



DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
PLANNING COMMITTEE
INDEX TO REPORT

ltem Application No

No

Location and Proposal Page
No

11

12

46/2014/0436/PS

46/2014/0126/PF

of new vehicular accesses on 1.44 hectares of land

Land at north side of Bryn Gobaith Bryn Gobaith 157
St Asaph

Removal of condition no. 15 of outline planning

permission code no. 46/2013/0802 requiring a scheme of
improvements at the Mount Road/Bryn Gobaith Junction

and traffic calming on Mount Road and Bryn Gobaith

H M Stanley Hospital Upper Denbigh Road 165
St Asaph

Partial demolition of buildings and redevelopment of site

to provide 54 no. dwellings, 33 no. apartment assisted

living facility, and associated works

Page 44



CYNGOR Heading:
1 7 REFERENCE NO. 12/2014/0611/PF
S“ Ddlnh Eh LAND TO SOUTH EAST OF MAES LLAN

Denbi ghshire DERWEN
v COUNTY COUNCIL

Graham Boase Application Site N
Head of Planning & Public Protection l
Denbighshire County Council Date 27/8/2014 Scale 1/1250

Caledfryn Centre = 307191 E 350726 N

Smithfield Road

This plan is intended solely to give an indiction of the LOCATION of

the application site which forms the subject of the accompanying report.
Denbighshire LL16 3RJ It does not form any part of the application documents, and should not
be taken as representative of the proposals to be considered, which are
available for inspection prior to the meeting.

Denbigh

Tel: 01824 706800 Fax: 01824 706709

Well

TWen

Ty'n-y-celyn

j Berwynfa + i

Maes Llan
N Dbt (O

~ Parc Lodge

Hendy'r Ysgol

Yr Hen Ysgol

Well Ty Derwen

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Surve behalf of tl ntroller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office.
© Crown copyright. Unauthorized reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosm (o] ERil dings. Denbighshire County Council. 100023408. 2011.

Atgynhyrchir y map hwn o ddeunydd yr Ordnance Survey gyda chaniatad yr Ordnance Survey ar ran Rheolwr Llyfrfa Ei Mawrhydi
© Hawlfraint y Goron. Mae atgynhyrchu heb ganiatad yn torri hawlfraint y Goron a gall hyn arwain at erlyniad neu achos sifil. Cyngor Sir Ddinbych. 100023408. 2011.




OIS MM T WA O

bk L0L PTRID I TZZ SOLPTOIO R
WHY S1TT 'y sySique "SI *Im3ntd UG UBE ‘esnoy yang

A0 DHiww

OILd303H NANIOT VYD

"UIMIOT) "UIMI ‘UB[] SIDW JO ISUB-HINOS 0) pUB]

uonrineeu) Nzl opdes MBN pasatcsd

v Blrping auy jo wodindiied Su) o) 80wd 1 Kdey 8g O3 B BUE) duL
DS BY) O LIS Byl 0 MIeWLSd BT O) Sudy BurEd WUILoUD JEqUE B jO UG0S
B A UawWSoAD J0 BINGT Biy Buunp oq oy y 84 O umOus L Ut s884) Dy (1]

saads

Wd 0051 |#102/50/51 B o et g oo s o o R 0 500
s T 7950 H0Z AVH €2 : SOOI v v ot e e g e
fr——— “ou Bugwasp ‘0w paefoud M!E.ﬂ.#ﬁ:“%nsugﬁﬂax%ﬂgéﬁ ey wDQZL L1 ¥ B T} - SN WINOS (e ou1 0} 5ue) BUnIPu W | 1500 18QuE| MON
‘supjd 1S pasodoid pup Buns)x3 R o i ol i e b g e B oy \EIR G O 653 S6uEPLGS PEE UCTENGK 84) 01 MAISEDOY DU 5w0usy Botiiou B 1500 J0cun BUISLET BY
i Buitp N 383 4 90 01 6 Suoms sou petodaid e 8Alas 01 R ot b Bl ALK PUE UORRROCS T JUOK) 5} SOEY GUETE/RUOTS W PAySLY &4 ©) S2RIE OUEd PUs TuiEd Moy

Yy -y UEMOpy - LANE JeAS - BS ALBUD PN = DM ‘0~ 0

— — | 005:1 \
zqﬁci_m:ﬂ:gg:
NuDyg u:nu/a.ﬂ:.gyy—.{.

|
wsomad)d uo)oba) uun-é . ,.__,
£4]0390 Py .
wopb2)H33ds " DA DIAD & jjiouiny
Apmubiy 04 PUD) JOINIINIIB0 o gp
pUD Bu))1amp Mau SAIIE o) 323230
ff JDyA3y3A PIUGuEI DIsadosy

*,

'Myoy u:auv pItodosy

o, AJppunoq 0y #203)
N Gupidsu s 1 ysad a3quip) maN

05 EY 34
Burnamg man pasedoly

<

19437 Wnd

uD|} S3OY

Dpuncq o) U Im
T Jsod J3quyy Bupasice

Asppunog o) sbpay 3

3303} 2 pud ywod Gupisind /

e Tt

ddi118019107 71

A = sado 1865 u.-.gﬂniﬁ.ie.gplﬂihﬁ ‘SBUIPENG ALE Woy WG UMD B HORS 8q 6 PUE 81 LT 01 WO'E ¥0 0] Buueid 267 aAReN
S$82(AJa% 10AN}IO)|YIJD = poysy 0q oF Bumemp mau pasodosd Gyl SA:S OF SewT Borun pus Bupyid Aemaaup oitasd mou pesodoxd el Buguud sy
mmogmm.wxo_.—um_.—.é - GEOAIL PR EACLY 3 v AmyD] 91 O S ST & Y NS ' HH_
uonisod wrnus sxa oy jo elipe TOR SIENUD PAARIY Mou .
FHNOM 1O LGRTIoRewdry 0 BORS AU 0 DTEINC) PO 0L $S0raemg TIV | HDHL407 J?gﬁ!niﬁpzﬂsgshi-%!gu.gngaﬂ .g.ﬁgiggj.guglgggm. S0
\%/ ‘noﬂ!n!&v-l.::ﬁ-:ﬂ.5&-3-33.3:!5!:&9&.;&.3233@"%:&:!# 05 W & 5 ¢4 £30d 0 e} Al - e e e L -
b ‘Jeaciode s Auoyqiny Ayl au) L s Az 95 0] put ‘id UD MOy 58 pe) . .
\.\ ._rz Swand Suysixe By o PUTY NENoUBE Gyl PUE SGaMD IKOU BU) AAIGE O] SESIOR JEPONBA BRGLUDD A8l W04 Oy ul | 94 o) sadid o) Ry W — S sdewelp MOL TP LIOGE -
..../ | 4
- = \ \\
a0

005: L
HY1d LNOAYT 3115 ONILSIXT \

Y udmaaQ §0 JIWDY B4
707 A0J098 J0 D3J0, jo LJOPUNOq 4O JU)|

O
4
[<B)
(@)
©
ol

J0PUNOG JDUO| 300U

Dungnaebo Sulgs)ed
10angn3) 1%} 61 ae

AJppunoq oy
#3udy J3m pul JE0d Buns)es

[

" .A
19437 y0d
uD|] 53Dy




8

D

_—

A l

i
t
i

e

H LR ] e s

Front Elevation

Rear Elevation
Loternat sipterist ;o812 iacl Aqthees epeerre!

Aol Redipndt v bea prey

Wy Facomg Brchuwari wrDh imewth ramder Pt (K Rend g o1 dppraved’ whurt i
Mg et Pasriind cudar Usddung whari |howh.

Rgrimgres Condy sens wped guttir} dad shaws poai

Side Elevation

' 12201010611 ,pF

Side Elevation

RECEIVED

MATISCHOK&ROSS

archlfeciural aervices

Projest bug

Land fo south-tatt of Maes Lian, Derwen, Corwem.

arewhvg e
Proposed Elevations

ynagow) ) {rtgrnal Dogr) Freme]  WhACYear o pve windont 4 avternnd Josrd 73 MAY 201 e =
Faigun oI A Bgrit Boordy - wNTH wpwe JAiin 5, Dt ety & Bagfe smuardt 0562 E}
COLEOPRYN RECEPTION Tsrosrzors| Troe | SR
Buen rauss, Hea Lon Farcwr, Auiien, Derghahim, (113 1NA
L0124 183 227 LRIV ATY
5wl )
i€ 201410611 /pF
:____‘," . ‘-_/ :h
: ST s ]
' . % — ¥
o = EldE ==
= homr : Esthrogm s
:;.—’: — Sasroem 2 . Bagrowm 4
o ¢ bl [L NP
— i le — S it
;’: Lounpa gl ]
L e
= 1]

Linig droa
g e

Ground Floor Layout Plan

First Floor Layout Plan

=Wz H—r'[

B

Page 47

RECEIVED
Land to south-tasr of Mags Uan, Derwen, Corwen.
13 MAY 208 wreny e
Proposed Ground & First Flvor Layout Plans,
CALEDFRYN RE EPHON e e ias
- o e by
15/05/2014| 1100 SR

- couh me

Birch Heusa, Hen L Partws Ry, Dorasghehwe, LL13 IRA
AWM 105 12T 2 eriaTOT I

ool




Paul Griffin

ITEM NO: 1

WARD NO: Efenechtyd

WARD MEMBER(S): Clir Eryl Williams

APPLICATION NO: 12/2014/0611/ PF

PROPOSAL: Erection of a detached dwelling together with a detached single

garage, formation of a new vehicular access and installation of a
new septic tank

LOCATION: Land to south east of Maes Llan Derwen Corwen
APPLICANT: Mr & Mrs Robin & Manon Jones

CONSTRAINTS: None

PUBLICITY Site Notice — No

UNDERTAKEN: Press Notice — No

Neighbour letters - Yes

REASON(S) APPLICATION REPORTED TO COMMITTEE:
Scheme of Delegation Part 2

e Member request for referral to Committee

CONSULTATION RESPONSES:
DERWEN COMMUNITY COUNCIL:
“Whilst the Members of Derwen Community Council has no objections to the above planning
application and plans only to ask a question on the application form where does the fact that
Yes is answered to question 18 on the application form (Residential Units) agrees or not with
the Denbighshire County Council's Local Development Plan Policy BSC 6 on Local
Connections Affordable Housing in Hamlets.”

NATURAL RESOURCES WALES:
No objections

GRWP CYNEFIN:
Confirm the applicant is eligible to be registered for affordable home ownership.

DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL CONSULTEES —
Head of Highways and Infrastructure
- Highways Officer:

No objections

- Public Protection:
No response received

RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY:

In objection
Representations received from:

G. Mann, Yr Hen Dy Ysgol, Derwen
S. & A. Reese, Hen Ysgol, Derwen

Page 48



Summary of planning based representations in objection:

Principle

Questions over the eligibility of applicants for affordable housing / applicants already own an
open market dwelling which has been modernised and enlarged / are not living in unsuitable
conditions / house can be adapted / new dwelling would not be affordable to majority of those in
affordable housing need but only to the applicant / process must be made fair and consistent /
Grwp Cynefin process is weak or robust and does not meet DCC'’s criteria.

Impact on visual amenity

Scale and form of proposed dwelling excessive / plot is excessive for an affordable house /
inefficient use of land

In support

Representations received from:

L. Roberts, Ysgubor Lelo, Derwen
R. Jones, Maes Llan, Derwen

Summary of planning based representations in support:
- Proposals meet LDP policies / would assist a young family to move into the community /
dwelling would be tied to affordable need in perpetuity

EXPIRY DATE OF APPLICATION:
REASONS FOR DELAY IN DECISION (where applicable):

. timing of receipt of representations
. delay in receipt of key consultation response(s)

PLANNING ASSESSMENT:
1. THE PROPOSAL:
1.1 Summary of proposals
1.1.1 Full planning permission is sought for the erection of a detached dwelling together
with a detached single garage, formation of a new vehicular access and installation of
a new septic tank.

1.1.2 The dwelling would have an ‘L’ shaped footprint, with a frontage approximately 12m
wide, and a maximum depth of 11m, and 6.5 metres, at it shallowest. On the ground
floor there would be a kitchen/dining/living area, hall, wc and lounge. On the first floor
there would be 4 bedrooms, and a bathroom.

1.1.3 Externally the dwelling would feature a large amount of glazing to the front (south
facing) elevation, and more traditional fenestration to the rear. The external materials
are proposed as facing bricks, and render on the walls with a slate roof.

1.1.4 The dwelling would be partially ‘sunk’ into the ground, to adapt to the sloping nature of
the site. From the rear, the dwelling would appear as a single storey building.

1.1.5 As the site is located on the fringe of the hamlet of Derwen in the Local Development
Plan, the applicant has provided supporting information to assist consideration of the
proposals in relation to the tests of local connections affordable housing.

1.2 Description of site and surroundings
1.2.1 The site is located to the south east of the hamlet, Derwen. It is currently an open
agricultural field. A minor road runs along the eastern boundary of the site, and
access to the site would be from this road.

1.2.2 To the north west of the site are dwellings within the hamlet. Development in this area
is of mixed form, with both two storey and single storey dwellings of varying ages,

Page 49



with some older traditional types of buildings (including converted school buildings)
sitting adjacent to former Local Authority houses.

1.2.3 Site boundaries are defined by mature hedgerows.

1.3 Relevant planning constraints/considerations
1.3.1 For planning policy purposes, Derwen is identified as a hamlet in the Local
Development Plan. Policy BSC6 of the Plan is of specific relevance to proposals for
new dwellings in hamlets.

1.4 Relevant planning history
1.4.1 None

1.5 Developments/changes since the original submission
1.5.1 None

1.6 Other relevant background information
1.6.1 None

DETAILS OF PLANNING HISTORY:
2.1 None

RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE:

The main planning policies and guidance are considered to be:
Denbighshire Local Development Plan (adopted 4™ June 2013)

Policy RD1 — Sustainable development and good standard design
Policy BSC1 — Growth Strategy for Denbighshire

Policy BSC3 — Securing infrastructure contributions from Development
Policy BSC4 — Affordable Housing

Policy BSC6 — Local connections affordable housing in hamlets
Policy BSC11 — Recreation and open space

Policy ASA3 — Parking Standards

3.1 Government Policy / Guidance
Planning Policy Wales Edition 7 (July 2014)
Technical Advice Note 2 — Planning and Affordable Housing
Technical Advice Note 6 — Planning for Sustainable Rural Communities

MAIN PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS:

In terms of general guidance on matters relevant to the consideration of a planning application,
Planning Policy Wales Edition 7, July 2014 (PPW) confirms the requirement that planning
applications 'should be determined in accordance with the approved or adopted development plan
for the area, unless material considerations indicate otherwise' (Section 3.1.2). PPW advises that
material considerations must be relevant to the regulation of the development and use of land in
the public interest, and fairly and reasonably relate to the development concerned., and that these
can include the number, size, layout, design and appearance of buildings, the means of access,
landscaping, service availability and the impact on the neighbourhood and on the environment
(Sections 3.1.3 and 3.1.4).

The following paragraphs in Section 4 of the report therefore refer to the policies of the
Denbighshire Local Development Plan, and to the material planning considerations which are
considered to be of relevance to the proposal.

4.1 The main land use planning issues in relation to the application are considered to be:

4.1.1 Principle

Page 50



4.1.2
4.1.3
414
4.1.5

Eligibility of applicants for Local Connections Affordable Housing
Impact on visual amenity
Impact on residential amenity

Highways

4.2 In relation to the main planning considerations:

421

Principle

The site is located adjacent to the hamlet, Derwen, on land which is shown in the
Local Development Plan as being a ‘search area’ for local connections affordable
housing. In the preamble to Chapter 6, the LDP states that development boundaries
are drawn to define clear physical limits to developed areas. It explains that
development within boundaries will in principle be supported, but that these
boundaries exist to protect the County’s landscapes and open spaces.

Planning Policy Wales also advises that development in the countryside should be
located within and adjacent to those settlements where it can best be accommodated
in terms of infrastructure, access, habitat and landscape conservation. Infilling, or
minor extensions to existing settlements may be acceptable in particular where it
meets a local need for affordable housing. This is amplified in Technical Advice Note
2, and Technical Advice Note 6, which relates specifically to development in rural
areas, supporting the concept of ‘Rural Exceptions’ Policies.

In terms of the LDP, the most relevant policy is considered to be BSC 6, Local
Connections Affordable Housing , which permits local connections affordable housing
development where the following five criteria are met:

“i) the proposal would provide an affordable dwelling to meet local needs; and,

i) the proposals would help to secure the viability of the local community, and
strengthen the community and linguistic character; and,

iii) new housing is located within the defined area of search of the hamlet and overall
growth levels restricted to that indicated below; and,

iv) the proposal is in keeping with traditional building styles and is sympathetic in
design, scale and materials to other traditional buildings in the locality; and,

v) satisfactory arrangements are made to ensure the dwelling is retained in
perpetuity as an affordable dwelling for local need and this is contained

in a Section 106 agreement.”.

Officers suggest the above tests are significant to the determination and these are
reviewed in turn below:

In respect of criterion i) the applicants eligibility for an affordable dwelling to meet
local needs is discussed in detail in Section 4.2.2 below. On the basis of the Grwp
Cynefin assessment of the applicants circumstances, it is suggested the proposals
comply with criterion i) of Policy BSC 6.

In reference to criterion ii), the proposal would allow a local welsh speaking family to
return to their home community. It is difficult to quantify what impact this will have on
the viability of the local community and linguistic character of the community, but it is
not considered that there would be conflict with criterion ii) of Policy BSC 6.

Criterion iii) requires the proposed dwelling to be within the defined area of search of
the hamlet. The site, as mentioned previously is within this area (as defined on the
proposals map) and constitute one of the 5 dwellings for Derwen indicated as
permitted over the plan period. The proposal is considered to comply with criterion iii)
of Policy BSC 6.

Criterion iv) relates to the visual impact of the proposal. This issue is in paragraph

4.2.3 of the report. The Officer view is that the proposals are acceptable in terms of
design, scale and materials.

Page 51



422

Criterion v) requires satisfactory arrangements to be put in place to ensure the
proposed dwelling is retained in perpetuity as an affordable dwelling for local need
and this is contained in a Section 106 agreement. The applicants are willing to enter
into such an agreement.

Having regard to the above, it is considered that the principle of a dwelling in this
location is acceptable in terms of the tests in Local Development Plan Policy BSC 6.

Eligibility of applicants for Local Connections Affordable Housing

As stated above, the LDP policy requirement is that any dwelling built on this site
should be for local connections affordable housing only and that this should be
controlled through a section 106 legal agreement. To assist consideration of the Local
Connections eligibility issue, an assessment of the applicant’s circumstances has
therefore been undertaken on behalf of the Council by Grwp Cynefin.

For Members information, the Council's Supplementary Planning Guidance Note on
Affordable Housing (May 2014) expands upon the definition of local connections
affordable housing and provides additional criteria that households must meet in order
to be considered eligible. Appendix 3 of Supplementary Planning Guidance Note on
Affordable Housing states that:

“Where the provision of Affordable Housing is to be provided through granting
planning permission a Section 106 agreement (or similar) is required to ensure that
the household meets all 3 of the following criteria :

- is an eligible affordable household,

- comprises a household in unsatisfactory accommodation, and

- comprises a household with a genuine or strong local connection.”

The fundamental principles within the concept of local connections affordable housing
are whether the applicant has a need (connection) to live in the locality, and can
afford a dwelling in the locality.

The applicants have submitted details of their household income, current mortgage
and outstanding loans, which have been assessed by Grwp Cynefin.

Factually, the applicants have previously resided within the Derwen community for 22
years, and now wish to return. Their parents still reside in Derwen. With regard to the
local connection criteria test of SPG Affordable Housing (Appendix 3) it is considered
that the applicants have a genuine and strong local connection to Derwen.

The applicants currently reside in Clocaenog in a 3 bedroom dwelling. They have
three children and it is stated that the 3™ bedroom is too small to be fit for purpose.
The property is currently on the market. It is suggested by Grwp Cynefin that the sale
of the property would fund the development of the plot in Derwen. Consideration has
been given to extending the Clocaenog dwelling, but it is understood that the
applicants can not afford to do this. Whilst this may seem contradictory given the
applicants are pursuing a new build dwelling, it is relevant that the new build is to be
funded by the sale of the dwelling in Clocaenog.

Assessment of the housing market in Derwen suggests that at the time the application
was made, there were no houses for sale within the applicant’s price range. (There
was one property on the market for £370,000, and since 2008, 6 properties have
been sold in the price range £250,000 to £400,000.)

With due respect to the representations received, the above information suggests the

applicants are eligible for local connections affordable housing in Derwen. It is not
considered that there is a suitable or affordable open market house for sale within the

Page 52



4.2.3

4.2.4

4.2.5

locality. The proposal is therefore considered to accord with the aims and intentions of
Policy BSC 6.

Impact on visual amenity:

Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 test (i) requires due regard to issues of siting,
layout, form, character, design, materials, aspect, microclimate and intensity of use of
land / buildings and spaces between buildings, which are matters relevant to the
visual impact of development; test (vi) requires that development does not
unacceptably affect prominent public views into, out of, or across any settlement or
area of open countryside; test (vi) requires the incorporation of existing landscape or
other features, takes account of site contours, and changes in levels and prominent
skylines; and test (xiii) requires the incorporation of suitable landscaping measures to
protect and enhance development in its local context. Policy BSC 6 requires local
connections for affordable housing dwellings to be in keeping with traditional building
styles and is sympathetic in design, scale and materials to other traditional buildings
in the locality

The proposed two storey dwelling would be located in an area characterised by a
number of substantial dwellings in large plots, and a mix of dwelling types. The
dwelling would be constructed of brick, render and slate roof. Within the surrounding
area there is a wide range of building materials evident. The proposed dwelling would
be set back from the highway with a parking and turning area located to the front. The
site is visible from distance views in Bryn Saith Marchog.

It is considered that the scale and form of the dwelling are in keeping with the
character of the area. The choice of materials is considered acceptable in this
location, and the layout of the site would not appear at odds with the surrounding
area. Within the scheme there is scope for suitable landscaping to help assimilate the
development into the area. The dwelling would not appear overly prominent in distant
views, benefitting from the site topography which slopes up behind it. The proposal is
therefore considered to be acceptable in terms of visual amenity and its impact upon
the character of the area, and is in accordance with Policy RD 1 tests, and BSC6 test
iv, iv, and v.

Impact on residential amenity

Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 test (i) requires due regard to issues of siting,
layout, form, character, design, materials, aspect, microclimate and intensity of use of
land / buildings and spaces between buildings, which touch on the potential for impact
on residential amenity; test (vi) sets the requirement to assess the impact of
development on the amenities of local residents, other land and property users, or
characteristics of the locality, in terms of increased activity, disturbance, noise, dust,
fumes, litter, drainage, light pollution, etc.

The proposed dwelling would be located to the south east of Derwen. The nearest
dwelling would be located 30 metres north west of the proposed dwelling. The
proposed dwelling would be orientated so that the principal windows would be looking
away from the existing dwellings towards the open countryside. Only three windows
are proposed to the rear elevation — one bathroom window, and two bedroom
windows. These would face onto the rear garden of the proposed dwelling and
adjacent highway. There would be over 100 sqm of garden area.

Given the separation distances involved, and the location of windows, it is not
considered that the proposed dwelling would result in a loss of amenity for
surrounding properties. With in excess of 100 square metres of garden space, the
proposed dwelling would have sufficient amenity space for occupants. In terms of
residential amenity the proposed dwelling is considered acceptable and in
accordance with the relevant planning policies and guidance.

Open Space

Page 53



Policy BSC 3 seeks to secure, where relevant, infrastructure contributions from
development. Policy BSC 11 requires all new residential development to provide a
contribution to recreation and open space either on site, or by the provision of a
commuted sum.

The proposal is for a single dwelling. A commuted sum in the region of £2660
towards the provision of improved facilities, and the ongoing maintenance of the
recreation space in Derwen would be required if permission is granted.

It is considered that in this instance the provision of a commuted sum is preferable to
the option of on site provision, given that the proposal is for a single dwelling. It is
therefore considered that the proposal is in accordance with Policy BSC 3 and Policy
BSC 11, subject to agreement to payment of the relevant commuted sum, which can
be dealt with a Section 106 Agreement.

4.2.6 Highways
Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 tests (vii) and (viii) oblige provision of safe and

convenient access for a range of users, together with adequate parking, services and
manoeuvring space; and consideration of the impact of development on the local
highway network Policy ASA 3 requires adequate parking spaces for cars and
bicycles in connection with development proposals, and outlines considerations to be
given to factors relevant to the application of standards. These policies reflect general
principles set out in Planning Policy Wales (Section 8) and TAN 18 — Transport, in
support of sustainable development.

The proposal involves a new access onto the highway, and the closure of the existing
field access. It would provide visibility splays, and a low boundary wall at 750mm.
There is a parking and turning area proposed to the front of the dwelling, along with a
garage. No objections have been received from the Highway Officer.

With regard to the requirements of Policy RD 1 and TAN 18, it is considered that the
proposal is acceptable, and would not have an adverse impact upon highway
infrastructure.

4  SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS:

4.1

4.2

4.3

The application involves the erection of a new dwelling within the local needs affordable
housing search area of Derwen. The applicants have submitted evidence to demonstrate
that they are eligible for affordable housing and are willing to enter into a legal agreement
with the Council to secure the dwelling as affordable for local needs in perpetuity.

Officers’ conclusions having regard to the relevant considerations are that the development
is in accordance with planning policy, and it is recommended that permission be granted
subject to completion of a s106 legal agreement setting out the requirements relating to
future occupancy (including sales price) and an open space contribution.

The recommendation is therefore to GRANT permission subject to the completion of a
Section 106 Obligation.

a) Securing the dwelling as affordable for local needs in perpetuity.

b) Securing the relevant commuted sum payment for Open Space

The Certificate of Decision would only be issued on completion of the Section 106 Obligation
and in the event of the Obligation not being completed within 12 months of the date of the
resolution of Planning Committee, the application will be re-presented for determination by
Committee against policies and guidance relevant at that time.

Page 54



RECOMMENDATION: GRANT- subject to the following conditions:-

1.

2.

The development to which this permission relates shall be begun no later than the expiration
of five years beginning with the date of this permission.

PRE-COMMENCEMENT CONDITION

Prior to the commencement of the development, the written approval of the Local Planning
Authority shall be obtained in respect of the walls and roof materials to be used for the
development hereby permitted and no materials other than those approved shall be used.
PRE-COMMENCEMENT CONDITION

The access shall be laid out and constructed as shown on the approved plan and completed
to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority before any works commence on site.
PRE-COMMENCEMENT CONDITION

No development shall take place until there has been submitted to, and approved in writing
by, the Local Planning Authority, a detailed scheme of hard and soft landscaping for the site,
and such scheme shall include details of:

€) all existing trees, hedgerows and other vegetation on the land, details of any to be
retained, and measures for their protection in the course of development.

(b) proposed new trees, hedgerows, shrubs or vegetation, including confirmation of
species, numbers, and location and the proposed timing of the planting;

(c) proposed materials to be used on the driveway(s), paths and other hard surfaced
areas;

(d) proposed earthworks, grading and mounding of land and changes in levels, final
contours and the relationship of proposed mounding to existing vegetation and surrounding
landform;

(e) Proposed positions, design, materials and type of boundary treatment.

Facilities shall be provided and retained within the site for the loading/ unloading, parking and
turning of vehicles in accordance with the approved plan and shall be completed prior to the
development being brought into use.

The surface of the access shall be paved with a concrete or bituminous material for a
distance of 5.0m behind the highway boundary and the whole of the access frontage adjacent
to the highway shall be reinforced with bullnose kerbs before it is brought into use.

A landscape management plan, including long term design objectives, management
responsibilities and maintenance schedules for all landscaped areas, other than small
privately owned, domestic gardens, shall be submitted for the consideration of the Local
Planning Authority prior to the occupation of any dwellings and the landscape management
plan shall be carried out as approved in accordance with such time scale to be agreed in
writing by the Local Planning Authority.

The reason(s) for the condition(s) is(are):-

1.
2.
3

6.

7.

To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

In the interests of visual amenity.

In the interest of the free and safe movement of traffic on the adjacent highway and to ensure
the formation of a safe and satisfactory access.

To ensure in the interests of visual amenity a satisfactory standard of landscaping in
conjunction with the development.

To provide for the loading/ unloading, parking and turning of vehicles and to ensure that
reversing by vehicles into or from the highway is rendered unnecessary in the interest of
traffic safety.

To ensure that no deleterious material is carried on to the highway in the interest of highway
safety.

To ensure a satisfactory standard of development, in the interests of visual amenity.

NOTES TO APPLICANT:
Your attention is drawn to the attached Highway Supplementary Notes Nos. 1, 3, 4,5 & 10.

Your attention is drawn to the attached Part N form (New Road and Street Works Act 1991).

Your attention is drawn to the attached notes relating to applications for consent to construct a
vehicular crossing over a footway / verge under Section 184 of the Highways Act 1980.

Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank



CYNGOR Heading:
1 7 REFERENCE NO. 43/2014/0205/PF
‘qj ! Diffn}} J Eh 105-107 HIGH STREET

Denbi ghshire PRESTATYN
v COUNTY COUNCIL

Graham Boase Application Site N
Head of Planning & Public Protection l
Denbighshire County Council Date 27/8/2014 Scale 1/1250

Caledfryn Centre = 306659 E 382863 N

Smithfield Road This plan is intended solely to give an indiction of the LOCATION of
Denbigh the application site which forms the subject of the accompanying report.
Denbighshire LL16 3RJ It does not form any part of the application documents, and should not

be taken as representative of the proposals to be considered, which are

Tel: 01824 706800 Fax: 01824 706709 ) . . . .
available for inspection prior to the meeting.

Cinemna

Council Offices

PRESTATYN

Car Park

War Mernl

Christ Church

“i7, Lych Gate

Scout
HQ

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Surve behalf of ntroller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office.
© Crown copyright. Unauthorized reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosm il fedings. Denbighshire County Council. 100023408. 2011.

Atgynhyrchir y map hwn o ddeunydd yr Ordnance Survey gyda chaniatad yr Ordnance Survey ar ran Rheolwr Llyfrfa Ei Mawrhydi
© Hawlfraint y Goron. Mae atgynhyrchu heb ganiatad yn torri hawlfraint y Goron a gall hyn arwain at erlyniad neu achos sifil. Cyngor Sir Ddinbych. 100023408. 2011.




EXISTING
ELEVATIONS

Tt ' =

L s=il=

== —
EXISTING FRONT ELEVATION

Ty py Wiz 1 oy g el

EALN R |
» ’

S R | |[icr

PETER DARLINGTON [
ARCHITECTS {Exist
INTERIOR DESIGNERS Side

$37204 79705
o /\\ f ’F

‘%::l_l‘ Reom 13 qw
. 0om } aom T;.u-l
HE

sles 131} [L41] M Reom 6 figom &
L il I [ ] =
i i = i “r_“—.... |—— e .. ;| - T

‘_‘ E'-:g? Tm-mﬁ Relall
EXISTING SECTIONAL ELEVATION

S e S
HE
-~
Mﬂi/\ |
W m o [
o m" LT

| -%
. L

|

EXISTING

REAR ELEVATION Page 58

\ 26 FEB zuu)
" s

Py are

105-107. High Street

Prestatyn

Horth Wnles

PETER DARLINGTON [om e

ARCHITECTS {Exisling Rear ond
INTERIOR DESICMERS Sectional Elevations

Pl | ekl : =
T eman ' |l3030,/EX05
e O R
l‘::-.:.:..-..';.-,-_«_-_;----v MM | 1100 ianie




New it rFOWIPF

tew lend 1ocl dormer. )
H‘“ foat - New 3 starey blaek —————nt———Heow 3 slorey block F
Or red. r‘_'— . LR ¥
Exrsling Conservation Soe ilch = o
rendered roof light. 'ri:-arl‘ﬁlh Pl D P N
= liak, rech e iy LA
! = - a e —t midgie »
o amm T ; - T =
1 el : L a— B e r——— S — i (] aoite. fool
: : = snd sisles
malck to
b main root
oz ¢ [« L
: 2 sty I s et
R TR ) T =
Proposed
H veiund
G- : s : :
Fiel o ; > - 4 . el
conapy. ). ,
\ ..... "?_~".-“:I_ e S it = . [ e
. | - HNaw rendet
H ﬂ | it o Sew
B . | .
g { 5 5

PROPOSED SIDE ELEVATION

Hew leod
—~ That el

—] dormed
|EE ,:! IEE_ fee— — Pioposed
e | Tmnhﬂ

AT
wndne.

Enetbin
nied

: mier
wrdoe

u i B
1m - : Frant al boldings o feaf.
R Paor lowered & pitth  23.7.14
3 ol dormar ooded lo
fllﬁ-f-'} rear
iender — -+ -
Cotle rogd goided g ] s 105-107, High Strest
=i 2-1-1 [ tat
. . 1o ear. ! [ Ewua Wales i
EETTE————

1

]

Promcsed Front and
nt al
Eras Bevation.

POF Craaled wih deskPDF POF Writer - Tral < e, o e coem

Window fe=posboned

g o sieregse & boy 22-5-14
Rev-B odow wited.

Scheme rewted 03 per

HITECT
ARC

k'l
]

 Haw ghep
lranl

l : Bee-A Coeservalion cllcers 13-5-14

PROPOSED FRONT ELEVATION

. = il man AE
&d L0verdensspyp
Hew lal hew fod
/f Hew : E?c::!'r\er Nigt weed
g T |
ﬂ miten o = i' BEVISED FLAN i

Hew -, 5 sl ed
| makie raof ,‘f _’,‘.:IT‘P.. [1;1-‘-‘:35 ]
& F, r |— ) . N
crﬁ: Moty H _ window =io
|l by e ' | — 4§ ewaling
| mein rood, ¢ - = cpening.
—
==
=mK
§.|= Newb painted
=% tmber
= windaw
:n'gf‘:gl a"‘:—? i- l=r-ln exaling
g=| 5
= & - ST
-?—--._'l=‘_._~_ E = - E s : Emhrgq .
Proposed ] T==3 k sign board.
ainted a IEF :'lr-
imber : LU g I L
window B i | £aisting 3
_— i Jf:tnul shop
[ = ronl g
. — . R e . N g
New e et e E
censervalian e ——mmr——  wmg = —— — o g2 B
roolii hla o st ey iz P ey o G
g Newr al ( % r_..%
- vool donmes 3 -
24 gy z
Hew ; H.H =
gable rurtsur & Coit.cy =
Proposed A ke . g_
molch b M s
qutle roal il b N :
I 1 i
’ Peinled i
f‘ﬂ | i1 e CONCTRR o
g B sy front ol buitengs Flot roof dormer d 2
Proposed T semound. Rev-D  lcor cweied & pitch  22-7-14 Rev-E 13 reor cmended  4.7-14 i
able rocd rool domeer gdded lo
g ol E q g fal ?
| e
F b ; o Grosnd and second ] E
Peoposed ¥ il p— Exislin Rev-C flogs ipnered. iE=T=1 s
it reol - * ;LIF]:‘E:"I."-H
tanopy, | S e
! - Goble roct added PR
| T Progoned Rev-g fo rear Arei=ld E
I;ro osed __ | panbed |
kil 143 I abssure
cotumn NIl | e AL i Lmbar i
= IR L = . - wenidaw " efised 0s per
o | R Ee—e— | bt Pﬁrageo;:e@-%* officer's 13=5=14
PROPOSED REAR ELEVATION




WOINSIPRIOP MMM DNY  JBL ) = Jﬂ ."

5 IEN||0 wopoariuny  WeARY
w10 PR SRyl
Pt 85 0}
y ; : ahooh Bugees
piepe dom g0 Wby B-ME gepsage ey pagieg

WAl g PURRD
B E S TTET i =
yhey wg) may

e
e ——

“lipunpg penoun
[ B TE T T
by wig | way

fOlT s s
J90IS 5. 996 sy

= NIQAVD Hvil O1
SHOMVATTI TivA AavONADE
oH

...... ks nn_.!un ..uz l_ls .

R ....«...«,..Xm....wm_ip

[\ERLTET]

50 03 a1 [
| EdIQ

bt oped w0
Hhnioq SHDTDW %

.

O -

NVId diIS @ds0dodd

T T

IR

R

wouspey —g—+

|_ LLLE]

E ,n&r_: $2103pus Su| PILE]
/22...

L N

Ax ary———)
R T p— __

(02 ]

Prise dqus]

133415 HOM

|
1 | lﬁ 13IS HOIH
- § ¥ £01'GD!

oL L0l




qable
iool

New

sigtes molch
to man

rgol

Existing
slales ‘roef,

Foo1PATN

IF Wiriter - Trial = hitp fwww.docudesk.com

K1 NG'S AVENUE

101,103 7l
HIGH STREET

New painted

tirmber

chacure I
Boundary line window

ek D § T § P i S % e ¢ e & D S § Y § 5 e i 4

@Eﬁi/ L O FLAT-6 o s B ———
1 5. 07 Kitchan | i Clh";l '3 I -

) -~ = |I
s |4y y o] P
T e I \jpriG SIREED pll £ = = ;
» L [ = = 1

- | = 3 4 Hew gable 9

2 . sloi [ Lounge =2 o ool ?nulch

E] - T-7 N | m— T : {o exisling.
New .00 sq.mt b, = =
() | Badroom wol™, Q’
-1 S
- | = New painted 1 i ]
- [ b s, Hiew timber T 3
wall with window 'T
render 5
2
New Boundery line w
indow 1l L ﬁ 5
:mshr‘:q I:c?IJ rpoftPrTA couo &
- 5

r Goble rocf odded -
K1 N G'S A Y E N UE Rev=C i 72-1-14 §

| I
—— T“---—--.

101,103 -
HIGH STREET il

H

g New painled
= hg\sber
| ; ; - obscure
_ @ " wendow.
o] e L g . r o H
O 107 o = . | v B q o I ] el itk IJ

HlGH . §TREE I-E!==' | g render

Bedroom woll.\

—l Hew pointed
timber
window

renger

N:v:! i r Boundary line
wisdow inla S
eusting wal po B TEATHR

K I N G'S sznpage61

O
L.—.
$ N

with deshPDE PDF Whiter - Trial : hitp.fiwww.docudesk. com

! Window re-positioned e
fev-D lo stowcose e




Emer O'Connor

ITEM NO: 2
WARD NO: Prestatyn East
WARD MEMBER(S): ClIr James Davies
ClIr Julian Thompson-Hill
APPLICATION NO: 43/2014/0205/ PF
PROPOSAL: Conversion of upper floors over existing retail unit to form 3 no.

flats, demolition of two storey rear outrigger building and erection
of extension to rear to form 5 no. 1 bed flats and associated

works
LOCATION: 105-107 High Street Prestatyn
APPLICANT: JBZ Peels Ltd.
CONSTRAINTS: Conservation Area
PUBLICITY Site Notice — Yes
UNDERTAKEN: Press Notice — Yes

Neighbour letters - Yes

REASON(S) APPLICATION REPORTED TO COMMITTEE:
Scheme of Delegation Part 2

e Recommendation to grant — Town Council objection

CONSULTATION RESPONSES:
PRESTATYN TOWN COUNCIL
“Objection, Loss of historic character associated with buildings. Over intensification and lack of
adequate on site parking. Potential loss of retail/ employment opportunity.”

WELSH WATER/ DWR CYMRU
No objection, subject to standard notes to applicant

DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL CONSULTEES
Biodiversity Officer
No objection

Conservation Officer
No objection, subject to conditions relating to material details.

Highways Officer
No objection

Housing Officer
No objection. Current figures show a demand for one bedroom accommodation in Prestatyn.

RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY:

In objection

Representations received from:

Alyson Evans, 109 High Street, Prestatyn

Farhar Khan, 4 Abbots Way, Newcastle under Lyme

Page 62



Emma Heath, 99B High Street, Prestatyn
Gary Alexander, 14 Lon Eirlys, Prestatyn
Chris Parry, Hillside House, Prestatyn

Summary of planning based representations in objection:

Overdevelopment of the site

Highways issues- lack of parking

Flats not appropriate for Prestatyn- no need for 1 bed units

Visual amenity- scale of development would have a negative impact on the Conservation area
Access issues to adjacent properties- rights of way concerns

Other matters:
Accuracy of submission- no applicant name on form

EXPIRY DATE OF APPLICATION: 06/05/2014

REASONS FOR DELAY IN DECISION (where applicable):

timing of receipt of representations
delay in receipt of key consultation response(s)

PLANNING ASSESSMENT:
1. THE PROPOSAL:
1.1 Summary of proposals

111

11.2

113

114

115

The application proposes the part redevelopment of no. 105-107 High Street in
Prestatyn. The front section of the existing building is proposed to be retained, and
the existing two storey rear outrigger is proposed to be demolished and replaced. The
demolition element of the scheme is the subject of a separate Conservation Area
Consent application which is the next item on the agenda for Committee.

The ground floor retail unit would be retained and the upper floors of the remaining
original building converted into 3 one bedroom self contained flats. There would be 5
additional flats created in the new three and two storey rear extension.

The proposed extension has been designed to reflect the character of the existing
building with similar fenestration patterns and materials. Two flat roof dormers are
proposed on the original building, on the front and rear elevations, and a new
traditional shopfront is proposed to be installed.

The proposal would create in total 8 one bedroom self contained flats. The internal
floor space of the flats would range between 50 sq m to 67 sq m. The flats would be
accessed from the Kings Avenue side of the building, rather than from the High
Street.

Externally, an existing outbuilding to the rear of the site would be removed to
accommodate an amenity area measuring approximately 95 sq metres. A bin and
bike storage area would be located in a rear yard which would be shared with the
commercial premises on the ground floor. The boundary wall to Kings Avenue would
be retained and three pedestrian gates would be created to access the flats and right
of way to the rear of adjoining properties.

1.2 Description of site and surroundings

121

The site comprises of a ground floor retail premises, formally occupied by the
Blockbuster video shop on the southern end of a terrace of property fronting High
Street in Prestatyn. The upper floors and the outrigger have previously been used in
conjunction with the ground floor use. There is a stone outbuilding in the rear
curtilage.

Page 63



1.2.2 As itis onthe end of the terrace, the building on the site fronts High Street and Kings
Avenue. To the rear of the site (eastern side) are the Kings Avenue public
conveniences. Further along Kings Avenue is the former Council Offices at Ty Nant.

1.2.3 The site is located in the town centre of Prestatyn. The locality is characterised by a
wide range of uses, primarily retail with some residential uses above.

1.3 Relevant planning constraints/considerations
1.3.1 The site is located within the development boundary, Prestatyn Conservation Area
and designated Town Centre.

1.4 Relevant planning history
1.4.1 None.

1.5 Developments/changes since the original submission
1.5.1 The original scheme has been amended on the advice of Officers to ensure the
development meets the floorspace requirements of current Supplementary Planning
Guidance. This resulted in the number of flats being reduced from 9 flats to 8.

1.5.2 The Conservation Officer has also requested some amendments which were mainly
related to the detailing and design of the external appearance of the scheme.

1.6 Other relevant background information
1.6.1 None

DETAILS OF PLANNING HISTORY:
2.1 None.

RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE:

The main planning policies and guidance are considered to be:
Denbighshire Local Development Plan (adopted 4™ June 2013)
Policy RD1 — Sustainable development and good standard design
Policy BSC7 — Houses in multiple occupation and self contained flats
Policy BSC11 — Recreation and open space

Policy PSE8 — Development within town centres

Policy VOE 1 — Key areas of importance

Policy ASA3 — Parking standards

3.1 Supplementary Planning Guidance
SPG7 — Residential Space Standards

3.2 Government Policy / Guidance
Planning Policy Wales Edition 7

MAIN PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS:

In terms of general guidance on matters relevant to the consideration of a planning application,
Planning Policy Wales Edition 7, (PPW) confirms the requirement that planning applications
'should be determined in accordance with the approved or adopted development plan for the
area, unless material considerations indicate otherwise' (Section 3.1.2). PPW advises that
material considerations must be relevant to the regulation of the development and use of land in
the public interest, and fairly and reasonably relate to the development concerned., and that these
can include the number, size, layout, design and appearance of buildings, the means of access,
landscaping, service availability and the impact on the neighbourhood and on the environment
(Sections 3.1.3 and 3.1.4).

Page 64



The following paragraphs in Section 4 of the report therefore refer to the policies of the
Denbighshire Local Development Plan, and to the material planning considerations which are
considered to be of relevance to the proposal.

4.1 The main land use planning issues in relation to the application are considered to be:

4.1.1 Principle

4.1.2 Visual amenity

4.1.3 Residential amenity

4.1.4 Open Space

4.1.5 Highways (including access and parking)
4.1.6 Affordable Housing

4.2 Other matters

4.3 In relation to the main planning considerations:
4.3.1 Principle

The site is located within the development boundary of Prestatyn where new
residential development will, in principle, be supported provided that it meets the
criteria of other policies in the Local Development Plan and material planning
considerations. Policy BSC 7 is the detailed policy relating to Houses in Multiple
Occupation & Self Contained Flats. The policy states that the sub-division of existing
premises to self contained flats will be permitted provided that all the following criteria
are met: i) the property is suitable for conversion to the number and type of flats
proposed without unacceptably affecting the character, appearance and amenity
standards of the locality (including cumulative effects of such proposals); and ii) the
proposal conforms to the Council’s approved space and amenity standards.

SPG Note No. 7 relates to ‘Residential Space Standards’. This Note is one of a series
of Supplementary Planning Guidance Notes (SPGs), amplifying the development plan
policies and other issues with the aim of improving the design and quality in new
developments. It sets basic internal floor and external space standards for new
development and conversions.

Chapter 9 of Planning Policy Wales (PPW) sets out Welsh Government’s objectives in
relation to housing. PPW encourages higher densities on easily accessible sites,
where appropriate, but highlights the importance of good design to ensure a high
quality environment. The need for ‘barrier free housing'’ is also highlighted and the use
of Lifetime Homes Standards is advocated.

Chapter 5 of Technical Advice Note 12: Design highlights the importance of good
design in relation to quality of life and also the importance of inclusive design.

In considering the of principle of change of use, Officers have taken into account the
latest planning policies and guidance. It is considered that the relevant polices  and
guidance do no not preclude the change of use to one bedroom flats in the area,
particularly where the relevant floor space standards have been met as these space
standards have been set to define ‘quality accommodation’. The application is
considered acceptable in principle, and the detailed impacts of this application to
develop the site are considered below.

4.3.2 Visual amenity
Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 test (i) requires due regard to issues of siting,

layout, form, character, design, materials, aspect, microclimate and intensity of use of
land / buildings and spaces between buildings, which are matters relevant to the
visual impact of development; test (vi) requires that development does not
unacceptably affect prominent public views into, out of, or across any settlement or
area of open countryside; test (vi) requires the incorporation of existing landscape or
other features, takes account of site contours, and changes in levels and prominent
skylines; and test (xiii) requires the incorporation of suitable landscaping measures to

Page 65



4.3.3

4.3.4

protect and enhance development in its local context. Local Development Plan Policy
VOE 1 seeks to protect sites of built heritage from development that would adversely
affect them. Planning Policy Wales (Section 6), stresses the importance of protecting
the historic environment, and in relation to Conservation Areas, to ensure they are
protected or enhanced, while at the same time remaining alive and prosperous,
avoiding unnecessarily detailed controls. The basic objective is therefore to preserve
or enhance the character and appearance of a Conservation Area, or its setting.

The application proposes redevelopment of 105-107 High Street. The main changes
are proposed to the rear of the High Street frontage, off Kings Avenue. An existing
two storey outrigger is proposed to be replaced with a three and two storey extension.
The extensions have been designed to take into account the character and
appearance of the existing building and the Conservation area. Prestatyn Town
Council has advised that they are concerned that the proposal would result in the loss
of historic character associated with building but the Conservation Officer has raised
no objection to the proposal.

Having regard to fact the High Street frontage would remain almost as existing and
the rear extension has been sensitively designed it is not considered that the proposal
could be resisted on visual amenity grounds. The Agent has amended the scheme on
the advice of the Conservation Officer and has taken into account the Conservation
Area designation in designing the scheme. Subbet to control over the details such as
materials and fenestration it is considered that the proposals would have an
acceptable visual impact and would not detract from the character or appearance of
the Conservation Area. The proposals are therefore in accordance with the policy
requirements set out above.

Residential amenity

Policy RD1 sets specific tests to be applied to amenity impacts of development. Policy
BSC 7 and SPG 7 also require amenity issues to be considered for proposals to
subdivide properties in to self-contained flats.

In relation to the scale and mass of the proposal in relation to the existing building, it
is noted that it projects some 5.5 metres more to the rear than the existing building.
There are no windows proposed in all elevations except the northern elevation which
abuts neighbouring properties to the north. The flats range in internal floor space from
50 sq metres to 67 sq metres. To the rear of the building it is proposed to provide a
bin store area and external drying area, and a garden and sitting area measuring 95
sq metres. The Town Council have raised concerns relating to ‘over intensification’.

Considering the scale of the development and fenestration detailing it is not
considered it would have a significantly greater impact on the amenity of the adjacent
occupiers than the existing arrangement. In terms of the amenity of potential
occupiers, for 1 bed units, SPG 7 requires a minimum floorspace of 50 sq m, which
the proposal exceeds. The minimum space standards given for living rooms and
bedrooms are also exceeded. The plans indicate the provision of amenity space to
the rear, the level of amenity afforded is considered acceptable. The concerns of the
Town Council in relation to the over intensification of the use of the site are duly
noted. Although the scheme fails to meet the external amenity space requirement of
130 sq metres by 35 sq metres, it is hot considered that this would be unacceptable
having regard to the quality of the space provided, the town centre location and
access to recreational facilities in the locality.

It is considered that a suitable level of amenity would be afforded to future occupiers
of the flats and therefore the proposal complies with Policy RD1, BSC 7 and SPG 7.

Open Space
Local Development Plan Policy BSC 3 seeks to ensure, where relevant, infrastructure

contributions from development. Policy BSC 11 requires proposals for all new
residential development to make a contribution to recreation and open space either
on site, or by provision of a commuted sum.

Page 66



4.3.5

4.3.6

4.3.7

The proposal includes the creation of 8 no. new residential units.

It is considered that the proposals would be acceptable in relation to open space
subject to the requisite contributions being secured. It is considered that this could be
done through an appropriately worded condition.

Highways (including access and parking)

Planning Policy Wales 3.1.4 refers to what may be regarded as material
considerations and that these can include the number, size, layout, design and
appearance of buildings, the means of access, landscaping, service availability and
the impact on the neighbourhood and on the environment. The acceptability of means
of access is therefore a standard test on most planning applications. Policy ASA 3
requires adequate parking spaces for cars and bicycles in connection with
development proposals, and outlines considerations to be given to factors relevant to
the application of standards. These policies reflect general principles set out in
Planning Policy Wales (Section 8) and TAN 18 — Transport, in support of sustainable
development. SPG 21 sets a maximum requirement for parking to be 1.5 spaces per
1 bed dwelling. This is a maximum requirement and mitigating circumstances such as
access to off site parking and provision of public transport will be taken into account.

There is no parking for the existing commercial use and no parking for the proposed
flats. Restricted on street parking is available on the High Street and Kings Avenue.
The site is located within a town centre within walking distance to local shops and
facilities, and a bus and train station. The Head of Highways has raised no objection.
Concerns have however been raised by the Town Council over the lack of parking.

Whilst it is noted that there is no on-site parking for the use, the town centre location
has to be considered, as must the fact the building has no parking as existing. It is the
opinion of Officers that it would be difficult to resist the proposal for parking reasons
alone particularly where planning policies are in place to reduce reliance on the
private car and promote sustainable means of transport. As such it is not considered
that the proposal conflicts with the highways considerations of Policy RD1.

Affordable Housing

Policy BSC3 of the local development plan sets the basic requirement for
development to contribute where relevant to the provision of infrastructure including
affordable housing, in line with Policy BSC4. Policy BSC4 relates specifically to
affordable housing, and requires that all developments of three or more residential
units provide a minimum of 10% affordable housing either onsite on developments of
10 or more units, or by way of a financial contribution on developments of less than
10 units.

The proposal is for the creation of 8 no. residential units, which would generate the
need for an affordable housing contribution in accordance with Policy BSC 4. The
Housing Officer has considered the proposal and raises no objection to the scheme
on the basis that current housing data shows a demand in the area for one bedroom
accommodation and affordable housing.

Having regard to the above it is considered that the proposals would be acceptable in
relation to affordable housing contribution subject to the requisite contributions being
secured. It is considered that this could be done through an appropriately worded
condition.

Other matters:

The accuracy of the forms has been questioned in representations. In Officers
opinion the form has been completed satisfactorily and the relevant certificates
submitted. In the absence of evidence to back up the objectors claims that the forms
are incorrect the Council must accept the Agents claims of ownership.

Page 67



Concerns have been raised by adjacent occupiers of the over rights of way at the rear
of the property. The Agent is aware that a right of way to the adjacent properties to
the north exists and has shown the right of way on the site layout plan. If the
proposed arrangement is not in accordance with the deeds of the adjacent properties
then this matter should be pursued by the relevant parties with the Agent, as this
matter is governed by civil law and is not a material planning consideration.

5. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS:

5.1 In conclusion the proposal is considered acceptable under the relevant policies and therefore

recommended for grant.

RECOMMENDATION: GRANT- subject to the following conditions:-

The development to which this permission relates shall be begun no later than the expiration
of five years beginning with the date of this permission.

PRE-COMMENCEMENT The development shall not begin until arrangements for the
provision of Open Space as part of the development, in accordance with the Council's
Policies and Supplementary Planning Guidance, has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority, and the development shall be carried out strictly in
accordance with the approved arrangments.

PRE-COMMENCEMENT The development shall not begin until arrangements for the
provision of Affordable Housing as part of the development, in accordance with the Council's
Policies and Supplementary Planning Guidance, has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority and the development shall be carried out strictly in
accordance with the approved arrangements.

Notwithstanding the approved plans, no development shall be permitted to commence until
the formal approval of the Local Planning Authority has been obtained for full section details
of the windows and doors including their position in the wall, doors, canopy, rooflights and
shop-front. The windows shall not to have visible trickle vents and shall be painted to an
agreed colour and should not be flush to the elevation. The approved windows and doors
shall be installed as approved and maintained as such thereafter.

Notwithstanding the approved plans all rainwater goods shall be cast aluminium and shall be
maintained as such thereafter.

Notwithstanding the approved plans the rooflight shall be top hung, with vertical glazing bar
and flush to roof and shall be maintained as such thereafter.

There shall be no bell cast render used on the building.

Notwithstanding the approved plans, no development shall be permitted to commence until
the formal approval of the Local Planning Authority has been obtained for the external
materials to be used for the walls and roof materials, and boundary wall and mortar details.
The development shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the approved details.

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the protected species and mitigation
measures submitted to the Local Planning Authority on the 16th July 2014.

The reason(s) for the condition(s) is(are):-

=

To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.
In the interest of compliance with adopted open space policies.o ensure a satisfactory
standard of development for future residents.

In the interest of compliance with adopted affordable housing policies.

In the interest of visual amenity and to protect the character and appearance of the
Conservation Area.

In the interest of visual amenity and to protect the character and appearance of the
Conservation Area.

Page 68



6. In the interest of visual amenity and to protect the character and appearance of the
Conservation Area.

7. In the interest of visual amenity and to protect the character and appearance of the
Conservation Area.

8. In the interest of visual amenity and to protect the character and appearance of the
Conservation Area.

9. In the interests of the protection of biodiversity interests on the site.

NOTES TO APPLICANT:

WELSH WATER Note to Applicant:

Dwr Cymru Welsh Water have advised that some public sewers and lateral drains may not be
recorded on their maps of public sewers because they were originally privately owned and were
transferred into public ownership by nature of the Water Industry (Schemes of Adoption of Private
Sewers) Regulations 2011. The presence of such assets may affect the proposal. In order to assist
Dwr Cymru Welsh Water in dealing with the proposal they request you contact their Operations
Contact Centre on 0800 085 3968 to establish the location and status of the sewer. Under the Water
Industry Act 1991 Dwr Cymru Welsh Water has rights of access to its apparatus at all times.

Page 69



This page is intentionally left blank



CYNGOR Heading:
1 7 REFERENCE NO. 43/2014/0206/CA
‘qj ! Diffn}} J Eh 105-107 HIGH STREET

Denbi ghshire PRESTATYN
v COUNTY COUNCIL

Graham Boase Application Site N
Head of Planning & Public Protection l
Denbighshire County Council Date 27/8/2014 Scale 1/1250

Caledfryn Centre = 306659 E 382863 N

Smithfield Road This plan is intended solely to give an indiction of the LOCATION of
Denbigh the application site which forms the subject of the accompanying report.
Denbighshire LL16 3RJ It does not form any part of the application documents, and should not

be taken as representative of the proposals to be considered, which are

Tel: 01824 706800 Fax: 01824 706709 ) . . . .
available for inspection prior to the meeting.

Cinemna

Council Offices

PRESTATYN

Car Park

War Mernl

Christ Church

“i7, Lych Gate

Scout
HQ

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Surve behalf of # ntroller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office.
© Crown copyright. Unauthorized reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosm il pgocdedings. Denbighshire County Council. 100023408. 2011.

Atgynhyrchir y map hwn o ddeunydd yr Ordnance Survey gyda chaniatad yr Ordnance Survey ar ran Rheolwr Llyfrfa Ei Mawrhydi
© Hawlfraint y Goron. Mae atgynhyrchu heb ganiatad yn torri hawlfraint y Goron a gall hyn arwain at erlyniad neu achos sifil. Cyngor Sir Ddinbych. 100023408. 2011.




| RS

!
H JOE W

EE s

EXISTING
ELEVATIONS

@ l

i

= HEE

EXISTING FRONT ELEVATION

PETER DARLINGTON 1)

ARCHITECTS
INTERIOR DESIGNERS

Exisl
Side

aag rr

™ T s
P
MM

=1
3036

Rgar 11 foom 9
: s 4
% I& Hg Roem § Rpoem &
! 1 | T i Pt j,
i
ftz Relail
A g i s 3 U | ]
EXISTING SECTIONAL ELEVATION
g 0
. O K 26 FEB zuu)
@ E E B S ECE
] ‘ zd v
Mc/\ Ak % :"“ IU?; 107, High Strect
3] @ . Noeth Wales
= T 11— *:—-T(:‘Tﬂ*:?sf:';
= l.' — INTERIOR DESIGNERS Sectional Elcvations
‘&ﬁi ‘36'55/“-05 L
s ‘Hﬂ "ur |70 [:.-a:u

EXISTING REAR ELEVATION

Page 72




Emer O'Connor

ITEM NO: 3

WARD NO: Prestatyn East

WARD MEMBER(S): ClIr James Davies
ClIr Julian Thompson-Hill

APPLICATION NO: 43/2014/0206/ CA

PROPOSAL: Conservation Area Consent for the demolition of a garage
(redevelopment of site subject to separate application - ref:
43/2014/0205)

LOCATION: 105-107 High Street Prestatyn

APPLICANT: JBZ Peels Ltd.

CONSTRAINTS: Conservation Area

PUBLICITY Site Notice — Yes

UNDERTAKEN: Press Notice — Yes

Neighbour letters - No

REASON(S) APPLICATION REPORTED TO COMMITTEE:
Scheme of Delegation Part 2

e Recommendation to grant Town Council objection

CONSULTATION RESPONSES:
PRESTATYN TOWN COUNCIL
“Objection, Loss of historic character associated with buildings. Over intensification and lack of
adequate on site parking. Potential loss of retail/ employment opportunity.”

DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL CONSULTEES
- Conservation Officer
No objection to principle of the redevelopment of the site and redevelopment proposal.

RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY: None.
EXPIRY DATE OF APPLICATION: 06/05/14

REASONS FOR DELAY IN DECISION (where applicable):
o timing of receipt of representations
. delay in receipt of key consultation response(s)

PLANNING ASSESSMENT:
1. THE PROPOSAL:
1.1 Summary of proposals
1.1.1 The application is for Conservation Area Consent for the demolition of part of 105-107
High Street in Prestatyn in connection with a redevelopment scheme for a total of 8
flats. The planning application is the subject of the previous report on the agenda
(43/2014/0205).

1.2 Description of site and surroundings
1.2.1 No. 105-107 comprises of a ground floor retail premises on the southern end of a
terrace of property fronting High Street in Prestatyn. The Upper floors and the
outrigger have previously been used in conjunction with the ground floor use. There is

Page 73



2.

3.

4.

a stone outbuilding in the rear curtilage. The outrigger and stone outbuilding are
proposed to be demolished and therefore the subject of this application.

1.2.2 Asitis onthe end of the terrace, the building on the site fronts High Street and Kings
Avenue. To the rear of the site (eastern side) are the Kings Avenue public
conveniences.

1.2.3 The site is located in the town centre of Prestatyn. The locality is characterised by a
wide range of uses, primarily retail with some residential uses above.

1.3 Relevant planning constraints/considerations
1.3.1 The site lies within the Prestatyn Conservation Area, which runs along the High Street
and includes the block of buildings to the rear of the application site.

1.4 Relevant planning history
1.4.1 None.

1.5 Developments/changes since the original submission
1.5.1 None.

1.6 Other relevant background information
1.6.1 The application is being considered in conjunction with an application for the
redevelopment of the site.

DETAILS OF PLANNING HISTORY:

2.1 There is one recent application of relevance to this proposal:
43/2014/0205 Conversion of upper floors over existing retail unit to form 3 no. flats, demolition
of two storey rear outrigger building and erection of extension to rear to form 5 no. 1 bed flats
and associated works. This is also being considered by Committee.

RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE:

3.1 The main planning policies and guidance are considered to be:
Denbighshire Local Development Plan (adopted 4™ June 2013)
Policy RD1 — Sustainable development and good standard design
Policy VOE 1 — Key areas of importance

3.2 Supplementary Planning Guidance
SPG 13-Conservation Areas

3.3 Government Policy / Guidance
Planning Policy Wales Edition 7
Welsh Government Circular 61/96 Planning and the Historic Environment: Historic Buildings
and Conservation Areas

MAIN PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS:

4.1 The main land use planning issues are considered to be:-
4.1.1 Principle
4.1.2 Other matters

4.2 In relation to the main planning considerations:

4.2.1 Principle
Planning Policy Wales highlights the objective of preserving or enhancing the

character or appearance of a Conservation Area, which can be achieved either by
development which provides a positive contribution to the Conservation Area
character and appearance or development which leaves character and appearance
unharmed. Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 test (i) requires due regard to issues

Page 74



of siting, layout, form, character, design, materials, aspect, microclimate and intensity
of use of land / buildings and spaces between buildings, which are matters relevant to
the visual impact of development; test (vi) requires that development does not
unacceptably affect prominent public views into, out of, or across any settlement or
area of open countryside; test (vi) requires the incorporation of existing landscape or
other features, takes account of site contours, and changes in levels and prominent
skylines; and test (xiii) requires the incorporation of suitable landscaping measures to
protect and enhance development in its local context. Local Development Plan Policy
VOE 1 seeks to protect sites of built heritage from development that would adversely
affect them. This policy is supported by Supplementary Planning Guidance Note SPG
13 — Conservation Areas. SPG 13, paragraph 7.1 states that ‘Development should
not detract from the character and appearance of the designated area’, and mentions
a high standard of design required for development in Conservation Areas.

As part of the pre-application discussions, the alteration, extension and re-use of the
building was considered. It was noted that this could be done, however the result
would be an awkward design which may not achieve the modern standards of
accommodation, building regulations standards etc. It is argued that the rear of the
building on the site makes no positive contribution to the Conservation Area and that
the redevelopment scheme would enhance the character of the conservation area.
The Conservation Officer has been consulted on the proposal and has raised no
objection to the principle of the demolition of the buildings and redevelopment of the
site.

In this context, Officers acknowledge the concerns of Town Council on the loss of
historic character but consider it would be difficult to justify withholding consent for
demolition. The proposal would not conflict with policies RD1, VOE 1 and PPW.

4.2.2 Other matters
Town Council comments on over-intensification, parking and loss of retail use are
considered under the corresponding planning application.

5. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS:

5.1 The proposal is considered acceptable under the relevant policies and guidance and is
recommended for grant subject to planning conditions.

RECOMMENDATION: GRANT- subject to the following conditions:-

1. The development to which this permission relates shall be begun no later than the expiration
of five years beginning with the date of this permission.
2. No demolition shall be permitted to take place until the Local Planning Authority's approval

has been obtained to the detailed plans of the redevelopment, and demolition shall only be
permitted to commence once a contract is in place for the redevelopment, and the demolition
shall only be carried out as part of the implementation of the redevelopment scheme.

The reasons for the conditions are:-
1. To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2. To ensure demolition works are only carried out as part of the implementation of the planning
consent for the redevelopment of the site.

Page 75



This page is intentionally left blank



CYNGOR Heading:

. * REFERENCE NO. 43/2014/0250/PF
S’Jr 'Ddlnb Eh 55 PENDRE AVENUE

Denbi ghshire PRESTATYN
v COUNTY COUNCIL

Graham Boase Application Site N
Head of Planning & Public Protection l
Denbighshire County Council Date 27/8/2014 Scale 1/1250

Caledfryn Centre = 307211 E 382422 N

Smithfield Road

This plan is intended solely to give an indiction of the LOCATION of

the application site which forms the subject of the accompanying report.
It does not form any part of the application documents, and should not
Tel: 01824 706800 Fax: 01824 706709 be Faken as r'eprese.ntatlv'e of the propogals to be considered, which are
available for inspection prior to the meeting.

Denbigh
Denbighshire LL16 3RJ

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Surve behalf of ntroller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office.
© Crown copyright. Unauthorized reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosm (o] €l pocgedings. Denbighshire County Council. 100023408. 2011.

Atgynhyrchir y map hwn o ddeunydd yr Ordnance Survey gyda chaniatad yr Ordnance Survey ar ran Rheolwr Llyfrfa Ei Mawrhydi
© Hawlfraint y Goron. Mae atgynhyrchu heb ganiatad yn torri hawlfraint y Goron a gall hyn arwain at erlyniad neu achos sifil. Cyngor Sir Ddinbych. 100023408. 2011.




4372006 /0250/PF

ProPoSED

SITE PLAN

. b e 6 aaes A mmeem e mmm— emns
- e — —
) E— s @ m—

eqs - : m.\&u.m.u

2 evf Y MY A0 .

.}x\r«k&wé&r\r 2
Tarnany avevzL $6

Page 78



7 ‘55 PENDRE AVENUE,PRESTATYN.

T e

S
G____ DAt L L S i [F‘tWSEUPLANi

—
|
I ;
] Bathroom | \ri
+
I 5
i Kitchen ’\ Bedroom 2
Scale: 450 | ' | m
I —
]
| yd /
! o g c—
]
| Y4IRN
]
-
b P Bedroom 1 Lounge
' /“
! ’
1 /
[
i : // _
I
Garage m

[ Existing Layout

43 2014710250/PF
PROPO
s ._.._...._.___._._._._._._._.m Mﬂ_

Bathroom

. 7 1|\=E

fistn A N

Bedroom 3 /}

IR 55 PENDRE AVENUE,PRESTATYN,
RECE Propeged GF Layout
e Revgigea
CALEDFR;'N 8184450



Trupused

Side Elevations)

m
f:
g
&

SE| | i) PR i
—_—
SFEHDNE AVENUE, PRESTATYR,

Scole:'i-s-

/Ree .
Proposed Rear Elevation

<3

L 1ot/
a2t




EMISTWG ELEVATIONS

437 W% 702507 PF

55 PENDRE AVENUE
PRESTATYN

N W

Il'll“'u,’

Existing
Side Elevations

:ale :4-50 -

L — —— —— - __'—-\
CTTITLT
e S

Rear e I

Page 81




Emer O'Connor

ITEM NO: 4
WARD NO: Prestatyn East
WARD MEMBER(S): ClIr James Davies
ClIr Julian Thompson-Hill
APPLICATION NO: 43/2014/0250/ PF
PROPOSAL: Erection of a single-storey extension to rear of dwelling with

alterations to roof and dormer window to side elevation to provide
accommodation in roofspace

LOCATION: 55 Pendre Avenue Prestatyn
APPLICANT: MrGeoff Wray
CONSTRAINTS: None

PUBLICITY Site Notice — No
UNDERTAKEN: Press Notice — No

Neighbour letters - Yes

REASON(S) APPLICATION REPORTED TO COMMITTEE:
Scheme of Delegation Part 2

e Recommendation to grant — Town Council objection
e Recommendation to grant / approve — 4 or more objections received

CONSULTATION RESPONSES:
PRESTATYN TOWN COUNCIL
“Proposed roof height exceeds existing build height. Privacy of adjoining neighbours seriously
affected”.

RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY:
In objection
Representations received from:
Mrs Michelle Adams, 57 Pendre Avenue, Prestatyn
Mr & Mrs P Jones, 57a Pendre Avenue, Prestatyn
Mrs L Wistow-Hughes, 48 Linden Walk, Prestatyn
Mrs B Gee, 15 Linden Drive, Prestatyn

Summary of planning based representations in objection:

Visual amenity- Overdevelopment, extension out of scale with dwelling
Residential amenity- Overlooking would result in loss of privacy for adjacent occupiers

In support:
Amanda Dallimore, 53 Pendre Avenue

Summary of planning based representations in support:
No objection. neighbours looking forward to dwelling being occupied.

EXPIRY DATE OF APPLICATION: 07/09/2014

Page 82



REASONS FOR DELAY IN DECISION (where applicable):

. awaiting consideration by Committee

PLANNING ASSESSMENT:
1. THE PROPOSAL:
1.1 Summary of proposals
1.1.1 Planning permission is sought for the erection of extensions at 55 Pendre Avenue in
Prestatyn. The application comprises of an extension to the rear, and alterations to
the existing roof in the form of a gable to the rear and a roof light to the side.

1.1.2 The pitched roof rear extension would project 5 metres to the rear and measure 7
metres in width, it would be set off each side boundary by 0.3 metres. The overall
height would be 5.9 metres. Windows are proposed on the rear of the extension on
the ground and first floor. The extension would comprise of a kitchen extension on the
ground floor, with a bedroom in the first floor/loft space.

1.1.3 The roof alterations are proposed to accommodate the loft conversion, and link to the
extension. The dormer is proposed on the western roof plane with three rooflights.

1.1.4 The proposals are illustrated on the plans at the front of the report.
1.2 Description of site and surroundings

1.2.1 No. 55 Pendre Avenue is a detached residential bungalow located in a residential
area of Prestatyn.

1.2.2 The site slopes down from east to west with the neighbouring property at no. 57 being
set at a higher level and the property at no. 53 being set at a lower level. There is an
existing single storey extension to the rear of no. 53. The site also slopes down from
front to rear.

1.3 Relevant planning constraints/considerations
1.3.1 The site is within the development boundary of Prestatyn as defined by the Local
Development Plan.

1.4 Relevant planning history

1.4.1 There is some planning history on the site, in July 2013 Planning permission was
refused for a single storey extension contrary to Officers’ recommendation. The
reason for refusal issued was as follows;
‘In the opinion of the Local Planning Authority, the proposed extension would have an
unacceptable impact on the residential amenities of the occupiers of adjacent
dwellings at 57 Pendre Avenue and 53 Pendre Avenue by virtue of its projection and
scale, which would appear overpowering, and contrary to Policy RD1 (i) of the
Denbighshire Local Development Plan and guidance in Supplementary Guidance
Note No. 1 relating to the detailing of extensions.’
This decision was the subject of a planning appeal which was allowed in December
2013.

1.4.2 A subsequent planning application was made in October 2013 for a single storey
extension. This was granted Planning permission by Committee in December 2013.

1.5 Developments/changes since the original submission
1.5.1 The original application has been amended slightly on the advice of Officers. The
height of the ridgeline has been reduced, and the extension has been set off the
boundaries.

1.6 Other relevant background information

Page 83



1.6.1 None.

2. DETAILS OF PLANNING HISTORY:
2.1 Planning Ref 43/2013/0203 Erection of single storey extension to rear of dwelling REFUSED
at Planning Committee 24/07/2013. ALLOWED on appeal 12/2013.

2.2 Planning Ref 43/2013/1353 43/2013/0203 Erection of single storey extension to rear of
dwelling. GRANTED at Planning Committee 11/12/2013.

3. RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE:
The main planning policies and guidance are considered to be:
3.1 Denbighshire Local Development Plan (adopted 4™ June 2013)
Policy RD 1 - Sustainable Development and Good Standard of Design
Policy RD 3 — Extensions and alterations to dwellings

3.2 Supplementary Planning Guidance
SPG 1 — Extensions to Dwellings
SPG 7 — Residential Space Standards
SPG 24 — Householder Development Design Guide

3.3 Government Policy / Guidance
Planning Policy Wales Edition 7

3.4 Other material considerations
None.

4. MAIN PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS:

In terms of general guidance on matters relevant to the consideration of a planning application,
Planning Policy Wales Edition 7 confirms the requirement that planning applications 'should be
determined in accordance with the approved or adopted development plan for the area, unless
material considerations indicate otherwise' (Section 3.1.2). PPW advises that material
considerations must be relevant to the regulation of the development and use of land in the public
interest, and fairly and reasonably relate to the development concerned., and that these can
include the number, size, layout, design and appearance of buildings, the means of access,
landscaping, service availability and the impact on the neighbourhood and on the environment
(Sections 3.1.3 and 3.1.4).

The following paragraphs in Section 4 of the report therefore refer to the policies of the
Denbighshire Local Development Plan, and to the material planning considerations which are
considered to be of relevance to the proposal.

4.1 The main land use planning issues in relation to the application are considered to be:

4.1.1 Principle

4.1.2 Visual amenity
4.1.3 Residential amenity

4.2 In relation to the main planning considerations:
4.2.1 Principle

The principle of extensions to existing dwellings is generally acceptable in terms of
current policies, subject to consideration of detailing and impacts. Policy RD 3 relates
specifically to extensions to dwellings and permits extensions subject to the
acceptability of scale and form; design and materials; the impact upon character,
appearance, and amenity standards of the dwelling and its immediate locality; and
whether the proposal represents overdevelopment of the site. SPG 1 and SPG 24
offer basic advice on the principles to be adopted when designing domestic
extensions and related developments. The assessment of impacts is set out in the

Page 84



422

4.2.3

following sections.

Visual amenity
Criteria i) of Policy RD 1 requires that development respects the site and

surroundings in terms of siting, layout, scale, form, character, design, materials,
aspect, micro-climate and intensity of use of land/buildings and spaces around and
between buildings. Criteria i) of Policy RD 3 requires the scale and form of the
proposed extension or alteration to be subordinate to the original dwelling, or the
dwelling as it was 20 years before the planning application is made. Criteria ii) of
Policy RD 3 requires that proposals are sympathetic in design, scale, massing and
materials to the character and appearance of the existing building.

The application proposes an extension to the rear of the dwelling which would project
out 5 metres and have a footprint of approximately 35 sq metres. The existing
dwelling has a footprint of over 75 sq metres. The sides of the extension would be set
back from the sides of the original dwelling by 0.3 metres. The ridgeline of the
extension would be set down from the main ridge height of the dwelling by 0.3
metres. There is a mix of dwelling types in the area, including brick bungalows, and
dormer style and two storey dwellings. Concerns have been raised by the Town
Council and in representations over the scale of the extension.

The proposed extension is located to the rear of the property and would not be visible
from most public viewpoints. In Officers opinion the extension would be subordinate
to the original dwelling and the scale and massing takes into account the design and
form of the dwelling, reflecting its features and materials. There is a mix of
development in the vicinity of the site where some dwellings have had rear
extensions, including an extension at no. 53 Pendre Avenue which projects some 4.8
metres to the rear of the dwelling. Hence it is considered that the proposal would
comply with tests i) and ii) of Policy RD 3 and advice within the supplementary
planning guidance.

Residential amenity

Test vi) of Policy RD 1 requires that proposals do not unacceptably affect the amenity
of local residents and land users and provide satisfactory amenity standards itself.
Test iii) of Policy RD 3 seeks to ensure that proposals to extend dwellings do not
harm the amenity of the dwelling by way of overdevelopment of the site. Planning
Policy Wales 3.1.4 refers to the impact on the neighbourhood as a material
consideration, the impact of a development on residential amenity is therefore a
relevant test on planning applications.

Over 250 sgq metres of amenity space would remain if the extension was permitted.
The sides of the extension would be set back 0.3 metres from the side elevations of
the dwelling and the ridgeline is set down 0.3 metres from the existing dwelling.
Windows are proposed to serve the kitchen at ground floor level and the bedroom at
first floor level at the rear, and the side dormer would serve a hallway between the
bedroom and wc on the first floor. Owing to the sloping nature of land, the dwelling to
the west is at a lower level and the dwelling to the east is at a higher level. No. 55 has
a garden depth of approximately 27 metres. Concerns have been raised in
representations that there would be overlooking and loss of privacy as a result of the
extensions.

It is noted that there would be over the recommended 40 sq metres amenity space
remaining for the proposed occupiers of the dwelling should the extension be
permitted. Considering the distances to the dwellings to the north on Linden Avenue
and the design of the extension in relation to neighbouring gardens to the east and
west, the extension would not result in a loss of light or privacy for adjacent occupiers.
This level of ‘back to back’ separation more than meets the recommended back to
side separation distances of 21 metres set out in supplementary planning guidance.
Whilst there is a side dormer window proposed in the western side elevation, the

Page 85



dormer serves a hall. The proposal is therefore considered to comply with test iii) of
Policy RD 3 and separation distance advice within supplementary planning guidance.

5. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS:

5.1 The dwelling has had planning permission for substantial extensions in 2013 which were
considered by Planning Committee and the Planning Inspectorate. The main difference
between this proposal and previously approved extensions is the roof alteration. With respect
to the comments of the Town Council and the representations, Officers do not consider there
are grounds to justify a refusal of permission in this instance. Hence it is the opinion of
Officers that the proposal is acceptable and is recommended for grant.

RECOMMENDATION: GRANT- subject to the following conditions:-

1. The development to which this permission relates shall be begun no later than the expiration
of five years beginning with the date of this permission.
2. The materials and finishes of the external surfaces of the walls and roof of the building hereby

permitted shall be of the same texture, type and colour as those on external walls and the roof
of the existing building.

3. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 1995 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that order with or without
modification) no windows additional to those shown on the approved plans shall be inserted
at any time in the extension hereby permitted, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.

The reason(s) for the condition(s) is(are):-

1. To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.
2. In the interests of visual amenity.
3. To maintain a reasonable standard of privacy in adjoining dwellings and gardens in the

interests of amenity

NOTES TO APPLICANT:

WELSH WATER Note to Applicant:

Dwr Cymru Welsh Water have advised that some public sewers and lateral drains may not be
recorded on their maps of public sewers because they were originally privately owned and were
transferred into public ownership by nature of the Water Industry (Schemes of Adoption of Private
Sewers) Regulations 2011. The presence of such assets may affect the proposal. In order to assist
Dwr Cymru Welsh Water in dealing with the proposal they request you contact their Operations
Contact Centre on 0800 085 3968 to establish the location and status of the sewer. Under the Water
Industry Act 1991 Dwr Cymru Welsh Water has rights of access to its apparatus at all times.

Page 86



CYNGOR Heading:

. * REFERENCE NO. 45/2014/0617/AC
Sr]r Ddlnb_ych 23 MARINE DRIVE

Denbighshire RHYL

o= g
COUNTY COUNCIT.

Graham Boase Application Site N
Head of Planning & Public Protection l
Denbighshire County Council Date 27/8/2014 Scale 1/1250

Caledfryn Centre = 301774 E 382276 N

Smithfield Road This plan is intended solely to give an indiction of the LOCATION of
Denbigh the application site which forms the subject of the accompanying report.
Denbighshire LL16 3RJ It does not form any part of the application documents, and should not

be taken as representative of the proposals to be considered, which are

Tel: 01824 706800 Fax: 01824 706709 ) . . ) .
available for inspection prior to the meeting.

e yal

/ Tk

4

11220

Marina
Apartments

e //;\\7\\\ \\ «/\ﬂ K\ " (\X\r

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Surve behalf of ntroller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office.
© Crown copyright. Unauthorized reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosm (o] ERil fedings. Denbighshire County Council. 100023408. 2011.

Atgynhyrchir y map hwn o ddeunydd yr Ordnance Survey gyda chaniatad yr Ordnance Survey ar ran Rheolwr Llyfrfa Ei Mawrhydi
© Hawlfraint y Goron. Mae atgynhyrchu heb ganiatad yn torri hawlfraint y Goron a gall hyn arwain at erlyniad neu achos sifil. Cyngor Sir Ddinbych. 100023408. 2011.




Ny ..h.n.w,.m x

N

oyod

Tonaano s [/ _

4

vy N3 T (N3 ams | ([ o : T
- s \.-un_u. 333»3 __ Qﬁhug& | — Dm—”F mogu .—.mmE
N o G0, ST GIYTINY / g ____
noes . h || =93z,
MNZ'I- B e 2
- % [ ti BN € N
a “ il PRI POId U D ST
. B o FAEHRLNDW PHE HAJTWS GRIRITD
o~ M ., L awma 1.1 1/ Wl ap1dy TN, 9 6! e 1
T L === L _ | Ry G 21 DD J50) 1 & S5VIH
< M PG T4 LI UGS SR HEWEE 0N [\ ey 9 T 10 panizg; o4 § sosisrg
VRID JU 0 Q0 TSTTT PIABIS O
S > dudd~ 290 ~1AHY 3ANG 3NV EZ GIJI AUTADG G i 1 a%ﬁ.ﬁwm.ﬁ d0 IO Al £ NI GNP
n E Tl 934 e, EHYSTXT PV D20 00! JUH W 2 a- — MGy VTR I IO
= STAUT) gt TS G907 — 2 =
W E 3 I M SIS VU RN T Spmpaane I By sy — __ .
i G P f
[F=]=> Gt —Y_
A ‘ / _|.|. _ | _ ! a_:.atw o g
oowi 3aiS 5 U SY 1 {lonigsig) . 15D Busssap
L M . 03, vy [ Wwom puls
ey [OOR AV L i O S natguion
_]_.w o 1§ soatqey anysng |
= g : YR LRI, e
TEaaataisaaciis ) [= ] % L,.ir m:ﬁ.:m l J
] ] I | :
L3y i !
_ i - woeipaq
4 ITTT SSENS W _ CE , LI £ W {03
=== e R e T _ ; B IR 7= il B e Lol P L
S _ ; m GHUIMRIOL M ._Sﬂ.sm Wil .na..&
spap oy \ueE PR ' ! CRqqO7 |8 TIYL TS Of GHIZO)
GHINDR JIIc pve) Wy ! 4‘
||_ * 1
ATmy pmaigy s o as...m %n_n_c_ m///.
\uﬁuﬁuﬁ;ﬂ#:;.&.&&? - | N
sioqw aMIPIG PRI JY TGN T _a - ‘
siant el I | o2Ig
== i w00y 0q
TPRET
£R20) TA)IS PO SARAZION WO
Qaﬁ\:n&.xsu Ny a“.:.h\ absirs G §N~Eﬂ \P‘auaﬂ _Td a !
/ GIMRYC Yo PRy 99 g R T AL .
dovt Jais \ O WiImAT TIPS ASOM O GMIZY M | _ _ _
i1l
YRR SN ST / _ _
L e | -— -
/ 1 |
! Aprys
bJ5 PATI0 PV GTIVIDI0
ﬂj d a3s Yiow g 76 ey D o) * ~ :
3 ARG} D 1 1]
rir.._b mz | _“.Iun.u__.e h&%ﬁﬂ%ﬁ&aﬁ\u@ﬂuhtzﬁt .—.}.— C_C_—u
J R A2 2 G NG
mﬂﬂat .._.&_m_:% ey 3

JerhoRpy

g

Hﬂ—_ﬁﬂ.&‘u&
1

Lnnn

it

Page 88



i RS

GALY - VS

=Y
CHG

LE 2014610617/ AC
SCREEN
DETAIL

Ty s T
QL. SxEFEs A P
IRVEL A Y SAEREITN

P LU N2

A e

GV TEE

“\

/TN

714

N
X

YPILSNATT SV EDLSEIN
WO OFNZIO 20 AL Ry
TP 2N SIS T

— o

VWl L ATOXST  SEL 17
..nan ,..\.,.ﬂ VSIS SRS o .
o/ c,.ww.._\ AIEATUS SEFGRT e
&
ZRN=D QUPLL 2D AXYTT L
S A R - R R X
SRV IISUy S EIEIM
SWILHAS ML FL JIPUATS
DG A} DINGH R

[T e e e e |

1

sy

D

RGN
¢ \

A

Ja
|
m.

pa.ll_.v};
-4 SV

e - -l
%

G GG Loty
TRBENGH v SR

Lt
T Loy

L B BCRE I B9

U,
PeFR

- P Lo S VN |

S u

Al

I 2 YNTT7F

.

]

\

\

A\

ZZ

ALYy g

1=

o ey
e

=1 T

"

J.

|
|

N\

Page 89




CRANK BOLT
DETAIL




lan Weaver

ITEM NO: 5
WARD NO: Rhyl East
WARD MEMBER(S): Clir Barry Mellor
Clir David Simmons
APPLICATION NO: 45/2014/0617/ AC
PROPOSAL: Details of proposed screen to prevent access from existing

balcony to flat roof area submitted in accordance with condition
no. 5 of planning permission code no. 45/2013/0805

LOCATION: Shirley 23 Marine Drive Rhyl
APPLICANT: Mr Russell Moffatt
CONSTRAINTS: None

PUBLICITY Site Notice — No
UNDERTAKEN: Press Notice — No

Neighbour letters - Yes

REASON(S) APPLICATION REPORTED TO COMMITTEE:
Scheme of Delegation Part 2

e Referral by Head of Planning / Development Control Manager
e Member request
RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY:

Neighbouring occupiers were consulted on the plans given the background history.

In objection
Mr. S and Mrs J. Soudagar, Ardmore, 24 Marine Drive, Rhyl.

Summary of planning based representations in objection :
Screen would not prevent access to the flat roof area as required by January 2011 permission /
should be a permanent structure / Council should enforce previous conditions
EXPIRY DATE OF APPLICATION: 14/07/2014
REASONS FOR DELAY IN DECISION:
. awaiting consideration by Committee
PLANNING ASSESSMENT:

1. THE PROPOSAL:
1.1 Summary of proposals

1.1.1 The application is one of two on the agenda relating to developments at the rear of this
three storey property on Marine Drive in Rhyl.

1.1.2 This report contains details of a screen to be erected on part of a first floor balcony / flat
roof area at the rear of the dwelling. This is an approval of condition application

Page 91



113

114

following the grant of planning permission and is brought to Committee at the request of
local members having regard to the background history at the site.

The requirement for approval of the screen detailing arises from a condition imposed on
a planning permission granted in November 2013 for developments at first floor level at
the rear of the property. This included a lobby extension, a staircase down to ground
floor level, and a balustrade to limit access to the remainder of the first floor flat roof
area. The application was determined at Planning Committee.

The condition in question was No. 5 and is worded as follows:

Notwithstanding the submitted plans, the detailing of the screen to be erected to
prevent access from the existing balcony onto the adjacent area of flat roof shall not be
as shown, but shall be a 1.5 metre high screen in accordance with such alternative
detailing as may be submitted to, and approved by the Local Planning Authority within
two months of t he date of this permission, and the approved scheme shall be
implemented in its entirety no later than 6 months from the commencement of the
development permitted by this permission. The approved screen shall be retained at all
times thereafter.

The reason for Condition 5 was :
“In order to ensure the screen is of sufficient height to restrict access to the flat roof area, and

115

1.2

1.2.1

1.2.2

123

1.2.4

in the interests of the privacy/amenity of the occupiers of nearby properties”.

The details of the screen are in the plan at the front of the report. The applicant explains
in the covering letter that the screen is to be of wooden sections within a metal frame
similar to the existing handrails, and will be supported on wheels to allow the panel to
be opened in emergency situations from the lobby side. The plans show the screen
would be 1.4 m high and secured with a clasp which can only be released from the
lobby side (i.e. not the balcony). Additional clarification has been sought in relation to
the clasp detailing, which is in the form of a crank bolt, illustrated in the plans at the
front of the report.

Description of site and surroundings

The subject property is a three-storey mid-terraced house which fronts the beach and
promenade in Rhyl on Marine Drive. It is abutted by a house to the east, No.24 Marine
Drive, and by flats at No 22 Marine Drive. Properties within the area are used for a
variety of residential accommodation including houses and flats, with the rear curtilage
of the properties in the block (19 to 26) used for amenity space and also parking, which
is accessed via a rear alleyway.

There has been a first floor balcony area at the rear of No. 23 for some years. A
planning permission was granted in early 2011 for a single storey flat roof extension at
the side of the property. This was conditioned to prevent use of the flat roof area in
order to limit the overlooking of the rear of No 22.

The adjacent property at 24 Marine Drive has a swimming pool in the rear garden and
has a two-storey flat-roofed rear projection along the side boundary to 23 Marine Drive,
with a main window on the rear elevation facing south.

The adjacent property at 22 Marine Drive has a rear yard area which is divided into
three areas for use by the ground floor, first floor and second floor flats, with the ground
floor unit facing the side blank wall of the single-storey extension added to the rear of
23 Marine Drive. The property at 22 Marine Drive has rear facing bedroom doors and
windows and the upper floors also have rear and side facing windows; and there is a
rear stairway down from first floor level at the back of Nos. 21 / 22.

Page 92



1.3 Relevant planning constraints/considerations

1.3.1 There are no designations or allocations in the Local Development Plan of relevance to
the application.

1.4 Relevant planning history

1.4.1 The site has an extensive planning history as set out in Section 2 of this report. It
includes a number of applications to alter and extend at the rear of the property.

1.4.2 The most recent applications of relevance are one granted in January 2011 for the
retention of a single storey flat roofed extension with a flat roof infill, one refused in
June 2013 for a conservatory at first floor level on top of the flat roof area, and one
granted on November 2013 for a first floor lobby extension, stairway and barrier to
prevent access onto the flat roof area.

1.4.3 The relevance of the 2013 permission for the lobby, screen, and staircase is that it
effectively ‘overrides’ the earlier permission in 2011 for the retention of the flat roof
extension. For the record, the approved plan in the November 2013 permission
contained the following notation in relation to the screen to be provided -

‘ Between flat roof area and existing balcony fit 1m high balcony railing to prevent
access onto flat roof area. Barrier to be secured in place to prevent access to flat roof
area but to have facility to be retracted for use in an emergency situation and
maintenance access only’.

A copy of the plan approved in November 2013 is included at the front of the report.

In addition to Condition 5 quoted in paragraph 1.1.3 of the report, the November 2013
permission contained the following conditions relating to the detailing of the lobby
extension and the use of the flat roof area over the side extension:

“3. There shall be no external door openings in the lobby structure.

4.The roof area annotated in red on the plan attached to this permission shall not be
used at any time as a balcony, roof garden or amenity area in connection with the
dwelling”.

Members may appreciate from the above that the November 2013 permission contains
quite specific controls over the development to preclude the use of the remaining
section of the first floor flat roof extension, in conjunction with the requirement for
approval of the details of the screen.

1.5 Developments/changes since the original submission
1.5.1 The applicant has submitted an additional drawing to clarify the detailing of the
proposed clasp / bolt arrangement on the screen, to demonstrate that it would only be
accessible from the flat roof area in an emergency, and not from the balcony side.

1.6 Other relevant background information
1.6.1 The next application on the agenda, Code no. 01/2014/0924 proposes amendments to
the scheme granted planning permission in November 2013, but has to be determined
on its own merits entirely separate from this application relating to the screen detailing.

2. DETAILS OF PLANNING HISTORY:
2.1 2/RYL/518/78 - Erection of a fire escape for flatlets: Granted 07/11/1978.

2/RYL/0190/90/P - Continuation of use of building as 4 flats and extension to rear:
Withdrawn 03/12/1990.

2/RYL/0176/93/P - Construction of dormer at rear to form new bathroom/bedroom (Flat 2):
Granted 22 June 1993.

Page 93



45/2007/1511 - Erection of two-storey flat-roofed extension with balconies at rear of
premises and provision of new steel staircase: Refused 14/03/2008 on the grounds of the
impact on the adjacent occupiers due to the scale, massing, height and siting of the
extensions with balconies above which would have a detrimental impact on the amenity and
privacy of the adjacent occupiers.

45/2008/0694 - Erection of two-storey extension with balcony at rear of dwelling: Refused
04/09/2008 on the same grounds as the refusal of 45/2007/1511.

45/2008/1356 - Erection of single-storey flat roof extension to rear: Withdrawn 30/04/2009.

45/2009/1003 - Application for a Certificate of Lawfulness for the proposed erection of single
storey flat roof extension to side of dwelling: Certificate issued 13/07/2010.

45/2010/1360 - Retention of single-storey flat-roofed extension but with flat roof infill over
open porch and handrail over to match existing balcony deck (Retrospective application):
Granted 19/01/2011. The permission contained conditions precluding use of the flat roof
area nearest No 22 as a balcony, roof garden, or amenity area ; and required approval of
the detailing of a screen to prevent access from the balcony area onto the aforementioned
flat roof area, and the details of Juliet balconies to prevent access from external doors onto
that area.

45/2011/0532 - Details of screen and Juliet balconies to prevent access on to the side
extension flat roof submitted in accordance with retrospective planning permission
45/2010/1360: Refused 08/08/2011 on the grounds that the proposed screening would not
prevent access to the flat roof and therefore did not remove the possibility of the overlooking
of the adjoining property at 22 Marine Drive.

45/2013/0520/PF - Construction of first-floor conservatory extension and privacy screen and
construction of external staircase from balcony to garden area: Refused 3 June 2013 for the
following reason:

“It is the opinion of the Local Planning Authority that the scale, massing, height and siting of
the proposed first-floor conservatory on top of the existing single-storey rear extension, and
use of the flat roof area adjacent to the proposed conservatory as a balcony would result in
a detrimental impact on the amenity of the adjacent occupiers, by virtue of overlooking, loss
of privacy and overbearing impact. As such, the proposal is contrary to Criterion v) of Policy
GEN 6 and Criterion iii) of Policy HSG 12 of the adopted Denbighshire Unitary Development
Plan, along with the guidance set out in the Council's adopted Supplementary Planning

"y

Guidance 1'Extensions to Dwellings'.

45/2013/0805 - Erection of lobby extension at first floor level, staircase from first floor
balcony to rear garden, and balustrade to limit access to first floor flat roof area ; and
widening of existing doorway from kitchen onto existing balcony: Granted 13 November
2013. Conditions attached precluding the provision of external door openings out onto the
flat roof area and the use of the flat roof area as a balcony, roof garden, or amenity area in
connection with the dwelling; and requiring approval of the detailing of the balustrade
/screen.

3. RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE:
The main planning policies and guidance are considered to be:
3.1 DENBIGHSHIRE LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN (adopted 4™ June 2013)
Policy RD 1 Sustainable development and good standard design
Policy RD 3 Extensions and alterations to existing dwellings

3.2 Supplementary Planning Guidance
SPG 1 Extensions to dwellings

Page 94



SPG 24 Householder development design guide

3.3 GOVERNMENT POLICY / GUIDANCE
Planning Policy Wales Edition 7 July 2014
Technical Advice Notes

MAIN PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS:

In terms of general guidance on matters relevant to the consideration of a planning application,
Planning Policy Wales Edition 7, 2014 (PPW) confirms the requirement that planning applications
'should be determined in accordance with the approved or adopted development plan for the
area, unless material considerations indicate otherwise' (Section 3.1.2). PPW advises that
material considerations must be relevant to the regulation of the development and use of land in
the public interest, and fairly and reasonably relate to the development concerned., and that these
can include the number, size, layout, design and appearance of buildings, the means of access,
landscaping, service availability and the impact on the neighbourhood and on the environment
(Sections 3.1.3 and 3.1.4).

The following paragraphs in Section 4 of the report therefore refer to the policies of the
Denbighshire Local Development Plan, and to the material planning considerations which are
considered to be of relevance to the proposal.

4.1 The main land use planning issues are considered to be:
4.1.1 The acceptability of the detailing of the privacy screen

4.2 In relation to the main planning considerations:

4.2.1 The acceptability of the detailing of the privacy screen

The sole issue to be determined in relation to this approval of condition submission is whether
the details of the screen are acceptable having regard to the reason for the imposition of
condition 5, i.e. “In order to ensure the screen is of sufficient height to restrict access to the
flat roof area, and in the interests of the privacy/amenity of the occupiers of nearby
properties”. The application is not an opportunity to reopen discussion on the merits of the
extension and stairway granted in November 2013, or the backhistory of issues at the site.

Having regard to the above —

- ‘In order to ensure the screen is of sufficient height to restrict access to the flat roof area’
The height of the screen to be locked in place across the balcony area is indicated at 1.4
metres on the submitted plan. Officers suggest this should be 1.6 metres in order to
provide an effective visual screen. This would be of adequate height to prevent users of
the balcony simply climbing over it to access the flat roof area in front of the proposed
lobby extension. The inclusion of a clasp arrangement accessible on the flat roof side
would help to make the removal of the screen difficult from the balcony side.

- ‘inthe interests of the privacy / amenity of the occupiers of nearby properties’
The placement of a 1.6m screen across the balcony, with a securing clasp to lock it in
place would provide a clear physical barrier limiting the overlooking potential from the
existing balcony area of No 23 towards the side / rear of No. 22 Marine Drive, and in
preventing access onto the first floor flat roof area immediately adjacent to the rear of No
22, would restrict opportunity for overlooking from that area.

In respecting the comments of the neighbours at No 24, the matter now before the
Council is solely the acceptability of the detailing of the screen in terms of Condition 5 of
the November 2013 permission. The implementation of the November 2013 permission
would effectively override the January 2011 consent, and it would then not be
appropriate for the Council to pursue enforcement against non compliance with the
terms of that earlier consent. Should the November 2013 permission not be
implemented, then the Council would be obliged to investigate the position with regards
to compliance with the January 2011 consent, and the case or otherwise for taking

Page 95



enforcement action. This should not however influence consideration of the acceptability
of the details currently in front of the Council in relation to the screen.

It is also relevant to note that Conditions 2 and 3 imposed on the November 2013
permission, quoted in 1.4.3 of the report provide additional controls over the
development, preventing the installation of external doors in the lobby extension and use
of the flat roof area as a balcony, roof garden, or amenity area in connection with the
dwelling. These give the Council clear grounds for enforcing against any breaches.

In relation to the ‘mobility’ of the screen, it was clear from the plan submitted (and
approved) as part of the 2013 application that this was to have a facility for being
retracted for use in an emergency situation and for maintenance access.

5. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS:

5.1 Having regard to the background, it is considered that the detailing of the screen is
acceptable in terms of restricting access to the flat roof area adjacent to No 22, and limiting
the opportunity for overlooking of that property. There are separate conditions on the
November 2013 permission restricting the use of the flat roof area which can be enforced in
the event of any breaches.

5.2 The recommendation is therefore to approve the detailing submitted.
RECOMMENDATION: APPROVE- subject to the following conditions:-
1. The screen shall be 1.6 metres high when measured from the floor of the balcony, and shall be

constructed no later than 6 months from the commencement of the development to which it
relates, as granted permission under Code No. 45/2013/ 0805/PF.

The reason for the condition is:-

1. To ensure consistency with the main permission for the lobby extension and stairway, and to
ensure the screen is in place in connection with the development.

Page 96



CYNGOR Heading:

. * REFERENCE NO. 45/2014/0924/PF
Sr]r Ddlnb_ych 23 MARINE DRIVE

Denbighshire RHYL

o= g
COUNTY COUNCIT.

Graham Boase Application Site N
Head of Planning & Public Protection l
Denbighshire County Council Date 28/8/2014 Scale 1/1250

Caledfryn Centre = 301772 E 382275 N

Smithfield Road This plan is intended solely to give an indiction of the LOCATION of
Denbigh the application site which forms the subject of the accompanying report.
Denbighshire LL16 3RJ It does not form any part of the application documents, and should not

be taken as representative of the proposals to be considered, which are

Tel: 01824 706800 Fax: 01824 706709 ) . . ) .
available for inspection prior to the meeting.

g‘%

- el

zand

Shelter

El Sub Sta

1to 20

arina
Apartments

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Surve behalf of ntroller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office.
© Crown copyright. Unauthorized reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosm (o] ERil fedings. Denbighshire County Council. 100023408. 2011.

Atgynhyrchir y map hwn o ddeunydd yr Ordnance Survey gyda chaniatad yr Ordnance Survey ar ran Rheolwr Llyfrfa Ei Mawrhydi
© Hawlfraint y Goron. Mae atgynhyrchu heb ganiatad yn torri hawlfraint y Goron a gall hyn arwain at erlyniad neu achos sifil. Cyngor Sir Ddinbych. 100023408. 2011.




PLAN A

PROPOSED PLAN
g ELEVATIONS

N | 08Z:1 NVId 3LS

}

1

| 05:L HONS LSS \\
N

THOPNIOG O JITIONPY FPI5

W2 PPN T O RIS DALY
> FoN TERIIIUG Jay Jsiy
| BRYSIYP MGy PRUDE ¢ SSPTID

PP iy PO mauy pniie IS 1IBYNG A7
DUG af FSTUILS OTH T
| 93504084~ Z90~1AHY 3AINA INRIVW €2
£l 834
I S | hn o5
N
foort 3a1S .
ADYrNY GISIND aﬂhﬁu& Ol Bvas 1, (onrasng)
Qn_s..sa RINITUN GHI{SI5D € :u..%m —> —fiuopon) suy &..mﬁw.u“%
m c / M J0af 7oy ginysicy
]  —
) TR
_,... \T " U3y
|II.H_._ = s
nﬁe nsm”_. §amcﬂwu_.ﬁmmmwh
S0 VI WG WG] YIS
RIDAYY MIOY D15 103 9 I K 5T @f HoHous 58
SPILY PRILIG TR MM ..vu_ce_ 4 & GImpaonG
PRI [7AS SIS un%aia%ees
VM ADIXD K3 SO
Lhﬁw \u B (20 JALTHG) naa“

TS PRl 1o
AV u! FOLOY

/

N

[00vs 3q1S

LY YT BYHYS Iy
 PRYSIIBG POTDG G

£

ATV
HITpOe & STIMEY SSUJE

RIS M GHUTYT oo =

g Wiy 1S Ty

4470507 ¢07 75y

o \vnuu?. R Jrt I

Bﬂhéhsui\@\:u&&a/ b

0 GIEIGY TR JY EWHANT

WI00J uns

I\

Ki0)0A 135009 ]

woos Buissap

| ‘oM gLvs $2 PR NI
L~ VAN RIGPMHOg

P jryrocy | _l_l|_|
cHsHn
_
S wonpag
UHRGHSIIN O] AIDNLY MEGWONE O

o

[05% 50013 GNNGYS \

N

[J

oyod

U%“u&

POSPY 29 Gf 1ty paziy " o

! 1755 SEHNILYS Wi OPUSIIVY Pa2viG
Fm 1 TN (24040 GHISIND J9 4y o

F_OO_.OL

woanyog

GIBMA] DINOUH3
POISTY @0

o S1PMy SSUlG
op ‘paxy 790}
POEPID WS ISIM af GWZHIG Iy

Appys

WM

‘N Pauis vIgnop

S PINGLS DG O SR GHIZIIG My T sy
HESEoom el o T IO 130T | PO U & paoq
SDPUY S HEIM 0N HRYILY YH0Y TIHEINLS SO 2414
GHOH St PIIHSNCD MASHYYD FIQINIZTNC) (7050

* LIRS GHIHOGHTTIH

Gf POnsynivn 51 FIoNdd
Q7300 . S5P/G POISAY A ¥
HOIONDYD (5007 Of BINLEE WY

Amn

oy

buiup

Page 98



SER 2013

5

APPROVEL PLAN
& ELEVATIONS
M
1

4-5/

_ goxL 3aIS

4

DY) GHYSITD M
Epopimag Gpern QEITD

4

ST et TMETWS G9CT

PLAN B

..ﬂuE.:__%
FRE6 SRS pany
4TS Afvg W ST S

[tovi 301S

ATy oy 0 S |

0f6 GNP A1 IRt H
g BVIEIGf PR J1f EWITR, 7
V.&R.«Mu YT (Y I PO JHO YY) E i _

STUATRY WO
Gy e Q PRAG E.Eﬁo Ft?
GG W TV TG 6 49 T RGO _

JomD Tpis 4STM o) ez 2

.

N

Qﬁuu&h@m%hﬂﬁ“ﬁ“ Q _ | _
- .ruﬂm.m“a&m (2 ey L/ m
Arg9907 J_ _

Aprys

FREBIE RATITRO PV GO ‘ al

e pay 74 6 NIYPATR 4591

VSEAZ)D PP PINT SO0

= = Forop, JUB 4UVIIY J7RLNDY

JVenipL i AU NG
RO JU oSN IS

§
T

AN

,nww.hbn_ d

1004407

L LNVId 31 03 e - ‘
ey T T [02 5004 1581 [ Joaano s/
_ AT nE__Sa_ i a3 | y _
: = _ |
R _ _| =003y | %
o N A N
.E._a dUd Jp—
FAMHRLINDIY Y HEJOS GATRITHD
- / Wi bt AN Iy PRTRITE W 01 S !
2 Q) £4 G0 1003 104 & STTT .
Ly RYGC IS HIYIG 2Lt [ MY Y Bl W FINERT O G 20
= VRID JGY 4] Q7 ST HIINAN O
A A0 I S o 4 INGIIDS 0O oy ae  onod
u....Tf — nNot o MY ST 1023500
I Hmg B RIGYA T PR e wr yAaY LnM. o o . r ._
- L,_\_ | |
| nmagy PPt i
Yy nT m;m_ ditsied Burasasp !
op1ay, oo 40 Doy O IS
_ 7 _ " ‘_ hm& M. %ww“ﬂ ._m@ |~ FU BN AP0 UZN:_”% _
i
z — ri o Joy s, ; _J S -
m:__,::“ |
2847 LYY { !
_ - w00sp2q
= & 17248 ITMIEAS I | 1 w1 || CIY FOU L YWY
hs__B ST GHYED _ _ ' g BT o mY oD 1Y Sthe] /
—_— _ E g G| M piac o 9% 1
spAE Y xEE by IO 1 QAT 0PIV HAIIE T LI
1_|| wRaTEg JTC ey O | !
! ]

Anygn

noy

buiup

Page 99

e S



lan Weaver

ITEM NO: 6
WARD NO: Rhyl East
WARD MEMBER(S): Clir Barry Mellor
Clir David Simmons
APPLICATION NO: 45/2014/0924/ PF
PROPOSAL: Amended details of alterations and extensions to dwelling

(previously granted under code no. 45/2013/0805), eliminating
external staircase, involving alternative design of first floor lobby
to incorporate internal staircase to ground floor level and the
erection of a 1.8m high side boundary screen to permit use of
additional section of flat roof area as extension to existing

balcony
LOCATION: Shirley 23 Marine Drive Rhyl
APPLICANT: Mr Russell Moffatt
CONSTRAINTS: None
PUBLICITY Site Notice — No
UNDERTAKEN: Press Notice — No

Neighbour letters - Yes

REASON(S) APPLICATION REPORTED TO COMMITTEE:
Scheme of Delegation Part 2

o Referral by Head of Planning / Development Control Manager
e Member request

CONSULTEE RESPONSES
RHYL TOWN COUNCIL
Response awaited — will be reported in late representation sheets.

RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY:
None received at the time of drafting the report. Any received prior to Committee will be reported in
the late sheets.

EXPIRY DATE OF APPLICATION: 05/10/14

REASONS FOR DELAY IN DECISION:
None

PLANNING ASSESSMENT:
1. THE PROPOSAL:
1.1 Summary of proposals
1.1.1 The application is the second of two on the agenda relating to developments at the
rear of this three storey dwelling on Marine Drive in Rhyl.

1.1.2 There has been a long and complex history of applications at this property, the most
relevant of which are summarised in Section 1.4 and listed in detail in Section 2.1 of
the report.

Page 100



113

The proposals in the application which is the subject of this report are submitted as
amendments to a planning permission granted at Planning Committee in November
2013. It involves the following :

- the redesign of a previously approved first floor ‘lobby’ extension, to provide a 7
metre X 2.7 metre lobby with rooflight windows, incorporating an internal staircase
from first floor to ground floor level, and external doors allowing access onto a
decking area proposed as an extension to the existing balcony. The extension would
involve raising the existing boundary wall with No 22 Marine Drive by some 1.2
metres and running a monopitch slated roof into the existing roof of the 3 storey
outrigger ;

- the elimination of an external staircase from the existing first floor balcony to ground
floor level along the boundary with No. 24;

- the erection of a timber panel screen to match the style of existing panelling
already at first floor level, along a 3.5 metre length of the boundary with No. 22, at a
height of 1.8 metres above the existing decking area. This is intended to provide a
visual and privacy screen between an extended rear balcony area and the rear yard
of No 22. The area proposed as the extension to the existing balcony measures some
3.5 metres by 2.5 metres ( 8.75 square metres). The existing balcony has an area of
approximately 9.8 square metres.

The details are best understood from perusal of plan A at the front of the report.

1.1.3 The detailing of the November 2013 permission which is linked to the current

114

application is explained at length in the preceding report on the agenda. In brief this
involved :

- the erection of a ‘lobby room’ on part of the existing flat roof area between No 23
and the side of No 22, with a footprint of 5.5 metres X 2.4 metres and a pitched roof
up to a height of 3.0 metres, with obscure glazing to the western side facing No 22,
and clear glazing to the rear (south) elevation. The lobby had no external door
openings in its frame, preventing access out of the lobby onto the adjacent flat roof
area,;

- the widening of the existing access door from the kitchen onto the balcony area ;

- the erection of an external staircase from the existing balcony down to ground floor
level ;

- the erection of a 1.0m high ‘balcony railing’ to limit access from the existing balcony
onto the remaining flat roof area. The plan was annotated to state “Between flat roof
area and existing balcony fit 1m high balcony railing to prevent access onto flat roof
area. Barrier to be secured in place to prevent access to flat roof area but to have
facility to be retracted for use in an emergency situation and maintenance access
only.”

The preceding application on the agenda deals with the detailing of the above
described ‘balcony railing’.

The approved 2013 plans are reproduced as Plan B at the front of the report.

The current submission is accompanied by a supporting Statement from the
applicant. This refers to the more recent planning history at the site and reviews two
previous applications involving extensions at first floor level — a June 2013 refusal for
a conservatory and the November 2013 permission for the lobby extension and
related developments referred to in paragraph 1.1.3 above. The Statement explains
that the applicant has considered the detailing of the consented extension and
external staircase, the grounds of refusal of the June 2013 conservatory, and

Page 101



1.15

believes the current application addresses the concerns of neighbours over the
proposed stairway, overlooking and privacy, and overbearing development, in that —

- overlooking and loss of privacy concerns would be overcome by the removal of the
external staircase (which is now proposed within the extension) and the provision of
the privacy screen on the side boundary with No 22.

- Overbearing development should not be an issue as the Council has already
approved the lobby extension, and the proposed revisions to that scheme now
show the height of the structure to be 700mm lower than the apex of the lobby on
the November 2013 permission

In appreciating the complexities of the situation, if the Committee consented to the
current application , the implementation of the permission would effectively override
the two most recent permissions for developments, as granted in January 2011 and
November 2013.

1.2 Description of site and surroundings

121

1.2.2

123

1.2.4

The subject property is a three-storey mid-terraced house which fronts the beach and
promenade in Rhyl on Marine Drive. It is abutted by a house to the east, No.24 Marine
Drive, and by flats at No. 22 Marine Drive. Properties within the area are used for a
variety of residential accommodation including houses and flats, with the rear curtilage
of the properties in the block (19 to 26) used for amenity space and also parking, which
is accessed via a rear alleyway.

There has been a first floor balcony area at the rear of No. 23 for some years. A
planning permission was granted in early 2011 for a single storey flat roof extension at
the side of the property. This was conditioned to prevent use of the flat roof area in
order to limit the overlooking of the rear of No 22.

The adjacent property at 24 Marine Drive has a swimming pool in the rear garden and
has a two-storey flat-roofed rear projection along the side boundary to No. 23, with a
main window on the rear elevation facing south.

The adjacent property at 22 Marine Drive has a rear yard area which is divided into
three areas for use by the ground floor, first floor and second floor flats, with the ground
floor unit facing the side blank wall of the single-storey extension added to the rear of
23 Marine Drive. The property at 22 Marine Drive has rear facing bedroom doors and
windows and the upper floors also have rear and side facing windows; and there is a
rear stairway down from first floor level at the back of Nos. 21 / 22.

1.3 Relevant planning constraints/considerations

131

There are no designations or allocations in the Local Development Plan of relevance to
the application.

1.4 Relevant planning history

14.1

1.4.2

The site has an extensive planning history as set out in Section 2 of this report. It
includes a number of applications to alter and extend at the rear of the property.

The most recent applications of relevance are one granted in January 2011 for the
retention of a single storey flat roofed extension with a flat roof infill, one refused in
June 2013 for a conservatory at first floor level on top of the flat roof area, and one

Page 102



granted in November 2013 for a first floor lobby extension, stairway and barrier to
prevent access onto the flat roof area.

1.4.3 The relevance of the November 2013 permission for the lobby, screen, and staircase is
that it effectively ‘overrides’ the earlier permission in 2011 involving the flat roof
extension. It is capable of implementation irrespective of the determination of the
current application and as a ‘fallback’ is a material consideration in the weighing up of
the present proposals.

1.5 Developments/changes since the original submission
None.

1.6 Other relevant background information
1.6.1 The preceding application on the agenda, Code no. 01/2014/0805 relates to the
detailing of the balcony screen as required by Condition 5 of the planning permission
granted in November 2013.

DETAILS OF PLANNING HISTORY:
2.1 2/RYL/518/78 - Erection of a fire escape for flatlets: Granted 07/11/1978.

2/RYL/0190/90/P - Continuation of use of building as 4 flats and extension to rear:
Withdrawn 03/12/1990.

2/RYL/0176/93/P - Construction of dormer at rear to form new bathroom/bedroom (Flat 2):
Granted 22 June 1993.

45/2007/1511 - Erection of two-storey flat-roofed extension with balconies at rear of
premises and provision of new steel staircase: Refused 14/03/2008 on the grounds of the
impact on the adjacent occupiers due to the scale, massing, height and siting of the
extensions with balconies above which would have a detrimental impact on the amenity and
privacy of the adjacent occupiers.

45/2008/0694 - Erection of two-storey extension with balcony at rear of dwelling: Refused
04/09/2008 on the same grounds as the refusal of 45/2007/1511.

45/2008/1356 - Erection of single-storey flat roof extension to rear: Withdrawn 30/04/2009.

45/2009/1003 - Application for a Certificate of Lawfulness for the proposed erection of single
storey flat roof extension to side of dwelling: Certificate issued 13/07/2010.

45/2010/1360 - Retention of single-storey flat-roofed extension but with flat roof infill over
open porch and handrail over to match existing balcony deck (Retrospective application):
Granted 19/01/2011. The permission contained conditions precluding use of the flat roof
area nearest No 22 as a balcony, roof garden, or amenity area ; and required approval of the
detailing of a screen to prevent access from the balcony area onto the aforementioned flat
roof area, and the details of Juliet balconies to prevent access from external doors onto that
area.

45/2011/0532 - Details of screen and Juliet balconies to prevent access on to the side
extension flat roof submitted in accordance with retrospective planning permission
45/2010/1360: Refused 08/08/2011 on the grounds that the proposed screening would not
prevent access to the flat roof and therefore did not remove the possibility of the overlooking
of the adjoining property at 22 Marine Drive.

45/2013/0520/PF - Construction of first-floor conservatory extension and privacy screen and
construction of external staircase from balcony to garden area: Refused 3 June 2013 for the
following reason:

“It is the opinion of the Local Planning Authority that the scale, massing, height and siting of
the proposed first-floor conservatory on top of the existing single-storey rear extension, and

Page 103



use of the flat roof area adjacent to the proposed conservatory as a balcony would result in
a detrimental impact on the amenity of the adjacent occupiers, by virtue of overlooking, loss
of privacy and overbearing impact. As such, the proposal is contrary to Criterion v) of Policy
GEN 6 and Criterion iii) of Policy HSG 12 of the adopted Denbighshire Unitary Development
Plan, along with the guidance set out in the Council's adopted Supplementary Planning

[IE1)

Guidance 1'Extensions to Dwellings'.

45/2013/0805 - Erection of lobby extension at first floor level, staircase from first floor
balcony to rear garden, and balustrade to limit access to first floor flat roof area ; and
widening of existing doorway from kitchen onto existing balcony: Granted 13 November
2013. Conditions attached precluding the provision of external door openings out onto the
flat roof area and the use of the flat roof area as a balcony, roof garden, or amenity area in
connection with the dwelling; and requiring approval of the detailing of the balustrade
[/screen.

RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE:

The main planning policies and guidance are considered to be:

3.1 DENBIGHSHIRE LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN (adopted 4™ June 2013)
Policy RD 1 Sustainable development and good standard design
Policy RD 3 Extensions and alterations to existing dwellings

3.2 Supplementary Planning Guidance
SPG 1 Extensions to dwellings
SPG 24 Householder development design guide

3.3 GOVERNMENT POLICY / GUIDANCE
Planning Policy Wales Edition 7 July 2014
Technical Advice Notes

MAIN PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS:

In terms of general guidance on matters relevant to the consideration of a planning application,
Planning Policy Wales Edition 7, 2014 (PPW) confirms the requirement that planning
applications 'should be determined in accordance with the approved or adopted development
plan for the area, unless material considerations indicate otherwise' (Section 3.1.2). PPW
advises that material considerations must be relevant to the regulation of the development and
use of land in the public interest, and fairly and reasonably relate to the development concerned.,
and that these can include the number, size, layout, design and appearance of buildings, the
means of access, landscaping, service availability and the impact on the neighbourhood and on
the environment (Sections 3.1.3 and 3.1.4).

The following paragraphs in Section 4 of the report therefore refer to the policies of the
Denbighshire Local Development Plan, and to the material planning considerations which are
considered to be of relevance to the proposal.

4.1 The main land use planning issues are considered to be:-
4.1.1 Principle
4.1.2 Planning history
4.1.3 Visual impact
4.1.4 Residential amenity impact

4.2 In relation to the main planning considerations:

4.1.1 Principle
The principle of extensions to existing dwellings is generally acceptable in terms of

current policies, subject to consideration of detailing and impacts. Policy RD 3 relates
specifically to extensions to dwellings and permits extensions subject to the
acceptability of scale and form; design and materials; the impact upon character,

Page 104



41.2

4.1.3

appearance, and amenity standards of the dwelling and its immediate locality; and
whether a proposal represents overdevelopment of the site. SPG 1 and SPG 24 offer
basic advice on the principles to be adopted when designing domestic extensions
and related developments.

The proposed alterations and additions to an existing residential property set within a
defined development boundary would therefore be acceptable in principle, subject to
meeting the relevant site specific impact tests outlined in Policies RD 1 and RD 3.

Planning History
The subject site has a complex planning history as outlined earlier in this report,
which is an important context for assessment of the current application.

There have been various proposals to extend at the rear of No. 23 since 2007. Two
applications were refused in 2008 for two-storey projections adjacent to the side
boundary. A single storey extension was constructed as ‘permitted development’ and
accepted as ‘lawful’ through a Certificate of Lawfulness in 2010. Retrospective
permission was granted for an addition to this flat roof extension in 2011, with
restrictions on the use of the first floor area and a requirement for the erection of
screens and Juliet balconies to limit access to that area. Permission was refused in
June 2013 for a first floor conservatory structure and external stairway down to
ground floor level. An alternative scheme for a first floor lobby extension and external
stairway was granted at Planning Committee in November 2013, subject to
conditions.

Whilst the planning history in itself should have limited relevance to the consideration
of the merits of the current application, it is material to consider the ‘fallback’ position
of the applicant in that the November 2013 permission permits the erection of a lobby
extension and external stairway, developments which can clearly be carried out
subject to compliance with conditions. Officers respectfully suggest this establishes
the Council’'s acceptance of a suitably designed first floor extension, subject to due
consideration of the visual and residential amenity impacts, which are addressed in
the following sections of the report.

Visual Appearance

Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 test (i) requires due regard to issues of siting,
layout, form, character, design, materials, aspect, microclimate and intensity of use of
land / buildings and spaces between buildings, which are matters relevant to the
visual impact of development; test (vi) requires that development does not
unacceptably affect prominent public views into, out of, or across any settlement or
area of open countryside; test (vi) requires the incorporation of existing landscape or
other features, takes account of site contours, and changes in levels and prominent
skylines; and test (xiii) requires the incorporation of suitable landscaping measures to
protect and enhance development in its local context. SPG 1 and SPG 24 provide
further advice on the suitability of householder development.

As mentioned previously, the situation at No. 23 has been a complex one, given the
background history, the detailing of the proposals and the relationships between
properties. Members are referred to the plans at the front of the report and will see
photographs of the site at Committee, which may help to simplify understanding of
what is involved. A Site panel will be visiting the site prior to Committee and will see
first hand the detailing of existing features and the relationship with adjoining
properties. There have been concerns expressed over time by one neighbour over
the acceptability of proposals at the rear of No. 23.

It is to be noted initially in respect of the visual amenity considerations, that the
context of the local area includes a number of other properties which have rear
extensions. As an example, No. 24 has a 2 storey flat roofed extension which projects
some 2.8 metres out beyond the rear wall of N0.23. Extensions at the rear of Marine
Drive properties are not an unusual feature in the area, and given the scale of the

Page 105



41.4

development proposed, the visual appearance is considered to be acceptable. The
lobby extension would be set within a recessed area flanked by the three-storey
outrigger of the application property and that of its neighbour at No 22, and it is not
considered that a refusal of permission based on visual harm could be justified.

The main other change proposed, involving the erection of a visual screen along the
boundary with No. 22 is considered to be appropriate in respect of visual appearance,
the detailing of the screen matching existing screens along the rear balcony.

In Officers’ opinion, the scheme is acceptable in respect of its visual appearance,
which is a basic test of Policies RD 1 and RD 3 and advice set out in SPG 1 and SPG
24,

Residential Amenity

Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 test (i) requires due regard to issues of siting,
layout, form, character, design, materials, aspect, microclimate and intensity of use of
land / buildings and spaces between buildings, which touch on the potential for
impact on residential amenity; test (vi) sets the requirement to assess the impact of
development on the amenities of local residents, other land and property users, or
characteristics of the locality, in terms of increased activity, disturbance, noise, dust,
fumes, litter, drainage, light pollution, etc. SPG 1 and SPG 24 both stress the need
for good design in order to ensure that the character and amenity of the
neighbourhood is maintained.

In terms of detailing, the proposed first floor lobby involves a 1.2 metre increase in
height of a section of boundary wall, to support a lean to roof incorporating rooflight
windows. The wall would be rendered and painted to match the existing wall. The
lobby would be 1.5 metres longer and 0.3 metres wider than the one approved in
November 2013. The detailing would obviate any potential for overlooking to and
from No 22, which realistically is the only affected property in terms of residential
amenity. Having regard also to the height and proximity of the previously approved
lobby extension, Officers do not consider this element of the scheme would be
unacceptable in terms of additional impact on the residential amenities of the
occupiers of the flats at No 22.

The proposed privacy screen along a 3.5 metre length of the side boundary with No.
22 would provide an effective visual barrier limiting the potential for overlooking from
the proposed extended balcony area at the rear of No. 23. On this basis, the scheme
is considered to reasonably address any concerns regarding the impact on residential
amenity from use of the balcony area of No. 23.

The elimination of the external stairway from the existing balcony to ground floor level
on the side nearest No. 24, as approved in November 2013, would address
previously expressed concerns over the potential impact of that feature on the privacy
of the rear garden area.

In Officers opinion, given the basis of the 2013 permission, the lobby extension and
privacy screen are not considered overbearing, out of scale, or to represent
overdevelopment in the context of the locality.

Other matters

Handling of proposals at the property

Members will appreciate that there has been a significant history leading up to the
consideration of the current application, and neighbour issues have arisen which have made
for a difficult situation for all parties. In acknowledging the basis of concerns expressed over
developments, Officers would comment with respect that the Council has no say over the
number of applications an individual may choose to submit, and has a duty to deal with each
application in the same manner, with regard to policy and impacts, and any representations
lodged. Applications have been dealt without favour and in relation to land use planning

Page 106



considerations relevant to their determination.

Compliance with conditions on previous permission

Objectors have previously questioned whether further applicatios should be properly
considered whilst there still remain questions over compliance with the 2011 permission.
Officers have advised previously that in respecting these concerns, the Council has a duty to
determine the proposals in front of it on their own merits, and any decision here should not be
influenced by matters pertaining to breaches of a previous permission.

5 SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS:

5.1 Officers acknowledge there has been a difficult background in relation to this property. In
respecting the ongoing concerns of the neighbours, it is considered there is a basis for
support for the current proposals, given the detailing and the developments which could take
place if the scheme granted in November 2013 were to be implemented.

5.2 The proposals are considered acceptable in terms of visual appearance and impact on
residential amenity, subject to suitable conditions. With respect to the representations on the
application, the development is not considered likely to result in unacceptable harm to
neighbouring residential amenity sufficient to justify a refusal of permission.

5.3 The recommendation is therefore to grant permission.

RECOMMENDATION: GRANT - subject to the following conditions:-

1. The development to which this permission relates shall be begun no later than the expiration
of five years beginning with the date of this permission.
2. The use of the additional area of the flat roof as an extension to the first floor balcony shall not

be brought into use until the approved boundary screen has been erected. The screen shall
be retained as approved at all times.

The reasons for the conditions are:-

1. To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.
2. In the interests of the privacy/amenity of the occupiers of adjoining property.

Page 107



This page is intentionally left blank



CYNGOR
Sir Ddin hrrych
Denbi gh shire

v COUNTY COUNCIL

Graham Boase
Head of Planning & Public Protection
Denbighshire County Council

Caledfryn
Smithfield Road
Denbigh
Denbighshire LL16 3RJ
Tel: 01824 706800 Fax: 01824 706709

Heading:
REFERENCE NO. 45/2014/0746/PF
FRONFRAITH, 1 BOUGHTON AVE

RHYL
Application Site N\
Date 26/8/2014 Scale 1/1250

Centre = 301245 E 381730 N
This plan is intended solely to give an indiction of the LOCATION of
the application site which forms the subject of the accompanying report.
It does not form any part of the application documents, and should not
be taken as representative of the proposals to be considered, which are
available for inspection prior to the meeting.

Mursing

Gowernment
Offices

Lbys: Anveyl

Council Offices

S
Pen-Y-Coed y - <
S OVQ / /7 ~
e
/\ o e .ﬁs

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Sun
© Crown copyright. Unauthorized reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to pro:

behalf of t| ller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office.
sg il p s. Denbighshire County Council. 100023408. 2011.

Atgynhyrchir y map hwn o ddeunydd yr Ordnance Survey gyda chaniatad yr Ordnance Survey ar ran Rheolwr Llyfrfa Ei Mawrhydi
© Hawlfraint y Goron. Mae atgynhyrchu heb ganiatad yn torri hawlfraint y Goron a gall hyn arwain at erlyniad neu achos sifil. Cyngor Sir Ddinbych. 100023408. 2011.




P02

.
e il e B 8 Bl B 4 B

e e oo ot o ST20 B
-
L gy o e o st b 0 st 48y
J————— ey——
T

e e il g g

|

PROPOSED SIDE ELEVATION
(Scale 1:100)

PROPOSED SIDE ELEVATION
{Scale 1:100)

{Scala 1 100)

PROPOSED REAR ELEVATION

Page 110

PURPOSES ONLY

FOR PLANNING

w wa
. ow BTT Mo
et T pga it Comagrars b 25 0mpale ey Sanrenry




AS PROPOSED

~-- P01 REV B

H
= 2 Pt e i Sy omars T sy
o

-t it e s,

E‘—"’

AN

Q
N
N

77

N

N

\

N '

R

.

.

X

o

RN

\i[}]

PROPOSED SECCOND FLOOR PLAN (Scale 1:100)

7
%

FOR PLANNING
PURPOSES ONLY

] [
T

PROPOSED SITE PLAN
{Scala 1:250)

PROPOSED FIRST FLOOR PLAN (Scale 1:100)

PROPOSED GROUND FLOOR PLAN (Scale 1:100)




(00111 81835) DNILSIXE SV NV1d 80074 ONODIS

(05Z ‘1 8{e9S) NY1d LIS DNILSIX3 SY

: o
O Ng -
2

W M RO P ek
BS1O03LIHOHY
I
r e
Pl | o | ey
o O e | R R R | L Tl
G Bumry usseIsgY ¥ UsmuNTY
“ i) Btrt Urtaneh) e WO
- ATWO Ak
- L0XT ==
s = .H—a ) i_* T
-_ I
n ATNO S350ddnd
DNINNY 12 HO4
<
n_...u...nm
ey bereebey

{0011 @122S) NOILYAS3 ¥YIH ONILSIXA SV

Page 112




David Roberts

ITEM NO: 7
WARD NO: Rhyl East
WARD MEMBER(S): Clir Barry Mellor
Clir David Simmons
APPLICATION NO: 45/2014/0746/ PF
PROPOSAL: Change of use of offices to form 6 no. residential apartments
LOCATION: Fronfraith 1 Boughton Avenue Rhyl
APPLICANT: Mr Abdul Ahmed Habitat Creations
CONSTRAINTS: Tree Preservation Order
PUBLICITY Site Notice — No
UNDERTAKEN: Press Notice — No

Neighbour letters - Yes

REASON(S) APPLICATION REPORTED TO COMMITTEE:
Scheme of Delegation Part 2

e Recommendation to grant — 4 or more objections received

CONSULTATION RESPONSES:
RHYL TOWN COUNCIL
“No objection”

DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL CONSULTEES —

Head of Highways and Infrastructure

Highways Officer

Notes a shortfall in relation to current parking standards, but has no objection due to proximity
of public car parks and the availability of public transport. Recommend cycle storage is
required.

Housing Officer
High demand for housing in the locality

RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY:

In objection
Representations received from:

K F Cooper, 15 Boughton Avenue, Rhyl

D. Casement, 6 Russell Court, Rhyl

S. Jones, 2 Russell Court, Rhyl

Mr & Mrs Myers, 12 Russell Court, Rhyl

Vanessa W. Byrne, Tremy Ser, 19 Bryn Colwyn, Colwyn Bay
R & J Williams, 8 Russell Court, Rhyl

W. Jones, 11 Boughton Avenue, Rhyl

Mrs R W Benson, 10 Russell Court, Rhyl

Mr & Mrs H Clarke, 16 Boughton Avenue Rhyl

K F Cooper, 15 Boughton Avenue, Rhyl

Summary of planning based representations in objection:
Highways impact - lack of parking provision leading to indiscriminate on road parking

Page 113



Residential amenity - increased activity leading to increased disturbance from noise and
passing traffic

EXPIRY DATE OF APPLICATION: 14/08/2014

REASONS FOR DELAY IN DECISION (where applicable):

. awaiting consideration by Committee

PLANNING ASSESSMENT:
1. THE PROPOSAL:

2.

3.

1.1 Summary of proposals
1.1.1 This application, and the one following on the agenda involve separate proposals to
change the use of the former council offices at Fronfraith.

1.1.2 This application is for the conversion of the existing B2 office building to form 6no. self
contained flats. The following report deals with the proposal to use the property as a
C2 residential institution.

1.1.3 ltis proposed to create 2no. 3 bedroom units, 3no. 2 bedroom units and 1no. 1
bedroom unit. The 3 bed units would provide 118 m? and 84 m?of internal floorspace.
The 2no. bed units would provide 72 m? and 69 m?of internal floorspace. The 1 bed
unit would provide 58 m?of internal floorspace.

1.1.4 Minor external alterations are proposed to the property which include the addition of
3no. ground floor windows to the rear elevation.

1.2 Description of site and surroundings
1.2.1 The existing property is located on a residential cul-de-sac. The site adjoins the car
park of Denbighshire County Council offices at Russell House.

1.2.2 The site would be accessed from Broughton Avenue via an existing access which is a
cul-de-sac.

1.3 Relevant planning constraints/considerations
1.3.1 The site is located within the development boundary of Rhyl.

1.3.2 There are a number of trees in the locality that are subject to Tree Preservation
Orders.

1.4 Relevant planning history
1.4.1 The property was formerly in use as a residential care home. Permission was granted

for the change of use of the property from a C2 residential institution to B1 offices in
2001.

1.5 Developments/changes since the original submission
1.5.1 Internal arrangements have been changed to ensure all units meet adopted space
standards.

1.6 Other relevant background information
1.6.1 None

DETAILS OF PLANNING HISTORY:
2.1 Change of use from C2 residential institution to B1 offices GRANTED 29/03/2001.

RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE:
The main planning policies and guidance are considered to be:
Denbighshire Local Development Plan (adopted 4™ June 2013)
Policy RD1 — Sustainable development and good standard design
Policy BSC7 — Houses in multiple occupation and self contained flats
Policy BSC11 — Recreation and open space

Page 114



Policy ASA3 — Parking standards

3.1 Supplementary Planning Guidance
SPG7 — Residential Space Standards

3.2 Government Policy / Guidance
Planning Policy Wales Edition 7 July 2014

MAIN PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS:

In terms of general guidance on matters relevant to the consideration of a planning application,
Planning Policy Wales Edition 7, 2014 (PPW) confirms the requirement that planning applications
'should be determined in accordance with the approved or adopted development plan for the
area, unless material considerations indicate otherwise' (Section 3.1.2). PPW advises that
material considerations must be relevant to the regulation of the development and use of land in
the public interest, and fairly and reasonably relate to the development concerned., and that these
can include the number, size, layout, design and appearance of buildings, the means of access,
landscaping, service availability and the impact on the neighbourhood and on the environment
(Sections 3.1.3 and 3.1.4).

The following paragraphs in Section 4 of the report therefore refer to the policies of the
Denbighshire Local Development Plan, and to the material planning considerations which are
considered to be of relevance to the proposal.

4.1 The main land use planning issues in relation to the application are considered to be:

4.1.1 Principle

4.1.2 Visual amenity

4.1.3 Residential amenity

4.1.4 Open Space

4.1.5 Highways (including access and parking)
4.1.6 Affordable Housing

4.2 In relation to the main planning considerations:
4.2.1 Principle

The site is located within the development boundary of Rhyl where new residential
development will, in principle, be supported provided that it meets the criteria of other
policies in the Local Development Plan and material planning considerations. Policy
PSE 1 relates specifically to the North Wales Coast Strategic Regeneration Area. The
policy seeks to compliment the various regeneration initiatives in the area, and in
relation to housing development advises that in this area the Council will support
proposals which provide new family accommodation. Policy BSC 7 is the detailed
policy relating to Houses in Multiple Occupation & Self Contained Flats. The policy
states that the sub-division of existing premises to self contained flats will be
permitted subject to compliance with detailed criteria.

The proposals are for the creation of self contained flats and are therefore considered
acceptable in principle. The specific impacts are addressed in the following sections.

4.2.2 Visual amenity
Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 test (i) requires due regard to issues of siting,

layout, form, character, design, materials, aspect, microclimate and intensity of use of
land / buildings and spaces between buildings, which are matters relevant to the
visual impact of development; test (vi) requires that development does not
unacceptably affect prominent public views into, out of, or across any settlement or
area of open countryside; test (vi) requires the incorporation of existing landscape or
other features, takes account of site contours, and changes in levels and prominent
skylines; and test (xiii) requires the incorporation of suitable landscaping measures to
protect and enhance development in its local context.

Page 115



4.2.3

424

It is considered that the proposed alterations would have a minimal visual impact in
relation to the building itself and the locality. It is therefore considered that the
proposals would comply with the requirements of the policies listed above, and would
have an acceptable impact on visual amenity.

Residential amenity

Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 test (vi) sets the requirement to assess the
impact of development on the amenities of local residents, other land and property
users, or characteristics of the locality, in terms of increased activity, disturbance,
noise, dust, fumes, litter, drainage, light pollution, etc. SPG 7 states that the minimum
floor space required for 3 bed units should be 80 m?, 2 bed units it should be 65m2
and for 1 bed units it should be 50m®. SPG 7 also states that a minimum of 50 m” of
external amenity space should be provided for flats with an additional 10 m? for each
additional unit.

Policy BSC 7 states that proposals for conversion to self contained flats will be
acceptable provided that the property is suitable for conversion to the number and
type of flats proposed without unacceptably affecting the character, appearance and
amenity standards of the locality (including cumulative effects of such proposals and
the proposal conforms to the Council’'s approved space and amenity standards. The
reasoned justification in relation to this policy states that self-contained flats can help
to address the needs of those wanting to purchase or rent small units of
accommodation, as well as providing a relatively affordable housing option for those
wishing to purchase their first property. Whilst the creation of such flats helps to meet
housing need, in some instances their provision can be detrimental to the amenity of
existing residential areas. In addition, areas with high levels of flats are often
associated with low levels of owner occupation, which in some instances can lead to
lower standards of maintenance and associated environmental degradation issues. It
is therefore important that the development of such dwellings is strictly controlled.

The proposed development would comply with the space standards as set out in SPG
7. The 3 bed units would provide 118 m? and 84 m?of internal floorspace. The 2no.
bed units would provide 72 m? and 69 m? of internal floorspace. The 1 bed unit would
provide 58 m? of internal floorspace.

As the development meets the required standards set out in SPG 7 it is considered
that the proposed development would provide an acceptable level of amenity for
proposed occupiers. Having regard to the policy considerations outlined above and to
the character of uses in the locality and the nature of the existing use, it is not
considered that the proposed development would have an unacceptable impact on
the amenity standards of local residents, by way of unreasonable noise and
disturbance. In respecting the concerns expressed, the property has been used
previously as a residential home and offices, with associated levels of activity.

Open Space
Local Development Plan Policy BSC 3 seeks to ensure, where relevant, infrastructure

contributions from development. Policy BSC 11 requires proposals for all new
residential development to make a contribution to recreation and open space either
on site, or by provision of a commuted sum.

The proposal includes the creation of 6no. new residential units.

Realistically, provision on site of open space would not be possible and it is therefore
considered that a commuted sum payment in lieu would be an acceptable option. It is
considered that the proposals would be acceptable in relation to open space subject
to the requisite contributions being secured. It is considered that this could be done
through an appropriately worded condition.

Page 116



4.2.5 Highways (including access and parking)
Planning Policy Wales 3.1.4 refers to what may be regarded as material
considerations and that these can include the number, size, layout, design and
appearance of buildings, the means of access, landscaping, service availability and
the impact on the neighbourhood and on the environment. The acceptability of means
of access is therefore a standard test on most planning applications. Policy ASA 3
requires adequate parking spaces for cars and bicycles in connection with
development proposals, and outlines considerations to be given to factors relevant to
the application of standards. These policies reflect general principles set out in
Planning Policy Wales (Section 8) and TAN 18 — Transport, in support of sustainable
development. SPG 21 sets a maximum requirement for parking to be 3 car spaces for
3 bed units, 2 car spaces per 2 bed units and 1.5 spaces per 1 bed unit. This is a
maximum requirement and mitigating circumstances such as access to off site
parking and provision of public transport will be taken into account.

The Highways Officer advises that the proposals do not meet the maximum standards
but raises no objection due to the proximity to car parks where annual passes can be
purchased, and the accessibility of public transport. The Highways Officers also
advise that cycle storage should be provided.

Having regard to the location of the proposed development it is not considered that
there is justification for maximum parking standards to be imposed. It is therefore
considered that the proposals would not have an unacceptable impact in relation to
parking provision. It is also considered that the proposed development would not have
an unacceptable impact on the local highway network having regard to the access
arrangements and the capacity of the local highway network. It is considered that
cycle storage can be secured by condition.

4.2.6 Affordable Housing
Policy BSC3 of the local development plan sets the basic requirement for
development to contribute where relevant to the provision of infrastructure including
affordable housing, in line with Policy BSC4. Policy BSC4 relates specifically to
affordable housing, and requires that all developments of three or more residential
units provide a minimum of 10% affordable housing either onsite on developments of
10 or more units, or by way of a financial contribution on developments of less than
10 units.

The proposal is for the creation of 6no. residential units, which would generate the
need for an affordable housing contribution in accordance with Policy BSC 4.

Having regard to the above it is considered that the proposals would be acceptable in
relation to affordable housing contribution subject to the requisite contributions being
secured. It is considered that this could be done through an appropriately worded
condition.

Other Matters

Various consultation responses have made reference to restricting the occupancy of
flats to residents over the age of 55. Officers advice is that there is no
justifiable/material planning reason to impose such a restriction in relation to the use
of this property.

5. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS:
The proposed units of accommodation meet adopted space standards and although maximum
parking standards are not met it is considered that this is acceptable having regard to the
location. The proposals are therefore recommended for grant.

Page 117



RECOMMENDATION: GRANT- subject to the following conditions:-

The development to which this permission relates shall be begun no later than the expiration
of five years beginning with the date of this permission.

PRE-COMMENCEMENT CONDITION

The development shall not begin until arrangements for the provision of Open Space as part
of the development, in accordance with the Council's Policies and Supplementary Planning
Guidance, has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and
the development shall proceed in accordance with the approved arrangements

The development shall not begin until arrangements for the provision of Affordable Housing
as part of the development, in accordance with the Council's Policies and Supplementary
Planning Guidance, has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority and the development shall proceed in accordance with the approved arrangements
Prior to the commencement of the use hereby permitted, details of proposed cycle storage
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The storage
details approved shall be completed prior to the commencement of the use and retained at all
times

The reasons for the conditions are:-

PwnNPE

To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.
In the interest of compliance with adopted open space policies.

In the interest of compliance with adopted affordable housing policies

In the interest of the provision of adequate cycle storage in accordance with adopted
standards.

Page 118



CYNGOR Heading:
1 7 REFERENCE NO. 45/2014/0787/PF
-SPII Diffn}} ’Eh FRONFRAITH, 1 BOUGHTON AVE

Denbighshire RHYL

v COUNTY COUNCIL

Graham Boase Application Site N
Head of Planning & Public Protection l
Denbighshire County Council Date 27/8/2014 Scale 1/1250

Caledfryn Centre = 301253 E 381731 N

Smithfield Road This plan is intended solely to give an indiction of the LOCATION of
Denbigh the application site which forms the subject of the accompanying report.
Denbighshire LL16 3RJ It does not form any part of the application documents, and should not

be taken as representative of the proposals to be considered, which are

Tel: 01824 706800 Fax: 01824 706709 ) . . . .
available for inspection prior to the meeting.

El5ub sta

o))
A

Mursing

Ty Russell

Gawernment
Ofiices

Liys Ayl

Council Offices

Pen-v-Coad / S ’
: ) an L] /d?@/ J
U A N ' 3 S VAN

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Surve behalf of t| ller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office.
© Crown copyright. Unauthorized reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosm il prpc s. Denbighshire County Council. 100023408. 2011.

Atgynhyrchir y map hwn o ddeunydd yr Ordnance Survey gyda chaniatad yr Ordnance Survey ar ran Rheolwr Llyfrfa Ei Mawrhydi
© Hawlfraint y Goron. Mae atgynhyrchu heb ganiatad yn torri hawlfraint y Goron a gall hyn arwain at erlyniad neu achos sifil. Cyngor Sir Ddinbych. 100023408. 2011.




e PO1rev A

’-
rennl 4 gy b moarvrre] ey COA e,

— s

PROPOSED SECOND FLOOR PLAN (Scale 1:100)

113
iiiiii

PROPQSED FIRST FLOOR PLAN (Scale 1:100)

PROPOSED GROUND FLOOR PLAN {Scale 1.100}

'
R

{Scale 1:250}

PROPOSED SITE PLAN

AN

{Scale 1-100}

NORTH WEST ELEVATION

SOUTH EAST FACING ELEVATION
{Scate 1:100)

PROPQSED REAR ELEVATION
{Scale 1,100}

Page 120




AS EXISTING

RSLO3LIHOHY
d e
r_ ik
o s omins [ Yo L)
o soas | o prm | et L
Bt Sty § ieisbistyn]
LOX3 -
o] [
£y {
“
ATNO 5330ddNd
ONINNY1d 404
TRy
s bty

s # 1§ &t pmiansd G g0 (St et

Py Pt

e e

L0X3 ==

{0SZ :1 91895} NY1d 3LIS ONILSIXI SY

(o011 eleag} NOILYADTA HYAH ONILSIXT SY

oo ..
.-M“” E T "Erl. l :
e

Page 121




ITEM NO:

WARD NO:

WARD MEMBER(S):

APPLICATION NO:

PROPOSAL:

LOCATION:

APPLICANT:

CONSTRAINTS:

PUBLICITY
UNDERTAKEN:

David Roberts
8

Rhyl East

Clir Barry Mellor
ClIr David Simmons

45/2014/0787/ PF

Conversion, alterations and extensions of existing office to form a
residential institution

Fronfraith 1 Boughton Avenue Rhyl
Habitat Creations

Tree Preservation Order

Site Notice — No

Press Notice — No
Neighbour letters - Yes

REASON(S) APPLICATION REPORTED TO COMMITTEE:

Scheme of Delegation Part 2

e Recommendation to grant — 4 or more objections received

CONSULTATION RESPONSES:

RHYL TOWN COUNCIL

“No objection”

DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL CONSULTEES —
Head of Highways and Infrastructure

Highways Officer

No objection. Recommend cycle storage is proposed and parking and access arrangements

are secured by condition.

RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY:

In objection

Representations received from:

D. Casement, 6, Russell Court, Rhyl

W. Jones, 11, Boughton Avenue, Rhyl

Mr & Mrs K F & B Cooper, 15 Boughton Avenue, Rhyl
Mr & Mrs H Clarke, 16 Boughton Avenue Rhyl

R & J Williams, 8 Russell Court, Rhyl

Summary of planning based representations in objection:

Highways impact - lack of parking provision/potential overspill into cul-de-sac at Russell
Court/use by residents, staff and commercial vehicles

Residential amenity - increased activity leading to increased disturbance/concerns over
vagueness of proposed use

EXPIRY DATE OF APPLICATION: 01/09/2014

REASONS FOR DELAY IN DECISION (where applicable):
. awaiting consideration by Committee

Page 122



PLANNING ASSESSMENT:
1. THE PROPOSAL:
1.1 Summary of proposals
1.1.1 The proposal is for the change of use of a B1 Use Class office building to a C2 Use
Class residential institution.

1.1.2 The C2 use class can include hospitals, nursing homes, residential schools, colleges
and training centres. Plans indicate that 14 bed spaces would be provided. 6 parking
spaces are proposed within the site, accessed off Broughton Avenue.

1.1.3 An extension is proposed to provide a lift shaft. Materials of the extension would
match the existing building. An infill conservatory is proposed to the north east
elevation.

1.1.4 Local residents have questioned what specific use is proposed for the building. The
agent has confirmed that an unrestricted use within the C2 use class is sought and no
specific use has been confirmed.

1.2 Description of site and surroundings
1.2.1 The existing property is located on a residential cul-de-sac. The site adjoins the car
park of Denbighshire County Council offices at Russell House.

1.3 Relevant planning constraints/considerations
1.3.1 The site is located within the development boundary of Rhyl.

1.3.2 There are a number of trees in the locality that are subject to Tree Preservation
Orders.

1.4 Relevant planning history
1.4.1 The property was formerly in use as a residential care home.

1.4.2 Permission was granted for the change of use of the property from a C2 residential
institution to B1 offices in 2001.

1.5 Developments/changes since the original submission
1.5.1 None

1.6 Other relevant background information
1.6.1 None

2. DETAILS OF PLANNING HISTORY:
2.1 Change of use from C2 residential institution to B1 offices GRANTED 29/03/2001

3. RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE:
The main planning policies and guidance are considered to be:
Denbighshire Local Development Plan (adopted 4™ June 2013)
Policy RD1 — Sustainable development and good standard design
Policy ASA3 — Parking standards

3.1 Supplementary Planning Guidance
SPG 21 - Parking Standards

3.2 Government Policy / Guidance
Planning Policy Wales Edition 7 July 2014

Technical Advice Notes
TAN 18 - Transport

Page 123



MAIN PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS:

In terms of general guidance on matters relevant to the consideration of a planning application,
Planning Policy Wales Edition 7, July 2014 (PPW) confirms the requirement that planning
applications 'should be determined in accordance with the approved or adopted development plan
for the area, unless material considerations indicate otherwise' (Section 3.1.2). PPW advises that
material considerations must be relevant to the regulation of the development and use of land in
the public interest, and fairly and reasonably relate to the development concerned., and that these
can include the number, size, layout, design and appearance of buildings, the means of access,
landscaping, service availability and the impact on the neighbourhood and on the environment
(Sections 3.1.3 and 3.1.4).

The following paragraphs in Section 4 of the report therefore refer to the policies of the
Denbighshire Local Development Plan, and to the material planning considerations which are
considered to be of relevance to the proposal.

4.1 The main land use planning issues in relation to the application are considered to be:

4.1.1 Principle

4.1.2 Visual amenity
4.1.3 Residential amenity

4.1.4 Highways (including access and parking)

4.2 In relation to the main planning considerations:
4.2.1 Principle
Policy RD 1 states that development within development boundaries will be supported
subject to compliance with detailed tests.

The site lies within the development boundary and is not subject to any specific land
use designation.

Having regard to the above it is considered that the proposals are acceptable in
principle. The specific impacts are addressed in the following sections.

4.2.2 Visual amenity
Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 test (i) requires due regard to issues of siting,

layout, form, character, design, materials, aspect, microclimate and intensity of use of
land / buildings and spaces between buildings, which are matters relevant to the
visual impact of development; test (vi) requires that development does not
unacceptably affect prominent public views into, out of, or across any settlement or
area of open countryside; test (vi) requires the incorporation of existing landscape or
other features, takes account of site contours, and changes in levels and prominent
skylines; and test (xiii) requires the incorporation of suitable landscaping measures to
protect and enhance development in its local context.

Having regard to the design and scale of the proposed external alterations it is
considered that the proposals would have a minimal visual impact on the host building
and to the wider locality. It is therefore considered that the proposals are acceptable
in relation to visual amenity.

4.2.3 Residential amenity
Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 test (i) requires due regard to issues of siting,
layout, form, character, design, materials, aspect, microclimate and intensity of use of
land / buildings and spaces between buildings, which touch on the potential for impact
on residential amenity; test (vi) sets the requirement to assess the impact of
development on the amenities of local residents, other land and property users, or
characteristics of the locality, in terms of increased activity, disturbance, noise, dust,
fumes, litter, drainage, light pollution, etc.

The property is located on a residential cul -de-sac. The existing use is as an office
building. There are existing offices immediately adjoining the site. Previously the

Page 124



property has been in use as a residential care home until the changes of use to
offices in 2001.

Having regard to the history, existing use and other uses within the locality, it is not
considered that the proposal would have an unacceptable impact on the residential
amenity of neighbouring properties.

4.2.4 Highways (including access and parking)
Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 tests (vii) and (viii) oblige provision of safe and
convenient access for a range of users, together with adequate parking, services and
manoeuvring space; and consideration of the impact of development on the local
highway network Policy ASA 3 requires adequate parking spaces for cars and
bicycles in connection with development proposals, and outlines considerations to be
given to factors relevant to the application of standards. These policies reflect general
principles set out in Planning Policy Wales (Section 8) and TAN 18 — Transport, in
support of sustainable development. SPG 21 states that 1 parking space should be
provided per 3 bed spaces and 1 cycle storage space per 10 employees.

Concerns have been expressed in relation to parking issues. The Highways Officer
has raised no objection. It is recommended that cycle storage be provided. 5 car
parking spaces and 1 cycle storage space would be required to meet the standards
set out in SPG 21. 6 car parking spaces are proposed. No cycle storage is currently
proposed.

The concerns raised in relation to parking are duly noted, however having regard to
the above it is considered that the proposals would not have an unacceptable impact
on the local highways network subject to condition requiring provision of cycle
storage. The proposals are therefore considered to comply with the requirements of
the policies listed above.

Other Matters

Concerns are expressed by objectors over the vagueness of the proposed use. The
applicants agents have been approached on this matter and have advised that the
application seeks an unrestricted C2 use. The Council is considering the application
on this basis. Respectfully the property has historically been a residential home (a C2
use) and could have operated up to the 2001 change of use as any use within Class
C2 of the Use Classes Order.

5. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS:
In Officers’ opinion, the principle of the proposal is considered acceptable, and it is not
considered there would be adverse local impacts subject to compliance with planning
conditions.

RECOMMENDATION: GRANT- subject to the following conditions:-

1. The development to which this permission relates shall be begun no later than the expiration
of five years beginning with the date of this permission.
2. Prior to the commencement of the use hereby permitted, details of proposed cycle storage

shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The storage
details approved shall be completed prior to the commencement of the use and retained at all
times.

3. Facilities shall be provided and retained within the site for the loading/ unloading, parking and
turning of vehicles in accordance with the approved plan and which shall be completed prior
to the development being brought into use.

The reason(s) for the condition(s) is(are):-

1. To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2. In the interest of the provision of adequate cycle storage in accordance with adopted
standards

3. In the interest of highway safety.

Page 125



This page is intentionally left blank



Heading:

CYNGOR

qir D(fjn.lb 'l‘:h REFERENCE NO. 45/2014/0927/PO

) . .} . FORMER HONEY CLUB SITE

X/ Denbighshire 21-26 WEST PARADE, RHYL

COUNTY COUNCIL
Graham Boase Application Site N
Head of Planning & Public Protection l
Denbighshire County Council Date 28/8/2014 Scale 1/1250
Caledfryn Centre = 300523 E 381472 N
Smithﬁeld Road This plan is intended solely to give an indiction of the LOCATION of
Denb!gh _ the application site which forms the subject of the accompanying report.
Denbighshire LL16 3RJ It does not form any part of the application documents, and should not

be taken as representative of the proposals to be considered, which are

Tel: 01824 706800 Fax: 01824 706709 ) . . . .
available for inspection prior to the meeting.

v

Cinema

Tower

Car Park

Coach Fark

Windsor Court

g

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Surve behalf of t| ller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office.
© Crown copyright. Unauthorized reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosm il ppcg€djhgs. Denbighshire County Council. 100023408. 2011.

Atgynhyrchir y map hwn o ddeunydd yr Ordnance Survey gyda chaniatad yr Ordnance Survey ar ran Rheolwr Llyfrfa Ei Mawrhydi
© Hawlfraint y Goron. Mae atgynhyrchu heb ganiatad yn torri hawlfraint y Goron a gall hyn arwain at erlyniad neu achos sifil. Cyngor Sir Ddinbych. 100023408. 2011.




ELEVATION

SHLV.LSH WVEHSTHD

oy

S}O81I4IIY LUOIIBWIIO 4

1Ty s 1amany

P10z AInr L

sbuimelq uoneolddy

Juswa)e)g $$820Yy pue ubisag

1AyY ‘epeied 3sopp ‘9118 gn|D AsuoH Jowlo) sy} UO [9JOH UU| J8lwdlgd pasodosd

|

i

-

j "

\




ELEVATIONS

T4 West Parade slavatien

i; J. .E-’Jm BicT i

3 i

" Proposed Pramest lan Howl 30 e formar Honay Chd 3w et Parsow Ry Deasgn and Azcees Stammend

1.2 Water Strest slevation

B EE 00 ﬁ!ﬁ i Ill

e Shbd binihon

Page 129

Propo1et Premast kun Hoket 57 a former Mery Chic s W1l Farsos Anyl Design and Atcens Stamment




T3 Crescant Road slvation

NV

P |

Crercont Road snd Vaster Eres sievaton

el Proposed Premst inn vowl on the lormet Honey Chub tea Vwenn Pacade Ryl Dot and Accesa Stavement

T.4 Rear slavation

Page 130

Propatad Prechugr 6 Motal om the lermar Honey This 4oe Va1 Fatade Rivgl Dotigrt anet Ageean Jusment




4.0 Proposed floor plans

4.1 Ground floor

P !

~ Retlauront
& B L4 WL
: A
ol ke

terul racepnen
2

The foor plans avolved togethar with M :hw:ln‘n-l
desgn and ware devalepad wiih the operatol of iR
hoigd and tha restaurant

Fropaued Prémest I Harel dn the Rormee Horsy hbsre et Paaoe Detign and Accesy Jateram

4.2 First and second floor

M= e e s S )
50 0 A i T

iy

i g i i T

iy | i
L

By
rwr= Bt b
Horen
A
&

Farg st

Page 131

Propoted Pramuds (i Hitel gn the fommar 1oy Chatr L Vit Paigde Al Deargn and Access Itstement




Sarah Stubbs

ITEM NO: 9
WARD NO: Rhyl West
WARD MEMBER(S): ClIr lan Armstrong
ClIr Joan Bultterfield
APPLICATION NO: 45/2014/0927/ PO
PROPOSAL: Development of 0.18 hectares of land by the erection of a 70

bedroom hotel, restaurant and a retail unit (outline application
including access, appearance, layout and scale)

LOCATION: Former Honey Club Site 21-26 West Parade Rhyl
APPLICANT: Chesham Estates

CONSTRAINTS: Town Heritage AreaConservation Area
PUBLICITY Site Notice — Yes

UNDERTAKEN: Press Notice — Yes

Neighbour letters - Yes

REASON(S) APPLICATION REPORTED TO COMMITTEE:
Scheme of Delegation Part 2

e Application on Council land
o Key Regeneration Scheme in West Rhyl

CONSULTATION RESPONSES:
RHYL TOWN COUNCIL
Awaiting response at time of writing report

DWR CYMRU / WELSH WATER
Awaiting response at time of writing report

WALES AND WEST UTILITIES
Awaiting response at time of writing report

DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL CONSULTEES —

Head of Highways and Infrastructure

- Highways Officer
No objection subject to the inclusion of a condition to ensure retention of space for
loading/unloading, parking and turning of vehicles.

Conservation Architect
Awaiting response at time of writing report

Economic and Business Development Manager

Proposal is supported, this development is considered to be a turnkey project in Rhyl's
regeneration and will undoubtedly assist with Denbighshire’s Economic Ambition targets by
directly providing new jobs.

RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY:
None received at time of writing report

Page 132



EXPIRY DATE OF APPLICATION: 1/10/2014

PLANNING ASSESSMENT:
1. THE PROPOSAL:
1.1 Summary of proposals
1.1.1 The application seeks outline planning permission for the development of 0.18ha of
land by the erection of a 70 bedroom hotel, restaurant and a retail unit. Details of the
access, appearance, layout and scale have been included for consideration with only
landscaping reserved for future approval.

1.1.2 The application documents include a detailed Design and Access Statement, this sets
out how the scheme has developed and explains the details of the proposal, which
includes the following elements:

- Demolition of 25 and 26 West Parade

- Redevelopment of the whole site by the erection of a new 3 storey building which
includes: -

* A 70 bedroom hotel for the Premier Inn (Class C1) — 2,460sgm

The Premier Inn would be accessed from an entrance on the western end of the
building fronting West Parade, leading in to a large lobby area with reception, small
seating area, luggage area, linen store and office area. The hotel lobby would have
stair and lift access to the hotel rooms on the upper floors and direct access to the
Brewers Fayre restaurant.

On the first and second floors, there are a total of 70 hotel bedrooms, 35 rooms on
each floor with lobby area, linen and general storage areas. The bedrooms are all

double rooms with 4 of the bedrooms on each floor having the ability to link to the

room next door to provide family rooms.

* A Brewers Fayre Restaurant (Class A3) — 663sgm

The Brewers Fayre would be accessed from an entrance located on the corner of
the building with Water Street, but fronting West Parade. The entrance leads in to a
small lobby area, which then leads into a large eating area with bar, stores and toilet
facilities.

The southern section of the building, accessed internally from the restaurant area is

the service and staff area of the hotel and restaurant, and comprises a kitchen, team
room, laundry area, plant rooms, stores/fridges/freezers, office space with staff toilet
and changing facilities and also accessed externally off Water Street, a large refuse

storage area.

* A separate ground floor Class A1/A3 unit -110sgm.
This unit would be accessed from an entrance on the western end of West Parade.
Permission is sought for a retail use (Class Al) and food and drink use (Class A3).

- The formation of a vehicular access off Crescent Road with a rear access entrance
and lobby available to the hotel and entrance for staff of the Brewers Fayre. This is
also the delivery access and entrance.

-Provision of 6 car parking spaces and 3 disabled car parking spaces. The rear area
of the building will be landscaped with some soft planting.

1.1.3 Inrelation to the design and external appearance of the proposed building, the Design
and Access Statement explains the following:-
- The final elevations of the building comprise of:
* A clear articulation of a prominent corner building and subservient wings
* Additional height at the corner with illuminated ‘Premier Inn’ sign
* A corner building with horizontal white reconstituted stone bands evoking seaside

Page 133



2.

architecture

* A recess either side of the corner building to emphasise the corner building

* Windows placed in double height recess

* Recesses framed with faience tiles to emphasise a vertical rhythm and reduce the
visual extent of solid to void

* Faience tiles in a range of buff colours

* Small canopies within the ground floor arches

* A ‘Rhyl Sands’ art work panel comprising of projecting faience tiles on the flank
wall on Water Street. This idea has been inspired by an oil painting 'Rhyl Sands’ of
1854-1855 by David Cox.

Members are referred to the plans at front of the report which show the basic details.
1.2 Description of site and surroundings
1.2.1 The application site comprises 0.18ha of land located on the corner of West Parade
with Water Street and Crescent Road in Rhyl, formerly the site of a nightclub known
as ‘The Honey Club’. The site has been cleared of all previous development in
connection with the nightclub.

1.2.2 Included within the development are the derelict buildings at 25 and 26 West Parade,
which it is proposed to demolish as part of the proposal.

1.2.3 To the immediate north of the site is West Parade with the Sky Tower, car park and
cinema directly opposite the site. To the south is Crescent Road with predominantly
residential properties in close proximity to the site, No’s 6 to 12 Crescent Road
immediately adjoining the site. To the east are further blocks fronting West Parade,
with a large amusement arcade/centre on the opposite corner from the site. To the
west are further blocks fronting West Parade with retail units and amusement arcades
at ground floor level, some having upper floors in residential use.

1.2.4 The site is currently bounded by high metal fencing.

1.3 Relevant planning constraints/considerations
1.3.1 The application site is located within the development boundary of Rhyl.

1.3.2 The site is located within the Rhyl Central Conservation Area.

1.3.3 At the rear of the site, the neighbouring building at 45-56 Water Street is a Grade I
Listed Building.

1.4 Relevant planning history
1.4.1 Conservation Area Consent for demolition of the former Honey Club buildings was
approved by Welsh Government in 2012 with the demolition works undertaken
immediately.

1.5 Developments/changes since the original submission
1.5.1 None

1.6 Other relevant background information
1.6.1 Denbighshire County Council own the application site and_will continue to own the
land. A leasehold has been entered into for 125 years subject to conditions in the
Development Agreement.

DETAILS OF PLANNING HISTORY:
2.1 45/2012/0666/CA Complete demolition of the buildings formerly known as ‘The Honey Club’
(Conservation Area Consent) APPROVED by Welsh Government 20" September 2012.

45/2012/1538/DA Demolition of (i) buildings formerly known as 'The Honey Club'; (ii) garage

block rear of 27/28 West Parade; (iii) 2/4 Crescent Road; and (iv) partial demolition of 25/26
West Parade PRIOR APPROVAL NOT REQUIRED, 8" January 2013.

Page 134



3. RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE:
The main planning policies and guidance are considered to be:
Denbighshire Local Development Plan (adopted 4™ June 2013)
Policy RD1 — Sustainable development and good standard design
Policy PSE1 — North Wales Coast Strategic Regeneration Area
Policy PSE6 — Retail economy
Policy PSE9 — Out of centre retail development
Policy PSE11 — Major new tourism developments
Policy VOEL - Key areas of importance
Policy ASA3 — Parking standards

3.1 Supplementary Planning Guidance:
SPG Conservation Areas
SPG Landscaping New Developments
SPG Parking
SPG West Rhyl Regeneration Area

3.2 Government Policy / Guidance
Planning Policy Wales Edition 7 July 2014
Technical Advice Notes:
TAN 4: Retailing and Town Centres
TAN 12: Design
TAN 13: Tourism
TAN 18 Transport

4. MAIN PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS:

In terms of general guidance on matters relevant to the consideration of a planning application,
Planning Policy Wales Edition 7, July 2014 (PPW) confirms the requirement that planning
applications 'should be determined in accordance with the approved or adopted development plan
for the area, unless material considerations indicate otherwise' (Section 3.1.2). PPW advises that
material considerations must be relevant to the regulation of the development and use of land in
the public interest, and fairly and reasonably relate to the development concerned., and that these
can include the number, size, layout, design and appearance of buildings, the means of access,
landscaping, service availability and the impact on the neighbourhood and on the environment
(Sections 3.1.3 and 3.1.4).

The following paragraphs in Section 4 of the report therefore refer to the policies of the
Denbighshire Local Development Plan, and to the material planning considerations which are
considered to be of relevance to the proposal.

4.1 The main land use planning issues in relation to the application are considered to be:

4.1.1 Principle

4.1.2 Visual amenity
4.1.3 Residential amenity

4.1.4 Highways (including access and parking)
4.1.5 Impact on Conservation Area (including setting) and nearby Listed Building

4.2 In relation to the main planning considerations:
4.2.1 Principle

Within development boundaries, new development will, in principle be supported
provided that it meets with the criteria of other policies in the Local Development Plan
and material planning considerations. This assists in working towards a sustainable
pattern of development by directing most development to existing settlements thereby
making the most effective use of existing infrastructure, facilities and services by
reducing the need to travel.

Policy PSE 1 in the Local Development Plan relates to the North Wales Coast

Page 135



422

Strategic Regeneration Area and supports proposals which retain and develop a mix
of employment generating uses in town centres; or provide new family residential
accommodation; or enable the retention, enhancement and development of tourism
related facilities; or address existing problems of deprivation in a manner which is
consistent with the principles of sustainable development.

Policy PSE 9 in the Local Development Plan relates to out of centre retail
development and supports proposals for small scale retail uses within development
boundaries provided they are less than 500m2 gross area, they serve the local area,
do not form part of an industrial estate and do not jeopardise the viability and vitality
of town and district centres.

Policy PSE 11 relates to major new tourism developments and supports new forms of
tourism development subject to the proposal being appropriate to its setting and
within the capacity of the local environment; within the capacity of the local
infrastructure; accessible to all potential users; supporting and extending the range of
facilities on offer within the County; assisting in the regeneration and biodiversity
objectives of Denbighshire and will utilise local labour where possible.

Further guidance is available within the West Rhyl Regeneration SPG. In terms of the
regeneration context, Denbighshire and its delivery partners are focused on a
comprehensive plan for West Rhyl based on the area’s strategic needs. Key seafront
development sites offer an opportunity for private sector investment and a funded
programme of public sector investment has been put in to place to tackle the key
housing and green space needs. The area has the potential to create a step change
in its economic performance and long term sustainability and the SPG provides key
land use and design principles to guide this investment. The SPG identifies the site
within the illustrative development framework as a site for a proposed hotel, retail,
leisure or commercial development with general development principles to be
followed.

In relation to the above policies and guidance, the redevelopment proposals
submitted are considered acceptable in principle. The proposal would bring a derelict
site, located in a prominent position in West Rhyl back into use, and would support
and strengthen adjacent retail and tourism priority investment areas. The proposal
would help regenerate the surrounding areas through increased economic activity and
would set a benchmark for future development in the area.

Visual amenity
Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 test (i) requires due regard to issues of siting,

layout, form, character, design, materials, aspect, microclimate and intensity of use of
land / buildings and spaces between buildings, which are matters relevant to the
visual impact of development; test (vi) requires that development does not
unacceptably affect prominent public views into, out of, or across any settlement or
area of open countryside; test (vi) requires the incorporation of existing landscape or
other features, takes account of site contours, and changes in levels and prominent
skylines; and test (xiii) requires the incorporation of suitable landscaping measures to
protect and enhance development in its local context.

At the time of writing this report there are no objections received to the proposal on
visual amenity grounds.

The site lies in a prominent location on the corner of West Parade with Water Street
and Crescent Road, within a Conservation Area. The proposal is to redevelop the site
by providing a modern building, the details of which has been carefully considered
having regard to the streetscape, height, design and detailing of adjoining buildings
along with the overall context of the site, being in a prominent position within a
designated regeneration area in a seaside town.

Overall, it is considered that the proposal by virtue of the proposed scale, appearance

Page 136



4.2.3

424

and layout would make a positive contribution to this part of Rhyl. The development
would provide a sensitive, high quality, contemporary building which will help
regenerate the surrounding areas. The proposal would not have a negative visual
impact on the area. It is therefore considered acceptable in relation to the policies and
guidance listed above.

Landscaping details are reserved for further approval and will be the subject of a
further reserved matters application if this outline planning application is approved.

Residential amenity)

Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 test (i) requires due regard to issues of siting,
layout, form, character, design, materials, aspect, microclimate and intensity of use of
land / buildings and spaces between buildings, which touch on the potential for impact
on residential amenity; test (vi) sets the requirement to assess the impact of
development on the amenities of local residents, other land and property users, or
characteristics of the locality, in terms of increased activity, disturbance, noise, dust,
fumes, litter, drainage, light pollution, etc.

At the time of writing this report there are no objections received to the proposal on
residential amenity grounds.

There are residential properties adjacent to the application site on Crescent Road,
with the properties at 6 to 12 Crescent Road (terrace of 4 properties) immediately
adjoining the site to the south. This terrace is a traditional 2 storey property with large
outriggers to the rear, extending approx 15m from the rear of the property. The side
elevation of no 6 would be 3.5m from the ‘wing’ of the building to the south of the site
fronting Crescent Road. This property has 1 window within the gable end at first floor
level facing into the application site, with some windows at ground and first floor of the
outrigger, these windows currently overlook over the derelict site.

The proposal has been designed so that the main bulk of the building is sited away
from the properties on Crescent Road, and away from windows to minimise the
impact of the proposal on the amenities of this property. Within the proposed
elevation facing no 6 Crescent Road, only 1 window has been located at first floor
level and 1 window at second floor level with both only serving the end of a corridor,
not hotel bedroom windows. Whilst the scale and height of the building is clearly
greater than the adjacent property, it is not considered that the proposal would have
an overbearing impact, and would not adversely impact on the privacy of the
occupiers of this property.

The main rear elevation of the proposal does not directly overlook the properties on
Crescent Road, which are orientated at an angle away from the proposed building. At
its closest point to the corner of the large outrigger to No 6 Crescent Road, the rear
elevation is 14m away and at the centre point of the outrigger is located 19m away.
Also giving consideration to the previous use of the site which was a nightclub, it is
not considered that the proposal would adversely impact upon the residential
amenities of nearby residents.

Highways (including access and parking)

Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 tests (vii) and (viii) oblige provision of safe and
convenient access for a range of users, together with adequate parking, services and
manoeuvring space; and consideration of the impact of development on the local
highway network Policy ASA 3 requires adequate parking spaces for cars and
bicycles in connection with development proposals, and outlines considerations to be
given to factors relevant to the application of standards. These policies reflect general
principles set out in Planning Policy Wales (Section 8) and TAN 18 — Transport, in
support of sustainable development.

The proposal is to form a vehicular access off Crescent Road, which would lead to a
rear parking and service area. It is proposed to provide 6 car parking spaces with 3

Page 137



disabled parking spaces.

Applying the parking standards in the SPG a total of 20 car parking spaces would be
required as the proposal comprises a hotel, restaurant and retail/food and drink unit at
ground floor. On the basis of the proposed floor area of a 70 bed hotel, 1 space is
required per 10 guest beds which results in the need for 7 spaces for the hotel; 11
spaces would be required for the A3 restaurant use based on the proposed floor area
of 663sgm and the need for 1 space per 60sgm and 2 spaces for the retail/food and
drink unit, based on a proposed floor area of 110sgm and the need for 1 space per
60sgm for food and drink (there would be no requirement to provide parking for a non-
food retail use as it is less than 200sgm in floor area.

At the time of writing this report there are no objections received to the proposal on
highway grounds.

Highway Officers have assessed the proposed development as acceptable. The
access to the site is considered acceptable and the proposal provides limited on- site
parking which is considered acceptable in a town centre location.

The proposal clearly does not meet the SPG parking requirement, however
justification for providing a reduced amount of parking is acceptable in Officer’s
opinion on the basis of the sites location within a town, close to the town centre. The
site is located within an area where on street parking is available and public car parks
are nearby, and it is also within close proximity to the town centre where there are
both bus and train stations. The site is easily accessible by non-car users, with
parking facilities available for car users elsewhere within close proximity of the site.

4.2.5 Impact on Conservation Area (including setting) and nearby Listed Building
Policy VOE 1 looks to protect sites of built heritage and historic landscapes, parks
and gardens from development that would adversely affect them. Development
proposals should maintain and wherever possible, enhance these areas for their
characteristics, local distinctiveness and value to local communities.

At the time of writing this report there are no objections received to the proposal on
visual amenity grounds.

The proposal has been developed in close liaison with Denbighshire Officers, and
advice was sought from a Conservation Specialist early on in the development of the
scheme.

A scheme was presented to the Design Commission in November 2013, and the
proposal has been amended to reflect the comments provided. The strong reference
to the historic appearance of the Parade was revised to achieve a contemporary
elevation sensitive to its seaside location. A series of design solutions were
investigated and discussed, which has resulted in the proposal as currently submitted.

The proposed building is seeking to provide an architectural response which is
sensitive to the historic character of the area (predominantly Victorian buildings) but
creates a contemporary high quality design appropriate to the site and proposed use.
Overall it is considered that the proposal is well designed, the details of the building
have been carefully considered having regard to the streetscape, height, design and
detailing of adjoining buildings along with the overall context of the site within the
Conservation Area.

It is considered that the proposal would make a positive contribution to this part of
Rhyl and would maintain and enhance the character of the Conservation Area and
setting of the nearby Listed Building.

5. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS:

Page 138



5.1 The principle of development is considered acceptable with limited adverse impact on visual
and residential amenity. It is not considered that there are any highway safety or parking
concerns. In design terms, it is considered that the proposal would maintain and enhance the
character of the Conservation Area.

RECOMMENDATION: GRANT- subject receipt of no further representations raising matters not
already covered within the report or late sheet and subject to the following conditions:-

1. Approval of the details of the landscaping of the site (hereinafter called "the reserved
matters") shall be obtained from the Local Planning Authority in writing before the
commencement of any development.

2. The development hereby permitted shall be begun either before the expiration of five years
from the date of this permission, or before the expiration of two years from the date of
approval of the last of the reserved matters to be approved, whichever is the later.

3. Application for approval of the reserved matters shall be made to the Local Planning Authority
before the expiration of three years from the date of this permission.
4. No development shall commence until the written approval of the Local Planning Authority

has been obtained to the precise detailing of the type, materials and finish of all external wall
and roof materials for the development.

5. Facilities shall be provided and retained within the site for the parking, turning, loading and
unloading of vehicles and shall be provided and completed in accordance with the approved
plan prior to the commencement of the use of the building.

6. The use of the ground floor retail/food and drink unit hereby permitted shall be limited to
ClassA1/A3 of the Town & Country Planning (Use Classes order) 1987 only.

The reasons for the conditions are :-

To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.
In the interests of visual amenity and character and appearance of the Conservation Area.
In the interests of highway safety.

In the interest of the amenity of the area.

ogkrwnrE

Page 139



This page is intentionally left blank



CYNGOR Heading:

Srj-r _Ddinb Eh REFERENCE NO. 46/2013/1222/PF
) _}/ LAND AT BRONWYLFA NURSERIES,

Denbi gh shire BRYN GOBAITH, ST ASAPH
v COUNTY COUNCIL

Graham Boase Application Site N
Head of Planning & Public Protection \
Denbighshire County Council Date 10/7/2014 Scale 1/2500

Caledfryn Centre = 304019 E 374588 N

Smithfield Road This plan is intended solely to give an indiction of the LOCATION of
Denbigh the application site which forms the subject of the accompanying report.
Denbighshire LL16 3RJ It does not form any part of the application documents, and should not

be taken as representative of the proposals to be considered, which are

Tel: 01824 706800 Fax: 01824 706709 ) . . ) .
available for inspection prior to the meeting.

B,

&

4
e

CE‘ dfw
G EE
e

1] z %ﬁ‘hmnn il
0 e S o
e d}a [;E! o
ﬂ g & & g
n -

.I dod //fﬁ‘m"\“\
NN S YA

2o

o

&
" \
Y
TN @ &NE D

W T

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Surve behalf of t] oller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office.
© Crown copyright. Unauthorized reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosm (o] €l pi dihgs. Denbighshire County Council. 100023408. 2011.

Atgynhyrchir y map hwn o ddeunydd yr Ordnance Survey gyda chaniatad yr Ordnance Survey ar ran Rheolwr Llyfrfa Ei Mawrhydi
© Hawlfraint y Goron. Mae atgynhyrchu heb ganiatad yn torri hawlfraint y Goron a gall hyn arwain at erlyniad neu achos sifil. Cyngor Sir Ddinbych. 100023408. 2011.




LAMOVT

1|.
LNV @Sty |

Adrirgze o

-

g el e P e 7 vt s el e

g mmnd e e e

.... b e T T

oy n omsed Tt ot

Page 142




I ’Dd ¥1'S0'41 "LV 0OT-1

W,

ous

JroAe 100[4 pUNCID ﬂ_\l\\ oY d

Page 156

®)

it

Idrizztsciog g4

- - 5
H

lﬂ_lurl_ﬂnqﬂﬂﬁjul\_ﬂwﬂu._ﬂ; ,
SIY4aNVT1 dHL




e T T

el T Tl e

p10T'S0°£Z "EV 00T-T

WY ETenat svwes
COLLSC P00 W) XK S0 L

HOUSE T\ PES

P e,

L S

Eomm_ Jooj|d iS4

._m
it
g
|
i
:
i
m.....n_.

uoleAs|g ._mmm ummoaoi

:o=m>m_m_ m_u,w pasodoid

i 1 _ I
| | _ _
| m .__ | __

s B .r__ b
A3 3T | |

%1{ ..r_..._.._._.. NETEE TR iR e
L4 +

R\ EREL

zow_m_zb_& JHL

Ly

Page 155
Page 144




HOUVSE T PES

ol i e e gy B g ey el OO

peacwr fsurig 60 60°LL ¥ AT
ETOZ'TI'SO ‘EV DOT-T
yrivjine sas

BB Sv1L0-¥8 | DOOCHE Pel1l )

ey JNOAB| JOO|H 15414

TAMNY
L N
L =
W/bsge0l

NoAe| 100)4 pPUNOUL)

p—— —— = n - R e o

uofieAs|3 epig pesodoly

oy - = Illl.l.‘ll.llur._:.hlllii.
- B i i

uoleaa|y epig pasodolg

uojjeAs|J Jeay pesodoid

Page 145

c

ke

©

>

@

(TR}

I

8

(T

o

03]

o 0

S 2

Qa
Page 154

o
.

i i __E,E%_ ¥.03 WD
07 AVW ¥
SEINESEL

AGNdLl dHL




ITEM NO:

WARD NO:

WARD MEMBER(S):

APPLICATION NO:

PROPOSAL:

LOCATION:

APPLICANT:

CONSTRAINTS:

PUBLICITY
UNDERTAKEN:

Sarah Stubbs
10

St Asaph East
Clir Dewi Owens
46/2013/1222/ PF

Erection of 15 No. detached dwellings and construction of new
vehicular accesses on 1.44 hectares of land

Land at Bronwylfa Nurseries Bryn Gobaith St Asaph
Anwyl Construction Co Limited

Conservation Area

Site Notice — Yes

Press Notice — Yes
Neighbour letters - Yes

REASON(S) APPLICATION REPORTED TO COMMITTEE:

Scheme of Delegation Part 2

e Recommendation to grant / approve — Town / Community Council comments

CONSULTATION RESPONSES:
ST ASAPH CITY COUNCIL
“No objection as long as the proposed traffic calming measures remain in place”.

NATURAL RESOURCES WALES

No objection on flood risk grounds. The site supports Great Crested Newts and species of
reptile; the surveys submitted are satisfactory, however a derogation licence will be required
and a planning condition or obligation is suggested to consider the implementation of
amphibian reasonable avoidance measures during construction, the implementation and
completion of long term site security, management and surveillance proposals and details in
respect of the safeguarding and protection of reptiles.

DWR CYMRU / WELSH WATER

No objection

DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL CONSULTEES —
Head of Highways and Infrastructure

- Highways Officer

No objection subject to the inclusion of conditions requiring parking details for each plot,
details of layout, design, means of traffic calming, street lighting, signing, drainage and
construction of internal estate road and details of site compound location, traffic
management scheme, vehicle washing, hours and days of operation and the management
and operation of construction vehicles.

Conservation Architect

No objection provided the boundary treatment to Chester Street is retained as indicated.

Ecologist

No objection, monitoring and management of the mitigation site should continue as currently.

Page 146



Housing and Community Development Service
Response awaited at time of writing report

RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY:

In objection representations received from:

A. Savage, Perthi, Mount Road, St. Asaph

P. Capper. Llys Bronwylfa, Bryn Gobaith, St. Asaph

Summary of planning based representations in objection:
Highway concerns: Bryn Gobaith and Mount Road is unsuitable for yet another increase in the

flow of traffic; problems exist at the junction of Mount Road and Bryn Gobaith along with
parking and traffic flow along both these streets.

Residential Amenity

Unclear how the development will affect the amenity/privacy of Llys Bronwylfa.

EXPIRY DATE OF APPLICATION: 5/12/2013

REASONS FOR DELAY IN DECISION:

additional information required from applicant

protracted negotiations resulting in amended plans

re-consultations / further publicity necessary on amended plans and / or additional
information

PLANNING ASSESSMENT:
1. THE PROPOSAL:
1.1 Summary of proposals

111

1.1.2

113

114

1.15

116

This application was deferred at the July 2014 Committee at the request of Councillor
Dewi Owens, to allow the highway issues relevant to the application to be considered
by a Site Inspection Panel. The notes of the Site Inspection Panel will be reported on
the Late Representation Sheets for the Planning Committee Meeting.

The proposal seeks full planning permission for the erection of 15 detached dwellings
and construction of a new vehicular access on land at the former Bronwylfa
Nurseries, St Asaph.

The application proposes the erection of 15 detached two storey dwellings with
integral double garages. Each property would be provided with substantial private
amenity areas and off street parking facilities.

The site is accessed off Bryn Gobaith from a single access point which has in the
main already been constructed and the junction adopted, following the grant of
planning permission for 9 dwellings in 2006.

The site contains 2 ponds on the eastern boundary and it is proposed to retain the
ponds within a wildlife area measuring 0.45ha in total, which would be transferred to a
wildlife trust to be managed.

In between plots 8 and 9 leading to the wildlife area, an 8m wide surface water sewer
easement is proposed.

1.2 Description of site and surroundings

121

The site is located at the end of Bryn Gobaith in St Asaph. The site comprises a
former commercial nursery where all buildings/structures were removed several years
ago.

Page 147



2.

3.

1.2.2 The enclosed area of land is surrounded by mature trees/woodlands to the east,
south and west, and located to the north is ‘Llys Bronwylfa’ which comprises 2
separate dwellings.

1.2.3 Located within the site along the eastern boundary are 2 ponds.

1.3 Relevant planning constraints/considerations
1.3.1 The site is located within the development boundary of St Asaph and is an allocated
housing site within the Local Development Plan. This allocation reflects the extant
planning permission for 9 dwellings.

1.4 Relevant planning history
1.4.1 Full planning permission for 9 dwellings was granted in 2006, with the relevant
conditions complied with and a material start made on site before the permission
expired in March 2011. There is therefore an extant planning permission in place for 9
dwellings which is a significant material consideration.

1.5 Developments/changes since the original submission
1.5.1 The original submission was for 14 dwellings with a commuted sum for affordable
housing offered.

1.6 Other relevant background information
1.6.1 Members are referred to a separate report on the agenda, application Code no
46/2014/0436/PS, which seeks the removal of a condition imposed on a 2013
permission for the development of land adjacent to the north of Bryn Gobaith; this
condition being of direct relevance to the current application as it relates to a scheme
of improvements at the Mount Road/Bryn Gobaith junction and traffic calming on
Mount Road and Bryn Gobaith.

DETAILS OF PLANNING HISTORY:

2.1 43/2003/1445/PF Erection of 9 no. detached houses, road junction alterations and traffic
calming along Mount Road and Bryn Gobaith, construction of new vehicular access and
formation of wildlife habitat areas GRANTED 10" March 2006 following the completion of the
Section 106 agreement. Resolution to ‘Grant’ made at Planning Committee

The Section 106 requires the developer to contribute towards the provision of affordable
housing, detailed mitigation and future management proposals for the great crested newts
habitat to secure long-term conservation status of the habitat site and also highway junction
improvements/traffic calming at the Mount Road/Bryn Gobaith junction and along Bryn
Gobaith Road.

RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE:

The main planning policies and guidance are considered to be:
Denbighshire Local Development Plan (adopted 4™ June 2013)
Policy RD1 — Sustainable development and good standard design
Policy BSC1 — Growth Strategy for Denbighshire

Policy BSC4 — Affordable Housing

Policy BSC11 — Recreation and open space

Policy BSC12 — Community facilities

Policy VOE5 — Conservation of natural resources

Policy ASA3 — Parking standards

3.1 Supplementary Planning Guidance
Supplementary Planning Guidance — Affordable Housing
Supplementary Planning Guidance 4 - Open Space Requirements in New Developments
Supplementary Planning Guidance 7 — Residential Space Standards
Supplementary Planning Guidance 21 — Parking

Page 148



Supplementary Planning Guidance 25 — Residential Development Design Guide

3.2 Government Policy / Guidance
Planning Policy Wales Edition 7 July 2014

Technical Advice Notes
TANS5: Nature Conservation
TAN 18: Transport

MAIN PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS:

In terms of general guidance on matters relevant to the consideration of a planning application,
Planning Policy Wales Edition 7, July 2014 (PPW) confirms the requirement that planning
applications 'should be determined in accordance with the approved or adopted development plan
for the area, unless material considerations indicate otherwise' (Section 3.1.2). PPW advises that
material considerations must be relevant to the regulation of the development and use of land in
the public interest, and fairly and reasonably relate to the development concerned., and that these
can include the number, size, layout, design and appearance of buildings, the means of access,
landscaping, service availability and the impact on the neighbourhood and on the environment
(Sections 3.1.3 and 3.1.4).

The following paragraphs in Section 4 of the report therefore refer to the policies of the
Denbighshire Local Development Plan, and to the material planning considerations which are
considered to be of relevance to the proposal.

4.1 The main land use planning issues in relation to the application are considered to be:

4.1.1 Principle

4.1.2 Visual amenity

4.1.3 Residential amenity

4.1.4 Ecology

4.1.5 Drainage (including flooding)

4.1.6 Highways (including access and parking)
4.1.7 Affordable Housing

4.1.8 Open Space

4.1.9 Density of development

4.1.10 Sustainability codes and water management

4.2 In relation to the main planning considerations:
4.2.1 Principle

The main policy in the LDP which is relevant to the principle of housing development
in towns is BSC1, which seeks to make provision for new housing in a range of
locations, concentrating development within identified development boundaries.
Policy RD1 states that development proposals within development boundaries will be
supported subject to compliance with detailed criteria. The proposals would therefore
be acceptable in terms of the general principles of these policies.

The site is located within the development boundary of St Asaph in the adopted Local
Development Plan where the principle of residential development is considered
acceptable. Residential development has been previously accepted by the grant of
full planning permission for 9 dwellings, which is an extant planning permission.

4.2.2 Visual amenity
Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 test (i) requires due regard to issues of siting,

layout, form, character, design, materials, aspect, microclimate and intensity of use of
land / buildings and spaces between buildings, which are matters relevant to the
visual impact of development; test (vi) requires that development does not
unacceptably affect prominent public views into, out of, or across any settlement or
area of open countryside; test (vi) requires the incorporation of existing landscape or

Page 149



4.2.3

424

other features, takes account of site contours, and changes in levels and prominent
skylines; and test (xiii) requires the incorporation of suitable landscaping measures to
protect and enhance development in its local context.

There are no objections from local residents or the City Council in relation to the
visual impact of the proposal.

The external materials on the dwellings are indicated as facing bricks with some
render, with tiled roofs, to the Council’s approval. Overall, it is considered that the
proposal by virtue of the scale, design and existing screening provided by mature
vegetation would not have a negative visual impact on the area. It is therefore
considered acceptable in relation to the policies and guidance listed above.

Residential amenity

Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 test (i) requires due regard to issues of siting,
layout, form, character, design, materials, aspect, microclimate and intensity of use of
land / buildings and spaces between buildings, which touch on the potential for impact
on residential amenity; test (vi) sets the requirement to assess the impact of
development on the amenities of local residents, other land and property users, or
characteristics of the locality, in terms of increased activity, disturbance, noise, dust,
fumes, litter, drainage, light pollution, etc.

There is a comment from a local resident over potential for loss of privacy from the
new development on the site and that it is unclear how the development will impact
upon them.

Having regard to the revised layout for 15 units and the detailing of dwellings relative
to nearby development, Officers opinion is that there would be no adverse impacts on
the amenities of occupiers of existing or proposed dwellings.

Ecology
Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 test (iii) requires development to protect and

where possible to enhance the local natural and historic environment. Policy VOE 5
requires due assessment of potential impacts on protected species or designated
sites of nature conservation, including mitigation proposals, and suggests that
permission should not be granted where proposals are likely to cause significant harm
to such interests. This reflects policy and guidance in Planning Policy Wales (Section
5.2), current legislation and SPG 18 — Nature Conservation and Species Protection,
which stress the importance of the planning system in meeting biodiversity objectives
through promoting approaches to development which create new opportunities to
enhance biodiversity, prevent biodiversity losses, or compensate for losses where
damage is unavoidable.

The site supports Great Crested Newts and species of reptile. No objections have
been expressed over the potential impact on these species as a result of
development. The Council’s Biodiversity Officer and Natural Resources Wales (NRW)
have raised no objection subject to the implementation of the measures detailed in
the ecological survey and imposition of planning conditions or a suitable obligation.

The Great Crested Newt is protected under the provisions of the Wildlife and
Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and the Conservation of Habitats and Species
Regulation 2010 (as amended). NRW have stated that the proposal is not likely to be
detrimental to the maintenance of the favourable conservation status of any
population of European or British protected species that may be present at the
application site.

Officers’ conclusion is that it would be in order to protect ecological interests through
a Section 106 agreement ensuring the development is undertaken in accordance with

Page 150



4.2.5

4.2.6

the recommendations within the ecological report.

Drainage (including flooding)

Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 test (xi) requires that development satisfies
physical or natural environmental considerations relating to drainage and liability to
flooding. Planning Policy Wales Section 13.2 identifies flood risk as a material
consideration in planning and along with TAN 15 — Development and Flood Risk,
provides a detailed framework within which risks arising from different sources of
flooding should be assessed.

There are no representations relating to the drainage implications of the development.
The applicant has indicated an intention to connect to the existing main foul sewer in
Bryn Gobaith and has provided a drainage layout plan. Dwr Cymru / Welsh Water
have raised no objection to the proposal subject to standard advisory notes being
included and NRW have raised no flood risk objections.

In Officers opinion, the consultation responses suggest there are no drainage grounds
to oppose the development of the application site.

Highways (including access and parking)

Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 tests (vii) and (viii) oblige provision of safe and
convenient access for a range of users, together with adequate parking, services and
manoeuvring space; and consideration of the impact of development on the local
highway network Policy ASA 3 requires adequate parking spaces for cars and
bicycles in connection with development proposals, and outlines considerations to be
given to factors relevant to the application of standards. These policies reflect general
principles set out in Planning Policy Wales (Section 8) and TAN 18 — Transport, in
support of sustainable development.

An objection has been received from a local resident in relation to highway safety and
the impact an increased number of dwellings (9 to 15) would have on the local
highway network. The City Council have stated they have no objections to the revised
number of dwellings as long as traffic calming measures remain in place.

The means of access to the site is off an existing access off Bryn Gobaith, which was
constructed in accordance with approved details following the grant of planning
permission in 2006. That planning permission included details of highway works/traffic
calming to Mount Road and Bryn Gobaith, which formed part of a Section 106
agreement and which also required further agreement with the Highway Authority.

This application no longer proposes any highway works/traffic calming measures to
Mount Road and/or Bryn Gobaith as part of the proposal. In this respect, Members
are referred to the report on application ref 46/2014/0436/PS for the removal of
condition on the 2013 permission for development of land north of Bryn Gobaith
requiring highway improvements/traffic calming. This explains that the Highway
Officer has carefully considered the highway related concerns and having discussed
at length with the Traffic Section who have looked at the traffic situations in this area
very carefully, the conclusion is that it is difficult to see how junction improvements
can be incorporated without adversely affecting the existing operation of the junction
of Bryn Gobaith/Mount Road.

Traffic surveys were carried out on Bryn Gobaith between 20th May 2011 and 27th
May 2011 and this result showed that the average flow, including both directions was
197 vehicles over 24 hours. In the peak hours there were 18 vehicles south bound
and 17 vehicles north bound.

Traffic surveys were also carried out on Mount Road between 20th May 2011 and
27th May 2011 and the results showed that the average flow including both directions
was 1331 vehicles over 24 hours. This would mean that in the peak hours there were
130 vehicles north bound and 105 vehicles south bound.

Page 151



4.2.7

4.2.8

Having regard to the traffic survey data along with the Highways Technical Note
submitted in the consideration of the outline planning permission at land north of Bryn
Gobaith it is not considered that it would be reasonable to insist on junction
improvements on an application for just 15 dwellings on land at the former Bronwylfa
Nurseries.

In relation to traffic calming on Bryn Gobaith it is unlikely that any scheme would
reduce the speed of traffic below the already low existing speeds, and these would
therefore have no significant effect. In conclusion, Highways Officers raise no
objection to the proposal for 15 units, with no highway improvements at Bryn
Gobaith/Mount Road or traffic calming measures along Bryn Gobaith.

It is not considered, with respect to objections raised, that there are any reasonable
highway grounds to refuse permission here.

Affordable Housing

Policy BSC3 of the local development plan sets the basic requirement for
development to contribute where relevant to the provision of infrastructure including
affordable housing, in line with Policy BSC4. Policy BSC4 relates specifically to
affordable housing, and requires that all developments of three or more residential
units provide a minimum of 10% affordable housing either onsite on developments of
10 or more units, or by way of a financial contribution on developments of less than
10 units.

The proposal is to provide 1 affordable housing unit on site with Plot 7 identified as an
intermediate affordable housing unit. A Section 106 agreement would be required to
secure this unit for affordable purposes.

Open Space
Policy BSC 3 of the local development plan sets the basic requirement for

development to contribute, where relevant, to the provision of infrastructure, including
recreation and open space, in accordance with policy BSC 11. Policy BSC 11
requires new developments to provide open space in accordance with the County’s
minimum standard of 2.4 hectares per 1000 population. It states that open space
should always be provided on site, and that commuted sums will only be acceptable
where it is demonstrated that development would not be financially viable should the
full requirement be provided onsite, or where it is impractical to provide the full
requirement onsite. Where there is no identified shortfall of open space in an area, the
option of a commuted sum payment may be appropriate to mitigate impact on existing
open space and equipment.

The development of 15 dwellings generates a requirement for open space in line with
Policy BSC 11. The applicant is offering a commuted sum in relation to the provision
and maintenance of off-site Children’s Play Space and the provision of off-site
Community Recreational Open Space (CROS) of £29,440.80. This is considered
acceptable to meet the open space requirement in this instance via a commuted sum
as it would be impractical to provide all the required open space on site due to the
requirement for wildlife area within the site. The 2000 Open Space Survey indicated a
deficit in Childrens' play space in St Asaph but no deficit in relation to CROS. Test iii)
of Policy BSC 11 states that where there is no shortfall a commuted sum will be
sought to mitigate the impact of increased usage of existing facilities locally. It is
considered acceptable to require a commuted sum for provision of CROS in this
instance but to waive the maintenance element as the capital sum is likely to be
invested in an existing facility which already has maintenance arrangements in place.

In Officers’ opinion the proposal to provide a commuted sum is consistent with the

requirements of Policy BSC11 of the Local Development Plan, and this would be
secured by a Section 106 agreement.

Page 152



4.2.9 Density of development
Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 test (ii) requires due consideration of the
efficiency of use of land through achieving a suitable density of residential
development, referring to a minimum of 35 dwellings per hectare, unless there are
local circumstances that dictate a lower density.

Although the site area measures approx 1.4ha, taking into account the junction,
access road into the site, hedgerows/wooded areas, ponds and wildlife area
proposed, the developable area is only. 0.9ha. The density of development would
therefore be around 16 dwellings per hectare which is below the 35 dwellings per
hectare figure referred to in Policy RD 1. However, having regard to the constraints of
this particular site and characteristics of the area, and the extant permission for 9
dwellings, this density is considered acceptable in this instance.

4.2.10 Sustainability codes and water management
Sustainable development is a key part of the Local Development Plan Strategy, and
has been applied to the land use policies and allocations in the Plan. Planning Policy
Wales (Section 4.12) sets out Welsh Government’s drive to ensure that development
proposals mitigate the causes of climate change by minimising carbon and other
greenhouse gas emissions associated with their design, construction, use , and
eventual demolition, and outlines the requirement to move towards more sustainable
and zero carbon buildings in Wales through application of specific standards for
construction. The Sustainability Code requirements are referred to in TAN 22
Sustainable Buildings, which confirms the obligation on applicants to demonstrate that
building(s) can meet specific standards of construction and carbon emission levels.

In the case of this submission, the application is accompanied by a Code for
Sustainable Homes Pre-Assessment report in accordance with the requirements of
TAN 12, TAN 22 and Planning Policy Wales at the time of submission. However,

the Minister for Housing and Regeneration has recently announced amendments to
the National Planning for Sustainable Buildings policy contained in Planning Policy
Wales (PPW) and the cancellation of Technical Advice Note (TAN) 22 when the
changes to Part L (relating to energy efficiency) of the Building Regulations come into
force at the end of July 2014.

Any applications determined after the 31 July 2014, including Section 73 applications
which might seek to remove extant conditions on planning permissions requiring the
relevant Code for Sustainable Homes / BREEAM levels to be achieved, should be
assessed in accordance with the policy changes. Given the timing of the
determination of this application and that the development could not be implemented
before the end of July 2014 it is considered to be unreasonable to impose the
standard conditions requiring compliance with the Code for Sustainable Homes.

5. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS:
5.1 The site has a valid full planning consent for 9 dwellings, is an allocated housing site and is
located within the development boundary of St Asaph within the adopted Denbighshire Local
Development Plan. This establishes the acceptability of the principle of the development.

5.2 The detailing of the 15 dwellings is considered acceptable, along with arrangements for
affordable housing and open space.

5.3 With due respect to the concerns of the City Council and objector with regards to the impact
of the increase in the number of dwellings on the local highway network, the proposals have
been scrutinised by the Highways Officer and there are no objections raised.

5.4 The recommendation is subject to the completion of an obligation under Section 106 of the
1990 Planning Act within 12 months of the date of resolution by the committee to secure:

Page 153



@) The provision of 1 no affordable housing unit and the retention of this unit for
affordable purposes.

(b) The payment of a commuted sum for provision and maintenance of open space of
£29,440.80 apportioned as follows:

CROS Provision Costs £9,993.60
CPA Provision Costs £14,212.80
CPA Maintenance Costs £5,234.40

5.5 The Certificate of Decision would only be released on completion of the legal obligation, and

on failure to complete within the time period, the application would be re-presented to the
Committee and determined in accordance with the policies of the Council applicable at that
time, should material circumstances change beyond a period of 12 months after this
Committee.

RECOMMENDATION: GRANT subject to the following conditions:-

1.

© N

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of five years from the
date of this permission.
PRE-COMMENCEMENT
Prior to the commencement of the development, the written approval of the Local Planning
Authority shall be obtained in respect of the walls and roof materials to be used for the
development hereby permitted and no materials other than those approved shall be used.
PRE COMMENCEMENT
Prior to the commencement of development, the detailed layout, design, means of traffic
calming, street lighting, signing, drainage and construction of the internal estate road shall be
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority and the road shall be constructed
in accordance with such approved details before any dwelling is occupied.
No development shall be permitted to take place until the written approval of the Local
Planning Authority has been obtained in relation to the site compound location, traffic
management scheme, vehicle wheel washing facilities, hours and days of operation and the
management and operation of construction vehicles, the works shall be carried out strictly in
accordance with the approved details.
Facilities shall be provided and retained within each plot for the parking of vehicles in
accordance with a scheme to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority, and which shall be
completed prior to the proposed development being brought into use.
No development shall take place until there has been submitted to, and approved in writing
by, the Local Planning Authority, a detailed scheme of hard and soft landscaping for the site,
and such scheme shall include details of:
(a) all existing trees, hedgerows and other vegetation on the land, details of any to be
retained, and measures for their protection in the course of development.
(b) proposed new trees, hedgerows, shrubs or vegetation, including confirmation of
species, numbers, and location and the proposed timing of the planting;
(c) proposed materials to be used on the driveway(s), paths and other hard surfaced
areas;
(d) proposed earthworks, grading and mounding of land and changes in levels, final
contours and the relationship of proposed mounding to existing vegetation and
surrounding landform;
(e) Proposed positions, design, materials and type of boundary treatment.
Foul water and surface water discharges shall be drained separately from the site.
No surface water shall be allowed to connect directly or indirectly, to the public sewerage
system unless otherwise approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority
Land drainage run-off shall not be permitted to discharge, either directly or indirectly, into the
public sewerage system.

The reasons for the conditions are:

1.

To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

Page 154



2. Inthe interests of visual amenity.

3. Inthe interests of the free and safe movement of all user of the highway and to ensure the
formation of a safe and satisfactory access.

4. In the interests of the free and safe movement of all users of the highway and to ensure the
formation of a safe and satisfactory access.

5. To provide for the parking and turning of vehicles clear of the highway and to ensure that
reversing by vehicles into or from the highway is rendered unnecessary in the interest of
traffic safety.

6. To ensure in the interests of visual amenity a satisfactory standard of landscaping in
conjunction with the development.

7. To protect the integrity of the public sewerage system.

8. To protect the integrity of the public sewerage system.

9. To prevent hydraulic overload of the public sewerage system and pollution of the
environment.

NOTES TO APPLICANT:
Please be aware that a new Derogation Licence will be required from the Welsh Government.

() Highway Supplementary Notes Nos. 1,3,4,5,6,7,8,9 & 10.

(i) New Roads and Street Works Act 1991-Part N Form.

(iii) Denbighshire County Council Specification for Road Construction.

(iv) Denbighshire County Council General Notes for Highway Lighting Installations.

WELSH WATER Note to Applicant:

Dwr Cymru Welsh Water have advised that some public sewers and lateral drains may not be
recorded on their maps of public sewers because they were originally privately owned and were
transferred into public ownership by nature of the Water Industry (Schemes of Adoption of Private
Sewers) Regulations 2011. The presence of such assets may affect the proposal. In order to assist
Dwr Cymru Welsh Water in dealing with the proposal they request you contact their Operations
Contact Centre on 0800 085 3968 to establish the location and status of the sewer. Under the Water
Industry Act 1991 Dwr Cymru Welsh Water has rights of access to its apparatus at all times.

Page 155



This page is intentionally left blank



CYNGOR
Sir Ddin b_ych
Denbighshire

o= g
COUNTY COUNCIT.

Graham Boase
Head of Planning & Public Protection
Denbighshire County Council

Heading:
REFERENCE NO. 46/2014/0436/PS
LAND AT NORTH SIDE OF
BRYN GOBAITH, ST ASAPH

Application Site

Date 9/7/2014 Scale 1/2500

Caledfryn Centre = 303951 E 374704 N
Smithfield Road This plan is intended solely to give an indiction of the LOCATION of
Denbigh

the application site which forms the subject of the accompanying report.
It does not form any part of the application documents, and should not
be taken as representative of the proposals to be considered, which are
available for inspection prior to the meeting.

Denbighshire LL16 3RJ

Tel: 01824 706800 Fax: 01824 706709

[

2oy
AN

5%
‘ )
afod 3
5 Bt & 2
o The Slﬁin
b B 2 &,
i,
%
7 "‘ %ow N ; ’

LY ° B 2] g 4
m a Q \ //\\ N ~ d ‘ <\

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survi behalf of 1| ller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office.
© Crown copyright. Unauthorized reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prnspj) (o] €l pi Z?z;s. Denbighshire County Council. 100023408. 2011.

Atgynhyrchir y map hwn o ddeunydd yr Ordnance Survey gyda chaniatad yr Ordnance Survey ar ran Rheolwr Llyfrfa Ei Mawrhydi
© Hawlfraint y Goron. Mae atgynhyrchu heb ganiatad yn torri hawlfraint y Goron a gall hyn arwain at erlyniad neu achos sifil. Cyngor Sir Ddinbych. 100023408. 2011.




Sarah Stubbs

ITEM NO: 11

WARD NO: St Asaph East

WARD MEMBER(S): Clir Dewi Owens

APPLICATION NO: 46/2014/0436/ PS

PROPOSAL: Removal of condition no. 15 of outline planning permission code

no. 46/2013/0802 requiring a scheme of improvements at the
Mount Road/Bryn Gobaith Junction and traffic calming on Mount
Road and Bryn Gobaith

LOCATION: Land at north side of Bryn Gobaith Bryn Gobaith St Asaph
APPLICANT: Mr & MrsC White

CONSTRAINTS: PROW

PUBLICITY Site Notice — No

UNDERTAKEN: Press Notice — No

Neighbour letters - Yes

REASON(S) APPLICATION REPORTED TO COMMITTEE:
Scheme of Delegation Part 2

e Recommendation to grant / approve — 4 or more objections received
e Recommendation to grant / approve — Town / Community Council objection

CONSULTATION RESPONSES:
ST ASAPH CITY COUNCIL
“St. Asaph City Council object to the removal of Condition 15 for the following reasons.
1. The condition was correctly applied on the original application, the need for removal has
not been proven.
2. Volume of traffic, this is already a very busy road as there is Fairholme School on Mount
Road now has in excess of 120 pupils and has increased traffic considerably, there is a care
home on Bryn Gobaith which also bring substantial additional traffic from non residents.
3. Over intensification of use.
4, There needs to be clear access for emergency services at all times.
5. The City Council would like to suggest a mini roundabout at junction of Mount Road and
Bryn Gobaith, which would also assist traffic to and from Cathedral Walks.”

DWR CYMRU WELSH WATER
Repeat the need for inclusion of relevant conditions and advisory notes.

DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL CONSULTEES —

Head of Highways and Infrastructure

- Highways Officer
No objection, following consultation with the Traffic Section it is difficult to see how junction
improvements can be incorporated without affecting the existing operation of the junction of
Bryn Gobaith/Mount Road. In relation to traffic calming on Bryn Gobaith it is unlikely that
any scheme would reduce the speed of traffic below the already low speeds and would
therefore have no significant effect.

RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY:
In objection:

Page 158



Representations received from:

R. & A. Williams, 42, Rhodfa Glenys, St. Asaph
Eugene Grube, 28 Rhodfa Glenys, St. Asaph

Mr & Mrs Graham Hardy, 38 Rhodfa Glenys, St. Asaph
Glyn H Davies, 32 Rhodfa Glenys, St. Asaph

Summary of planning based representations in objection:

Highway Issues:

Condition 15 is essential even without more housing in the area there already exists a danger to
pedestrians as they have to cross from the west to the east side of Mount Road which is only served
by a single pavement.

Calming measures would slow many of the cars and other vehicles which travel at speed and which
show no consideration for other road users.

Removal of condition will seriously jeopardise the safety of all who use Bryn Gobaith and Mount
Road.

Removal of condition would exacerbate an already chronic.

EXPIRY DATE OF APPLICATION: 11/6/2014
REASONS FOR DELAY IN DECISION:

o timing of receipt of representations
. awaiting consideration by Committee

PLANNING ASSESSMENT:
1. THE PROPOSAL:
1.1 Summary of proposals
1.1.1 This application was deferred at the of July 2014 Committee at the request of
Councillor Dewi Owens, to allow the highway issues relevant to the application to be
considered by a Site Inspection Panel. The notes of the Site Inspection Panel will be
reported on the Late Representation Sheets for the Planning Committee Meeting.

1.1.2 The application seeks to remove a planning condition which was imposed on a 2013
outline planning permission for the development of 1.1ha of land for residential
development on the north side of Bryn Gobaith. The condition imposed states:-

“No development shall be permitted to commence until the written approval of the
Local Planning Authority has been obtained in relation to a scheme of improvements
at the Mount Road/Bryn Gobaith Junction and traffic calming on Mount Road and
Bryn Gobaith. The approved works shall be completed strictly in accordance with the
approved drawings before any dwelling is occupied.”

The reason for the condition was in the interests of the free and safe movement of
traffic of all road users.

1.1.3 The application is presented with a number of points in support of the removal of
condition:

- “The test of any planning conditions is that it is necessary to impose the condition
on order to enable planning permission to be granted, it, similarly, follows that if on
reconsideration it is demonstrated that the condition is unnecessary, then it should be
removed;

- When the planning application was originally submitted it was supported by a

Highways Technical Note. This note observed that Bryn Gobaith was a relatively
standard sized cul de sac in terms of its highway width and provision of footpaths and

Page 159



that such a road was normally considered capable of accommodating traffic for up to
300 dwellings;

- To place the proposal in context, it was observed that a development of
approximately 30 dwellings would add no more than one additional traffic movement
every 3 mins in the peak hour, and significantly less at other times;

- Nevertheless, 2 options were considered for improving the junction of Bryn Gobaith
with Mount Road: the first option was to install a mini roundabout but this would be
very difficult to achieve within the highway land available, the second option was the
possibility of reducing the size of the junction of Bryn Gobaith and Mount Road by
realigning kerbs. It was difficult to see what benefit this would bring and as the mouth
of the junction was clearly used by vehicles wishing to turn around, it would actually
obstruct a useful facility on the highway. However it was generally noted that that
there is no problem at the junction, visibility is good and traffic levels are very low and
no works that might improve on a situation were identified.

- With regards traffic calming on Bryn Gobaith, it is recognised that traffic speeds are
already low and that cars park on the highway were themselves a ‘natural’ form of
calming. The possibility of installing speed humps in the road would be unlikely to
reduce the speed of traffic below already low speeds and therefore would have no
significant effect.

- In conclusion, there is no appropriate way forward without seeking removal of the
condition. It is considered that Condition 15 does not meet the tests for conditions set
out in paragraph 14 of Circular 35/95 and therefore should be removed.”

1.2 Description of site and surroundings
1.2.1 The application site comprises 1.1ha of grazing land on the eastern side of St. Asaph.
The site is on the north eastern boundary of development at Rhodfa Glenys. Itis
roughly rectangular in shape and is relatively level, but slopes downwards slightly
from west to east.

1.2.2 To the north and east of the site are open fields, and to the south and west is primarily
residential development, with the dwellings on Rhodfa Glenys to the west and Bryn
Gobaith to the south.

1.2.3 The highway serving Bryn Gobaith leads to the site, where there is currently an
entrance from a gated field access. Bryn Gobaith is located off Mount Road
approximately. 95m north of the mini roundabout linked to the A525 near St Asaph
Cathedral. The carriageway width of Bryn Gobaith is approx. 5.5m with footways on
both sides. Mount Road has a carriageway width in excess of 6m.

1.2.4 The site is bounded by mature hedgerow and trees.
1.3 Relevant planning constraints/considerations

1.3.1 The application site is located within the development boundary of St Asaph and is
allocated as a housing site within the Local Development Plan.

1.3.2 The Local Development Plan Inspector in his conclusions on the Local Development
Plan found that in order to meet the housing needs of the County, additional housing
sites needed to be put into the Plan and this included the application site. The site is
therefore an allocated housing site in the Local Development Plan, which was
formally adopted by the Council on 4th June 2013.

1.4 Relevant planning history.
1.4.1 Outline planning permission for residential development was granted in September
2013 subject to the inclusion of conditions. Detailed reserved matters approval has

Page 160



2.

3.

not been submitted to date.

1.5 Developments/changes since the original submission
1.5.1 None

1.6 Other relevant background information
1.6.1 None

DETAILS OF PLANNING HISTORY:

2.146/2012/0712/PO Development of 1.1ha of land for residential purposes (outline application
including access — all other matters reserved) REFUSED at Planning Committee 23rd
January, 2013.

46/2013/0802/PO Development of 1.1ha of land for residential purposes (outline application
including access — all other matters reserved) GRANTED at Planning Committee 11"
September, 2013.

RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE:
The main planning policies and guidance are considered to be:
Denbighshire Local Development Plan (adopted 4™ June 2013)
Policy RD 1 Sustainable Development and good standard design
Policy RD 5 The Welsh language and the Social and cultural fabric of communities
Policy BSC 1 Growth Strategy for Denbighshire
Policy BSC 4 Affordable Housing
Policy BSC 11 Recreation and Open Space
Policy VOE 5 Conservation of natural resources
Policy ASA 3 Parking Standards

3.2 Supplementary Planning Guidance

Supplementary Planning Guidance Note 4: Recreational Public Open Space
Supplementary Planning Guidance Note 22 Affordable Housing in New Developments
Supplementary Planning Guidance Note 25: Residential Development Design Guide

3.3Government Policy / Guidance
Planning Policy Wales Edition 7 July 2014

TAN 1 Joint Housing Land Availability Studies (2006)

TAN 5 Nature Conservation and Planning (2009)

TAN 12: Design (2009)

TAN 20: The Welsh language — Unitary Development Plans and Planning Control (2000)
TAN 22: Planning for Sustainable Buildings (2010)

Welsh Office Circular 35/95: The Use of Planning Conditions

MAIN PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS:

In terms of general guidance on matters relevant to the consideration of a planning application,
Planning Policy Wales Edition 7, July 2014 (PPW) confirms the requirement that planning
applications 'should be determined in accordance with the approved or adopted development plan
for the area, unless material considerations indicate otherwise' (Section 3.1.2). PPW advises that
material considerations must be relevant to the regulation of the development and use of land in
the public interest, and fairly and reasonably relate to the development concerned., and that these
can include the number, size, layout, design and appearance of buildings, the means of access,
landscaping, service availability and the impact on the neighbourhood and on the environment
(Sections 3.1.3 and 3.1.4).

Page 161



The following paragraphs in Section 4 of the report therefore refer to the policies of the
Denbighshire Local Development Plan, and to the material planning considerations which are
considered to be of relevance to the proposal.

4.1 The main land use planning issues in relation to the application are considered to be:

4.1.1 Highway Safety

4.2 In relation to the main planning considerations:
4.2.1 Highway Safety

Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 tests (vii) and (viii) oblige provision of safe and
convenient access for a range of users, together with adequate parking, services and
manoeuvring space; and consideration of the impact of development on the local
highway network Policy ASA 3 requires adequate parking spaces for cars and
bicycles in connection with development proposals, and outlines considerations to be
given to factors relevant to the application of standards. These policies reflect general
principles set out in Planning Policy Wales (Section 8) and TAN 18 — Transport, in
support of sustainable development.

The means of access to the site off Bryn Gobaith was approved as part of the outline
planning permission granted in September 2013. A Highways Assessment Technical
Note was submitted with the outline application, and its conclusions were that the site
can be accessed satisfactorily and will accord with all relevant design standards, and
the level of additional traffic likely to be generated by the development would have a
negligible impact on the highway network. It was also stated that the site is located
within close walking distance to the whole of St Asaph, to local facilities, bus routes
and cycle network.

Having regard to the conclusions of the Highway Assessment, and the concerns of
local residents, the Highways Officer raised no objection to the proposal in 2013 and
had no concerns over the adequacy of the local highway network, provided a scheme
of road improvements was submitted, including improvements at the Mount
Road/Bryn Gobaith junction and traffic calming on Mount Road and Bryn Gobaith.

On giving the matter further consideration and following discussions with the
applicant, the Highways Officer has carefully assessed the highway related concerns
in conjunction with the Traffic Section, who have looked at the traffic situations in this
area in detail. The conclusion is that it is difficult to see how junction improvements
can be incorporated without adversely affecting the existing operation of the junction
of Bryn Gobaith/Mount Road.

Traffic surveys were carried out on Bryn Gobaith between 20th May 2011 and 27th
May 2011 and this result showed that the average flow, including both directions was
197 vehicles over 24 hours. In the peak hours there were 18 vehicles south bound
and 17 vehicles north bound.

Traffic surveys were also carried out on Mount Road between 20th May 2011 and
27th May 2011 and the results showed that the average flow including both directions
was 1331 vehicles over 24 hours. This would mean that in the peak hours there were
130 vehicles north bound and 105 vehicles south bound.

Having regard to the traffic survey data along with the Highways Technical Note
submitted in the consideration of the outline planning permission at land north of Bryn
Gobaith it is not considered that it would be reasonable to insist on junction
improvements on a development of the scale proposed i.e. an indicative figure of 30
dwellings suggested by the applicant.

In relation to traffic calming on Bryn Gobaith it is considered unlikely that any scheme
would reduce the speed of traffic below the already low speeds and additional

Page 162



measures would therefore have no significant effect. In conclusion, the Highways
Officer raises no objection to the proposal to remove the condition requiring highway
improvements and traffic calming measures on Bryn Gobaith, and it its junction with
Mount Road.

It is not considered, with respect to objections raised, that there are any strong
highway grounds to refuse to remove Condition 15 on outline planning permission ref
46/2013/0802/PO.

5. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS:
5.1 The proposal to remove the condition has been carefully scrutinised by the Highways Officer
and there are no objections raised.

RECOMMENDATION: APPROVE deletion of Condition 15 of planning permission
46/2013/0802/PO.

Page 163



This page is intentionally left blank



CYNGOR
Sir Ddin b_ych
Denbighshire

o= g
COUNTY COUNCIT.

Graham Boase

Head of Planning & Public Protection
Denbighshire County Council
Caledfryn

Smithfield Road

Denbigh

Denbighshire LL16 3RJ

Tel: 01824 706800 Fax: 01824 706709

Heading:
REFERENCE NO. 46/2014/0126/PF
HM STANLEY HOSPITAL,
UPPER DENBIGH RD, ST ASAPH

Application Site N

Date 28/8/2014 Scale 1/2500

Centre = 304339 E 373771 N
This plan is intended solely to give an indiction of the LOCATION of
the application site which forms the subject of the accompanying report.
It does not form any part of the application documents, and should not
be taken as representative of the proposals to be considered, which are
available for inspection prior to the meeting.

Agly-garth

Highfields
Playing Field

Shelter

Dolgoed
(Riding Stablas)

Fath (urn)

5

N

Pond | St Kentigern
Y -] Hospice
TN \7/ P
AN
VAT
I \
[1

Ty Tyn Farm

@inn

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Sun
© Crown copyright. Unauthorized reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to pro

behalf of t] ller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office.
Sg (o] €l pi s. Denbighshire County Council. 100023408. 2011.

Atgynhyrchir y map hwn o ddeunydd yr Ordnance Survey gyda chaniatad yr Ordnance Survey ar ran Rheolwr Llyfrfa Ei Mawrhydi
© Hawlfraint y Goron. Mae atgynhyrchu heb ganiatad yn torri hawlfraint y Goron a gall hyn arwain at erlyniad neu achos sifil. Cyngor Sir Ddinbych. 100023408. 2011.




-r—"'ll""'laI

 —T T

—
A N
P |
i 'nl‘

AMT3 NAHD

b SR BB 1045300 1 A
BRI 3 LA HAOTI) T T WL Rl R B Al s
v 1§ amon tam -

ST W L3P DO Vi I o o ol E IR -.l._.\.
T il g Bl Ll T30 e

v P LU R IX f
o e s W2 .___.
et S B b e N

-

e

e

L

A

.'.l___'_..l_ —T
—t !

i) ] vt LT LTW AL B
Eam e Bl B I GRSATIN LTW V1A AN S AT
frvaniptiifebingys e yoreli|
] Dot Rt DR IVIY L0 B ATY OO o |

_f AL11tovS |
2NINITI GALSISSY —
Avwwald ] UINYOS




PHASING

€ pur 1 sateud uomniytucy Supnp Muo #tn Sopdicy)
| PUS GG 10 B¢ 1) U IURD 10 Almnduia)

BNICUNG
INISOH
5 35WHd TNILSING =
¥ I5YHd
E ISWHd
739vH4e |
135v14 — ﬂ..

ONKINNG
DINVINGWY SNLLSI

\

i
B T
.I...I.r..”...r..:...: e
—
LA . r—
H Buryied
L — SRWoRN/sIFepnd -]
Y[l e - puE 3o SIS =
=~ L : i J0) pash 3q CL¢ O eary
L F “sjurdnzoa Burpying peis
m e 20) Buryied yr3 Apsodisay
fe ¥ [y
* . i =
= 1
'] A
H ! 3 L aNIgINg
SIS PE M HE00 SO0 Buelhi J0§ MoE [ F o A4WLS ONLISINY e
B e e Nt T e Wy LV
D) FIAIRY OAY U] PEISNATUOD 3q O3 PROS JO B J¥IS FYL SR L
= - 4 e —— ) Y ul
o —
...... e o = ... ——
L -
L N -
e - ——— e L . iCx -, e
o e e Wy vl g ;
s = s i - H
" ] = . = el i o ~
| = Ek Ay 18 = |
T A
| T4l " XU e
o ey el =
_ . m"..:. = S.?L Lt ot U W ..mt-._w ...... W 1
e -’ 1.“” - - 5 1 oy i) B — b e _l.
gy — - i b . =
=lw H_ il a| m|n el ‘el O (M _
i e il 7 ) - -
L | .. — - o
af * "l Ve o I, | 3 [ T \
gl = ™ i F -
: ] ] = .H
E TR =y o
L d S - -
0y ..J.q._ | g [ K e i ] o« x.
i) By
g A -
# ey ey e x..\..
1 -
a3l I
H 8 Iy ] :
f
m_ . [ m.i...
g | | -
" e T . e F
[P | _
By J i o it ¥ i
. [ - { +
| 14 1 ]
| 1 e
e i __. T, h._ww ﬁ s m. .A ¥ pue £ saseyd 3 .
saanoe; 1 _ [ 0} Dryred sioeswo) | TN —
[} Freyjam pue puncdunr) Aus q 0 S | T h...- . = i =¥
TR I = (e

ONISVHd NOILDNYLSNOD Q350d0ud

\



g

Buipnng pays| ay) o) Wweaelpe saeds Jo Wopsay)

Bumoje pue sasnoy sabuer ay) Jo e 0} smain Buinb jaay adAy uaasb abe)a uado snopeds

0) SaAIS9S OS|. )| Sasnoy ey} woly uosiuadns amssed Jo Juswala Buons e yim Aeid o) uaapIys
10§ aoseds amaes ajes Buimajie Jo uonoun |enp ayj yum paulisep usaq sey aseds uado agnd sy

"“Aunwwod paieb 2 jo jey) o) sewis Buiai Jo) JWBLUGIAUS 3IND3S BJeS B sapInoid aludoeaap ey

e aptaoud

AMIZ HANE
=T

uiod anued AHunwoed

e Buness ‘s)s aul uo eeds vado agnd ay) ssaaoe Aisea o)

sjuapIsal Joj smoj|e Jnode| eyl “Buyss adeaspue| pajeibajul

U upm

Aseaud 10y Buipiacad 1siym Buipiing pajsn auy jo Bupyes

|enuassa sy} j0adssl Yjog o} paiapisucd Ajnaied uaaq

aney saoeds ay) -sdeds onqnd pue ajeaud yjog jo sjysuag

. au) Aofus o} sjuapisas Joj smoj|e Juswidojaaep pasodosd ay)

1BEESS PPZIOIBL %70 POOMESIOUAIEIMTDION 3N DI POOMOTIOURIEIM MMM

POOMBSIOYADE|[IM

- |endsoH Asjueis Al H

Page 168




FEWD WENON DD ) HCxlrA T 3

pr=re] ———
o Poye— A ==
T —
B ey

[
T

I T EE BE
3E_ B B

‘B8JE J00PING 3|geIJ0S

B S 95N 0] 3|g8 8JE SJU3PISal Jey) WIo) SH UIYRM

@aeds pieAunod & 9)eaID 0} SBM BIPI YL "paJ Ul

payBiybiy 51 Guiping Alewnyu) sy Jo UoiSUaXe ay ]

iyl ‘ssaoqid ubisap au) w Apea pajeass sem (yal) abew
— ay) -Aupoe) Buing paisisse pasodord ay; jo ped

L Iy | ¢ . ) se pasn pue pasn)sal aq |w Buipling ey ‘pesoiial
0 I e Lo Tl . E N T e T aq
b o B oia y =y ik I o b edf I Apybisun ase Aeuuyu) 3y} 0) SUOCIIPPE 12)E| 84l

‘Bupjing
Aseuuyut jewbuo ay) jo ajeas pue WBiay syj pasaxa jou
J1M pUE SASJ0)S OM] JO ISISUCD |IM uaisuaixa pasodold ayy

‘annbal Asy pINoYs SIueISISSE LM sjuapisal auy epiaaud
o) "AIag) SY) UM ‘alqeneae yels pue siabeuew aq

0S)2 |} 8Jay ] "SIUBpPISa! aL AG PASN 8q UBD UM Seale
Apune| pue abuno| ‘doys ‘gje2 [EUNWWOY Yim Sluswpede
pawWooIPaY /Z/1 1IENPIAIPUI JO 18ISU0D (1% Buippng el
'sBuipjing ansyiedwAsun jo ucjowap auy Aq pajeasd sdeds
uo Apued "ays sy unip “spun Buiary paisissy gg epiacid
|IM puUE papusixa pug paulela) aq jiim ABuuiu JBuno) ayy

1BRLSE FPZIORL ANCIP lepwopn yvodp UASENUW M

poomas.ioyAoe[[Im

Anaey Buwn) paisisse

- leydsoH Asjueis A H




1BEESY PPZI018L 4N 0o poomasioylaegu@opn N 00 POOMFSIOYATEIM MM

poomas.ioyAoe||im

15¥3 HLNOS DNIDVS NOLLYATT3

15Y3 HIHON ONIDVH NOILYATTS

juswpede pdeyd pausALtd

_ﬂﬂﬂm..m"..u.1...w_u.ﬁ..uv.th,.p_....u_”.m..mn._.m.m._.a....._.u“m._.u...._.- 0. e B a._,.-.mH.-....T. .nu....u.%._.fe..w.mvw.n L

m S s 0 et e 8

o A 8 - e e

‘sAeq By} JO Om L) paulelas 3q Jiim WBLBY [In} ey) pue paJolsel pue paulelel
aq (s mopuim 1ses sse|f paule)s 1By aaiy) o) 'paloisal pue pauie)s)

o0 ||Im SSSSNI} PASRIG YIE 83U SU) NG WooIpaq PAY) 84| S1BpoWILLIOIdE
0} pUa WSjSaM B} 18 100} BUIUEZZEW | Uasu) o) pasodoud s11) wun
|enuapisSal WooIpaq BaUl) B SE PaI0ISa) §1 a0eds siU) jeyl pasodoud s1))

- [e)idsoH Asjueis IN H

Page 170




JGEESH FP2I0IRL NN CY POOMSLOULITRMDION! YV 0D POOMSRIOYAI T MM

POOMBSIOUADE|[IM

LT T

ayj jo sbum Jeas aup

U| pUNOj OS(B S§ UM ouq
Jauuem e yum Bupuswadwod
15(1uMm Buiping asnoyy.om

aLp jo saumes) Asy auy)

o awos sajerodiodu) Bujsnoyy
piing mau auy wo ubisag eyl

“gjadwWwiod 0} 10U pue S|EuaeLL
U jsenuod Aq Buiping paisi
8y} asueyua o} sem Buisnoy

Buigeua ay) ypm aanasiqe ey

‘gsodind

leuiBuo sy Jo sapujwal
e pue paubisep sem JI U

' popad ayj o] ju) Uy e SJIayo
—  Buiping asnoyyom jeujBuo auyy
Jo sfejuoy suo)sawl) |eassea
Buisodw 194 ajduns sy

3SNOH Q3HIYLIA WO0Y(d38 ¢

MOTVONNE WOOoHJ3a £

sadA) esnoy pue juawdojeasp Huyqeus pasodosd

|eydsoH Asjuels W H

Lk




2L BIEIS LM YIUGD pue puedq (110 J00() IS4y & yim paubis

~9p os(e aJ,Asy ) Wbiue) payase ue &g papeay Aemuoop sy ywm 'BJNJE2E) PAMOLIO] B BIE SMOPUIM
yses sued j[EWS |edUEWWAS 'Spjing Mau ay) o) uohieaaa way &y sup ‘Buipng asnoypom auy

10 sainies) Asy au} Jo awos ssieI0diodu| SPING MBU BU] UD ubisaq) ay L ‘sGuip)ing pajsy aul wisym
~J2A0 Jou 1M Buiiemp pasodosd ay) pue ‘parsedsas 80 ) BUs ay) uo Ayauesan jeojuana ay) ubisap
Hay) ut Buipiing pajsy eyl spiemo) anayiediuAs a1e syis ay) uo sGuljjemp mau L pasadoxd ay)

Guip|ing
paIs ey SoUBYUS puR BB
WHoq jiw yanm uswdojeaag

e sanpaxd
'™ Set2ew jo ash jnjalea
Pue Budeaspue) Ayent yoiH

A

"PBWIBYMIBAD 10 pasiw

-0sdwiod uasq 1ou 8Aey Buippng pajs) ay) Jo
sabejuoy A2y "2INja1uls 8y} Jo AnawuiAs ay)
waurajdwiod i Buipjing asnowyyiom ay) o}
S5300B |20 € U0 3)is el Buteug Guiping
paisy ay) jo Bumes auj Uitm uonesapisuod

w1 pajedojas 3q (M XS au) ojuy ajnoy S
“Buipping pajsi B JO SMaIA Jaseap 0} mojje
0} ¥IEQ JAYLN) PBAOW peos auwds yoeosd
-de ay) Jo Yinos aY) 6} SashoY L) SMoYS
PuE S221Kf0 S,119UN0Y By} 18 Bueaw e Bu)
-mo|j0} pajsnipe sem jesodoid voneondde ayj

LEBESY PFZIOPL oo p

yloemmop 3n'oap yhaeiim mmm




Paul Mead

ITEM NO: 12

WARD NO: St.Asaph East

WARD MEMBER(S): Dewi Owens

APPLICATION NO: 46/2014/0126/ PF

PROPOSAL: Partial demolition of buildings and redevelopment of site to

provide 52no.dwellings, 33no. apartment assisted living facility
and associated works.

LOCATION: HM Stanley Hospital, Upper Denbigh Road, St.Asaph
APPLICANT: Pure Residential

CONSTRAINTS: Tree Preservation Order

PUBLICITY Site Notice — Yes

UNDERTAKEN: Press Notice — Yes

Neighbour letters - Yes

REASON(S) APPLICATION REPORTED TO COMMITTEE:
Scheme of Delegation Part 2

e Atrequest of Development Manager — major proposal

CONSULTATION RESPONSES:
ST.ASAPH CITY COUNCIL
“No objections”. Would also be keen to apply for any open space commuted sums in due
course.

Response to amended scheme will be reported at the Planning Committee Meeting.

NATURAL RESOURCES WALES
No objection subject to confirmation of a surface water regulation system which will be
controlled through condition.

DWR CYMRU / WELSH WATER
No objection subject to an integrated drainage scheme dealing with foul, surface and ground
water being provided by the developer.

DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL CONSULTEES —
Head of Highways and Infrastructure
- Highways Officer
No objection subject to conditions dealing with road layouts and parking.

Ecologist
No objection subject to further information on required bat mitigation.

Housing and Community Development Service

Supportive of the proposal and willing to accept abnormal costs may prevent the provision
of affordable housing by the developer.

Page 173



Economic and Business Development Officer
No objection

Adult Services
Supportive of the scheme and would welcome a partnership approach to delivering
assisted living if feasible.

Conservation Architect
No objection subject to conditions dealing with detailing on the Listed Buildings and garden
areas associated with them. Additional controls on the Listed Building application.

RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY:
Comments

Welsh Ambulance Trust, HM Stanley Hospital, Upper Denbigh Road, St.Asaph, LI17 OWA
St.Kentigern's Hospice, HM Stanley Hospital, Upper Denbigh Road, St.Asaph
Mrs Margaret Cummings, 26 Bryn Elwy, St.Asaph, Denbighshire, LL17 ORU

Summary of comments received:-

The Ambulance Trust and Hospice have both raised concerns about the longer term
implications of the development on the parking and access arrangements for their uses. The
Hospice has also raised concerns about the proximity of 3 storey dwellings close to their
building and the potential for noise and disturbance for people using the hospice. Both
organisations have largely welcomed the redevelopment scheme but seek assurances on
parking, access and amenity.

Mrs Cummings raises concerns about the development on the front lawn areas adjacent to the
existing access to the site. She mentions the presence of Pyramidal orchids on the lawn. Whilst
she does not feel the building on the lawns will directly affect her she would like the plant
species considered in any decision.

EXPIRY DATE OF APPLICATION: 12/3/2014

REASONS FOR DELAY IN DECISION:

. protracted negotiations resulting in amended plans

. re-consultations / further publicity necessary on amended plans and / or additional
information

. awaiting consideration by Committee

PLANNING ASSESSMENT:
1. THE PROPOSAL:
1.1 Summary of proposals
1.1.1 The proposal seeks full planning permission for the partial demolition of buildings on

site, the refurbishment and renovation of the original workhouse building to provide
13no. dwellings, the conversion and extension of a former infirmary building to the
rear of the main building to provide 33no. dwellings for assisted living and the erection
of 39n0. new build dwellings around the site. A separate application for Listed
Building consent which deals specifically with the impact of works on the character
and appearance of the Listed Buildings on site has also been submitted. This scheme
has been assessed by the Conservation and Planning Officers. There is widespread
support for the improvements and alterations suggested for the Listed Buildings on
the site and this application will be dealt with separately under delegated powers.

1.1.2 The format of the proposed housing on the site is as follows:-
New Build

e 16no0. 4 bed houses

e 10no. 3 bed houses

Page 174



8no. 2/3 bed bungalows
5no. 5 bed houses

The new build housing will be red brick construction under a slate roof incorporating design
features such as symmetrical small pane sash windows and doorways headed by arched
fanlight features. An example house type is shown at the front of this report.

Conversion of chapel and vagrants block (main H-shaped Listed block)
13no. dwellings

Conversion of former infirmary (to rear of main H-shaped block)
33no. assisted living residential units

The conversion elements of the scheme will be done to the necessary conservation standards
having regard to the Listed status of the buildings. Particular care will be given to the retention
of the former chapel and the use of appropriate materials and methods.

1.1.3 The proposed scheme includes for the provision of on-site open space in the form of
Community Recreational Open Space of some 1267 sg.m. This is shown as a village
green area. Commuted sums are proposed for any shortfall in other play space
provision on-site. This is explained in more detail later in the report.

1.1.4 The existing main access into the site off Upper Denbigh Road will be used to access
the proposed development. This is seen on the proposed site plan at the front of the
report.

1.1.5 The application is supported by a number of documents which include the following:

A Design and Access Statement — The report outlines the vision for the site. It covers
all the necessary design and access statement headings and focusses on the Listed
Buildings. The conclusions make reference to a quality residential development that
has a mix of accommodation types and tenure.

A Planning Statement: - The submitted Planning Statement runs through the relevant
Policy considerations highlighting the allocation of the site for housing purposes. It
explains that the viability of the scheme makes it impossible to provide affordable
housing in accordance with the Council’'s adopted policies. It goes on to explain what
is being provided by way of open space and further assesses likely impacts such as
those on the Welsh Language, health and the community. It concludes that all
impacts are negligible. The Planning Statement has been revised during the
assessment of the application and some factual errors have been corrected.

Financial Viability Appraisal — At the request of Officers the applicant has submitted
confidential financial information through the medium of a recognised Viability
appraisal model. This financial information contains details of purchase costs, build
costs, design risks and contingencies having regard to dealing with a sensitive site
containing Listed Buildings. The conclusion of the report submitted by the applicant
shows that the scheme would not be viable should they be required to comply with
the Council’'s adopted Policy on affordable housing. This issue is discussed further in
this report.

Flood Consequences Assessment — The Assessment highlights that the site is at a
low (1 in 1000) risk of flooding from rivers and the sea. It notes that the site is some
25m above the River Elwy and 35m above the River Clwyd. The report also
concludes that the site is at low risk of surface water flooding as well as groundwater
flooding.

Conservation Assessment
The submitted Conservation Assessment in association with the Planning Application

Page 175



has been amended in liaison with the Council's Conservation Architect. It concludes
that the proposal will ensure the survival of the most important elements of the Listed
hospital buildings.

Code for Sustainable Homes and BREEAM pre-assessments
The reports conclude that the assisted living facility will achieve at least a “Very Good”
rating and Code Level 3 plus 1 credit can be achieved for the relevant dwelling types.

Transport Note
Savill, Bird and Axon (Transport Planning Specialists) were commissioned by the

Betsi Cadwaladr Health Board to look at the redevelopment of the HM Stanley site for
circa 150 dwellings. Their report is submitted in support of this proposal and
concludes that the highway implications for the development are acceptable. Having
regard to the previous and retained uses on the site as well as the proposed new
residential use on the site, the report concludes that the road network and the existing
Upper Denbigh Road access point is capable of accommodating the likely traffic.

Ecological Assessments

Clwydian Ecology was commissioned by the developers to undertake a number of
relevant surveys, including a specific bat survey. The surveys conclude that subject to
final walkover surveys prior to any demolition there would be no adverse impact on
any protected species or habitats. Some translocation of plant species at the from
portion of the site will be required prior to the redevelopment of that area.

Tree Survey
Arbtech was commissioned by the developers to undertake a full survey of trees

within the application site. The report submitted concludes that the vast majority of
trees surveyed on the site were in an acceptable or good condition. Tree T24 is,
however, dead and will need to be removed

1.2 Description of site and surroundings

121

1.2.2

1.2.3

1.2.4

The site of the former HM Stanley hospital is located around half a mile to the south of
the City of St.Asaph off the main upper Denbigh Road. The application site consists of
the greater part of the former hospital complex over an area of some 3.39ha. For the
avoidance of doubt the existing St Kentigern’s Hospice building and the Welsh
Ambulance Trust HQ do not form part of the application site.

The application site contains a complex of former hospital buildings set back from the
main Upper Denbigh Road and extending eastwards towards open fields beyond. The
main former workhouse and infirmary blocks are Grade Il Listed but had been added
to by a myriad of extensions and additions over the years. An internal network of
roads links various block on the site and also serves as access to the neighbouring
St. Kentigern's Hospice and Ambulance Trust buildings.

The Upper Denbigh Road provides the westerly boundary to the application site off
which a main access point leads to the front of the main listed H-shaped former
hospital block. To the north of the site is a cul-de-sac of two storey dwellings on Bryn
Elwy along with a retained L-shaped two storey block of former nurses apartments.
To the south of the site are the St.Kentigern’s Hospice and Ambulance Trust sites
along with open field areas forming part of the wider housing allocation. Open fields
lie to the east of the site with the land falling away towards the river. The plan at the
front of the report shows the red line application area along with the buildings it is
proposed to demolish.

The main historic blocks on the site are mainly two storey and of stone construction
under slate roofs. There are some brick and render additions evident around the
historic blocks. There are a sporadic number of mature and semi-mature trees around
the application site.

1.3 Relevant planning constraints/considerations

Page 176



1.3.1 The site is located within the development boundary of the City of St.Asaph as
indicated by the adopted Local Development Plan. The site forms part of an allocation
for housing in the plan and will contribute to the overall housing targets which were
set when the plan was adopted. The main historic buildings on the site are Listed.
Works to the buildings and demolition on site are dealt with within the separate Listed
Building Consent application.

1.4 Relevant planning history
1.4.1 There is no directly relevant planning history on this application site which would need
to be taken into consideration in the determination of this application.

1.5 Developments/changes since the original submission

1.5.1 The scheme has been revised during the assessment process having regard to direct
input from the Council’s Conservation Architect and Highway Engineers. Certain
design features such as house types, scale, materials and boundary treatments have
been modified to satisfy recognised conservation standards. In addition aspects of the
road layout pertaining to the pedestrian crossing points, parking areas and turning
spaces have also been adjusted. Further information of viability and phasing has also
been provided and assessed.

1.6 Other relevant background information

1.6.1 It should be noted that the scheme has been presented to the Elwy Member Area
Group. In addition considerable work has taken place both prior to the application
being submitted and during the course of the application between various Officers of
the Council and specialists appointed by the developers. Communication has also
extended to neighbouring land users with relevant information and guidance being
passed on at appropriate times in the assessment process to enable the community
to have their say on the scheme.

2. DETAILS OF PLANNING HISTORY:
None relevant to this scheme.

3. RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE:
The main planning policies and guidance are considered to be:
Denbighshire Local Development Plan (adopted 4™ June 2013)
Policy RD1 — Sustainable development and good standard design
Policy RD 5 — Welsh Language
Policy BSC1 — Growth Strategy for Denbighshire
Policy BSC4 — Affordable Housing
Policy BSC11 — Recreation and open space
Policy BSC 12 — Community Facilities
Policy VOE 4 — Enabling Development
Policy ASA3 — Parking standards

3.1 Supplementary Planning Guidance
SPG 2 — Landscaping
SPG 4 — Recreational Public Open Space
SPG 7 — Space Standards in new developments
SPG 21 — Parking standards
SPG Affordable Housing

3.2 Government Policy / Guidance
Planning Policy Wales Edition 6 February 2014

Page 177



4. MAIN PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS:

In terms of general guidance on matters relevant to the consideration of a planning application,
Planning Policy Wales Edition 6, February 2014 (PPW) confirms the requirement that planning
applications 'should be determined in accordance with the approved or adopted development plan
for the area, unless material considerations indicate otherwise' (Section 3.1.2). PPW advises that
material considerations must be relevant to the regulation of the development and use of land in
the public interest, and fairly and reasonably relate to the development concerned., and that these
can include the number, size, layout, design and appearance of buildings, the means of access,
landscaping, service availability and the impact on the neighbourhood and on the environment
(Sections 3.1.3 and 3.1.4).

The following paragraphs in Section 4 of the report therefore refer to the policies of the
Denbighshire Local Development Plan, and to the material planning considerations which are
considered to be of relevance to the proposal.

4.1 The main land use planning issues in relation to the application are considered to be:

4.1.1 Principle and General Policy Considerations

4.1.2 Visual amenity
4.1.3 Residential amenity

4.1.4 Ecology

4.1.5 Drainage (including flooding)

4.1.6 Highways (including access and parking)
4.1.7 Affordable Housing

4.1.8 Open Space
4.1.9 Sustainability codes and water management

4.2 In relation to the main planning considerations:
4.2.1 Principle

The application involves proposed residential development on an allocated housing
site. The provision of housing in the County is a key priority. The sites which have
been allocated within the Local Development Plan are designed to meets the
County’s housing needs over the relevant plan period. This scheme proposes some
85no0. residential units delivered through conversion and new build. This will
contribute to the housing need identified in the plan and will comply with the
overarching policy principles for this allocated site.

It should be noted that the previous use of this site represented a community facility.
Trying to retain such community facilities in the County is another identified principle
of the adopted LDP. In this case, the community facilities provided by the Health
Board at the site have been displaced elsewhere in the County with no real net loss of
the community asset. In addition the site was marketed for a period of time as a
community facility with no interest received. As such, it is not considered that the loss
of the HM Stanley community facility to housing (as is now allocated within the plan)
conflicts with the principles of Planning policy.

Whilst the principle of the proposed development meets the general aims of the
adopted LDP in relation to housing provision and regeneration of a vacant site, it is
important to assess the scheme against specific policies in the plan. This will be done
in the following paragraphs.

General Planning Policy Context
The main policies in the Local Development Plan which are relevant to the principle of
the development are:

Policy BSC 1 — As a lower growth town/city St.Asaph has a number of sites within its
boundary which have been identified to contribute to the growth strategy of the
County. One of these sites is the HM Stanley former hospital site where it was

Page 178



422

estimated some 75 dwellings could be provided in the plan period. The proposal
shows that some 85 units can be provided as part of this scheme. It is estimated
these could be delivered within 3 years. The proposal clearly complies with the
aforementioned Policy.

Policy VOE 4 — This Policy in the LDP relates to “enabling development”. The Policy
is designed to address heritage assets considered to be “at risk” and provides the
scope for developments to be promoted which effectively save historic buildings in the
community. The Policy sets out certain criteria against which enabling development
can be assessed. In short, providing the enabling development (in this case the
development of some 39no0. new build dwellings and the use of heritage assets for 33
assisted living units and 13no. dwellings) does not harm the heritage assets, does not
fragment the heritage assets and the overall value of the enabling development
outweighs any potential harm to the heritage assets, the development can be
permitted. Having regard to the comments of the Conservation Officer and having
regard to the assessment of the financial information supplied, the scheme clearly
complies with the aforementioned Policy.

There are clear and obvious benefits from allowing a scheme which saves the most
important elements of this important heritage asset. The level of development
required to ensure the buildings are saved and re-used is considered to be
reasonable. The applicant has stated that the works to convert the main H-block
Listed building will be undertaken as the first phase of development. This will be
clarified within the suggested planning conditions to ensure that the heritage assets
are dealt with alongside any new build “enabling development”.

Visual amenity
Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 test (i) requires due regard to issues of siting,

layout, form, character, design, materials, aspect, microclimate and intensity of use of
land / buildings and spaces between buildings, which are matters relevant to the
visual impact of development; test (vi) requires that development does not
unacceptably affect prominent public views into, out of, or across any settlement or
area of open countryside; test (vi) requires the incorporation of existing landscape or
other features, takes account of site contours, and changes in levels and prominent
skylines; and test (xiii) requires the incorporation of suitable landscaping measures to
protect and enhance development in its local context.

Only one neighbour has raised a concern about the potential visual impact of the
development. The objection makes reference to the use of red brick as opposed to
stone on the new build units. The City Council have not raised any such objection to
the visual impact of the development. The existing site contains a variety of different
sized buildings spread across a wide area of the former hospital site. As mentioned
above a number of these buildings will be demolished as part of a scheme to bring
back the heritage quality of the site and main buildings.

The main Listed Buildings will be dealt with appropriately with the dressed “Anglessey
Marble” retained and re-used to the key elevations. The main approach road into the
site will be re-aligned to ensure the front elevation of the main Listed Building will
provide a landmark feature. The scale, height, layout and use of materials for the new
build areas of the site have all been discussed at length with Conservation Officers.
The result has been to create a vertical hierarchy on the site which will not overwhelm
the adjacent Listed Buildings. Features have been taken from the Listed Buildings for
the new build properties and it is considered that there would not be any visual
detriment from the scheme as shown. The use of red brick on the new build units
provides a contrast to the stone Listed Buildings and ensures that the new build units
do not compete with these important heritage assets. From a conservation
perspective this is considered to be acceptable use of materials.

Page 179



4.2.3

424

The layout incorporates a village green area to the centre of the site which provides
usable space for the variety of residents accommodated nearby. From a visual
perspective this enhances the overall impact of the development. It is considered that,
subject to further on-site landscaping of the public realm areas controlled through
planning conditions, the visual impact of the development would be acceptable and
would meet the intentions of the adopted Planning Policy.

Residential amenity

Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 test (i) requires due regard to issues of siting,
layout, form, character, design, materials, aspect, microclimate and intensity of use of
land / buildings and spaces between buildings, which touch on the potential for impact
on residential amenity; test (vi) sets the requirement to assess the impact of
development on the amenities of local residents, other land and property users, or
characteristics of the locality, in terms of increased activity, disturbance, noise, dust,
fumes, litter, drainage, light pollution, etc.

No objections have been received from neighbours or the City Council in relation to
the impact of the development on residential amenity.

The site layout as shown indicates that there would be adequate separation distances
between existing dwellings on nearby Bryn Elwy and any new properties on the site. It
is not considered that there would be any significant impact on residential amenity
from the new development when completed. In fact, the reduction in the intensity of
use from the former community facility to a residential estate should be felt by nearby
residents on completion.

Planning conditions can be imposed which attempt to control any potential disruption
to nearby residential areas during the construction phases. The intended site
development compound will be sited well away from existing residential properties
and from the nearby hospice.

The space within the new scheme enables private garden areas and parking areas to
be provided. This should ensure adequate levels of amenity for any future residents
on this scheme. It is considered that the scheme is acceptable in terms of impacts on
residential amenity and would meet the relevant policy tests outlined above.

Ecology
Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 test (iii) requires development to protect and

where possible to enhance the local natural and historic environment. Policy VOE 5
requires due assessment of potential impacts on protected species or designated
sites of nature conservation, including mitigation proposals, and suggests that
permission should not be granted where proposals are likely to cause significant harm
to such interests. This reflects policy and guidance in Planning Policy Wales (Section
5.2), current legislation and SPG 18 — Nature Conservation and Species Protection,
which stress the importance of the planning system in meeting biodiversity objectives
through promoting approaches to development which create new opportunities to
enhance biodiversity, prevent biodiversity losses, or compensate for losses where
damage is unavoidable.

An ecological survey of the site has been undertaken by the applicants. In addition
detailed discussions have taken place between the Council’s Biodiversity Officer and
the specialist ecological consultants employed by the applicant. The site will contain a
number of bird species which need to be taken into account in any development.
There will also need to be consideration given to bats on the site and to the presence
of some pyramidal orchids located to the front open portion of the site.

In relation to bats the Biodiversity Officer is satisfied, subject to reasonable avoidance
measures controlled through planning conditions, that the favourable conservation
status of bats can be preserved. Details will need to be provided prior to the
demolition or conversion of any of the buildings on the site. In addition mitigation

Page 180



4.2.5

4.2.6

measures such as bat boxes for works to any trees along with details of lighting
methods to protect the bats should be provided.

In relation to birds the presence of swifts and swallows should be taken into account
prior to any demolition or conversion. Avoidance measures and mitigation details will
need to be provided, however, this can be controlled through conditions.

In relation to the presence of the pyramidal orchids on the site these will need to be
translocated to another part of the site to ensure their conservation status.

In Officers’ opinion, the consultation responses suggest there are no ecology grounds
to oppose the development of the application site.

Drainage (including flooding)

Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 test (xi) requires that development satisfies
physical or natural environmental considerations relating to drainage and liability to
flooding. Planning Policy Wales Section 13.2 identifies flood risk as a material
consideration in planning and along with TAN 15 — Development and Flood Risk,
provides a detailed framework within which risks arising from different sources of
flooding should be assessed.

There are no representations from the public relating to the drainage implications of
the development. The applicant has indicated an intention to connect to the existing
main foul sewer. Dwr Cymru / Welsh Water have raised no objection to the
development subject to an integrated drainage system being provided dealing with
foul, surface and any ground water.

In relation to flood risk, NRW has raised no objections to the proposal.

In Officers’ opinion, the consultation responses suggest there are no drainage or
flooding grounds to oppose the development of the application site.

Highways (including access and parking)

Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 tests (vii) and (viii) oblige provision of safe and
convenient access for a range of users, together with adequate parking, services and
manoeuvring space; and consideration of the impact of development on the local
highway network Policy ASA 3 requires adequate parking spaces for cars and
bicycles in connection with development proposals, and outlines considerations to be
given to factors relevant to the application of standards. These policies reflect general
principles set out in Planning Policy Wales (Section 8) and TAN 18 — Transport, in
support of sustainable development.

Highway Officers have assessed the proposed access into the site as acceptable.
The intensity of use of this existing access has been governed by it serving the
hospital, hospice and Ambulance HQ. The existing access road will be re-aligned to
ensure a better visual feature but in terms of its capacity to serve the proposed
development it is considered adequate.

Planning conditions will seek to ensure that the proposed internal road layout and
parking areas for the new residential estate will function effectively. Discussions have
been on-going between Highway Officers and the applicant over improved internal
road layouts with better pedestrian crossing points being incorporated into the
scheme.

Concerns have been raised by neighbouring land users over the impact of the
proposed development on the functioning of their operations from an access and
parking perspective. Discussions have taken place between the applicant, Highway
Officers and neighbouring land users. It is accepted that some disruption is going to
be felt during the construction phases. Access through the site is shared and it is vital
that users of the Ambulance HQ and the St.Ketigern's Hospice can access those

Page 181



4.2.7

4.2.8

facilities and park. This will need to be ensured both during construction phases and
when the development is completed.

To this end, the applicant has agreed to provide parking areas within the development
site for the neighbouring land users during construction phases. Conditions which
deal with phasing, construction traffic and how parking for the hospice and ambulance
HQ can be addressed on completion can be imposed. Officers are aware, however,
that the ambulance HQ are trying to address any shortfall in parking on their site
separately. It is hoped that construction management arrangements will ensure
neighbouring land users will be considered throughout enabling a welcome
redevelopment of a vacant and sensitive site, whilst protecting sensitive and
worthwhile neighbouring uses.

In Officers’ opinion there are no highway grounds to oppose the development of the
application site.

Affordable Housing

Policy BSC3 of the local development plan sets the basic requirement for
developments to contribute, where relevant, to the provision of infrastructure,
including affordable housing, in line with Policy BSC4. Policy BSC4 relates specifically
to affordable housing, and requires that all developments of three or more residential
units provide a minimum of 10% affordable housing either onsite on developments of
10 or more units, or by way of a financial contribution on developments of less than

10 units.

The application does not include the provision of any affordable housing units. Where
an application is not going to meet the requirement of the Policy Officers require a
financial viability report to be submitted which will need to justify why such provision
cannot be made.

In this instance the applicant has claimed that the development risk and contingencies
associated with redeveloping a site containing some important Listed buildings means
that there is not the economic viability in the scheme to also provide the minimum
10% affordable housing either on-site or through a commuted sum payment.

Officers have scrutinised the financial information provided.

Officers are content that the viability of the scheme as shown is marginal. The
scheme will restore and re-use some important historic buildings. It is evident
elsewhere in the County that such buildings can prove extremely problematic to deal
with causing wider visual and social harm to communities. The financial information
has been thoroughly assessed and Officers feel that, in this instance, the lack of
affordable housing provided must be weighed against the welcome re-use of Listed
buildings, the provision of extra care facilities, needed housing on an allocated site
and a good quality scheme which will provide a good living environment for future
occupants.

It is considered that, having regard to the viability appraisal, the scheme meets the
intentions of the adopted policies and guidance.

Open Space
Policy BSC 3 of the local development plan sets the basic requirement for

development to contribute, where relevant, to the provision of infrastructure, including
recreation and open space, in accordance with policy BSC 11. Policy BSC 11
requires new developments to provide open space in accordance with the County’s
minimum standard of 2.4 hectares per 1000 population. It states that open space
should always be provided on site, and that commuted sums will only be acceptable
where it is demonstrated that development would not be financially viable should the
full requirement be provided onsite, or where it is impractical to provide the full

Page 182



requirement onsite. Where there is no identified shortfall of open space in an area, the
option of a commuted sum payment may be appropriate to mitigate impact on existing
open space and equipment.

In this case the applicant has shown the on-site provision of a village green type area
of some 1267 sg.m. Such an area will provide informal open space for the mixed
community but would not provide any traditional equipped play facilities for children.
This is considered acceptable given the potential make-up of the estate to include for
an extra care facility. The applicant has agreed to pay a commuted sum payment in
lieu of the children’s play space requirement as well as the required sum for
maintenance. The securing of the sums of money will be via a s.106 legal agreement.
The landscaping of the village green can be secured through the imposition of a
planning condition.

4.2.9 Sustainability codes and water management
Sustainable development is a key part of the Local Development Plan Strategy, and
has been applied to the land use policies and allocations in the Plan. Planning Policy
Wales (Section 4.12) sets out Welsh Government’s drive to ensure that development
proposals mitigate the causes of climate change by minimising carbon and other
greenhouse gas emissions associated with their design, construction, use , and
eventual demolition, and outlines the requirement to move towards more sustainable
and zero carbon buildings in Wales through application of specific standards for
construction. The Sustainability Code requirements are referred to in TAN 22
Sustainable Buildings, which confirms the obligation on applicants to demonstrate that
building(s) can meet specific standards of construction and carbon emission levels.

In the case of this submission, the application is accompanied by a Code for
Sustainable Homes Pre-Assessment report in accordance with the requirements of
TAN 12, TAN 22 and Planning Policy Wales at the time of submission. However,

the Minister for Housing and Regeneration has recently announced amendments to
the National Planning for Sustainable Buildings policy contained in Planning Policy
Wales (PPW) and the cancellation of Technical Advice Note (TAN) 22 when the
changes to Part L (relating to energy efficiency) of the Building Regulations come into
force at the end of July 2014.

Any applications determined after the 31 July 2014, including Section 73 applications
which might seek to remove extant conditions on planning permissions requiring the
relevant Code for Sustainable Homes / BREEAM levels to be achieved, should be
assessed in accordance with the policy changes. Given the timing of the
determination of this application and that the development could not be implemented
before the end of July 2014 it is considered to be unreasonable to impose the
standard conditions requiring compliance with the Code for Sustainable Homes.

5. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS:
5.1 The site lies within the development boundary of St.Asaph and forms part of a wider housing
allocation in the adopted Local Development Plan. The principle of developing the site for
housing as shown is acceptable.

The site contains some important historic buildings which are specifically protected. These
buildings have been unsympathetically extended and altered over the years. The site is also
currently vacant, derelict and vulnerable to further damage and anti-social behaviour.

The proposed scheme, which has been consulted upon in the Community and amongst the
relevant Member group, seeks to save and restore the most important Listed buildings on the
site. The scheme will provide some 85no. residential units for a mixed community contributing
towards the housing targets set within the adopted Local Development Plan.

The scheme is acceptable in planning terms subject to a number of conditions. It should
create an attractive residential estate enhancing the historic environment and, through a

Page 183



phased approach to construction, should have a minimal impact upon visual and residential
amenity as well as highway safety.

The recommendation is subject to the completion of an obligation under Section 106 of the

1990 Planning Act within 12 months of the date of resolution by the committee to secure:

(8) The payment of a commuted sum for provision and maintenance of Open Space of
£63,539 apportioned as follows:

CPA Provision Costs £39,164
CROS shortfall provision £9,951
CPA off-site maintenance £14,424

(b) Details of the Management Arrangements for the on- site Community Recreational Open
Space (CROS). The applicant has stated that a management company will look after the
village green in terms of security, management and maintenance.

The Certificate of Decision would only be released on completion of the legal obligation, and
on failure to complete within the time period, the application would be re-presented to the
Committee and determined in accordance with the policies of the Council applicable at that
time, should material circumstances change beyond a period of 12 months after this
Committee.

RECOMMENDATION: GRANT- subject to the following conditions:-

1.

The development to which this permission relates shall be begun no later than the expiration
of five years beginning with the date of this permission.

Phasing/Demolition

2.

The development hereby permitted shall proceed in accordance with the proposed
construction phasing plan received by the Local Planning Authority on 21st August 2014,
unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

There shall be no occupation of buildings permitted in each phase of the development until
the following services and infrastructure are completed for those buildings in accordance with
details to be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Only those
details subsequently agreed for each phase of development shall be implemented thereafter.
- The vehicular, cycle and pedestrian access and parking facilities including internal estate
road layout and junctions.

- Integrated foul, surface and ground water drainage infrastructure.

Prior to the commencement of each phase of development, including demolition works, a
Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) shall be submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority for that phase. Construction/demolition in each phase
shall not be carried out otherwise than in accordance with the approved CEMP unless
amendments have been agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The CEMP shall
include the following details:-

a) Measures for construction/site traffic management to include the access, parking,
turning, loading and unloading of all vehicles using the construction site.
b) Measures for construction/site management to include the access, parking, turning,

loading and unloading of all vehicles using neighbouring sites via any shared access.
C) Piling techniques if necessary

d) Storage of plant and machinery

e) Provision of site security to include hoarding and lighting

f) Protection of trees, hedgerows and other natural features

0) Proposed means of dust suppression and noise mitigation

h) Measures to deal with any mud from vehicles on shared access roads or on nearby

County roads during construction

Page 184



i) All construction/demolition working and operational times
)] Details of the outside storage of spoil or other excavated material including location
and height of storage.

Ecology

5.

Prior to the commencement of each phase of development, including demolition, an
Ecological Management Plan (EMP) setting out the ecological mitigation, enhancement and
management measures required for that phase of development shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved EMP shall be followed in
full unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and shall include
details of the following:-

- Bats - full details of Reasonable Avoidance Measures, mitigation, lighting specifications
- Birds - full details of Reasonable Avoidance Measures, mitigation and enhancement
- Plants - details of translocation and future management of Pyramidal Orchids.

Landscaping / Open Space

6.

Prior to the occupation of any buildings within the development details of a comprehensive
scheme of hard and soft landscaping for the site shall be submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. Only those details subsequently approved shall be
implemented thereafter and they shall include the following:-

a) All existing trees, hedgerows and other vegetation to be retained with measures for
their protection during the course of the development;

b) Proposed new trees, hedgerows, shrubs or vegetation within the site (including formal
areas of open space) with confirmation of species, numbers, heights, location and timing of
planting;

C) Proposed materials and colour finishes to be used on driveways, paths or other hard
surfaced areas;

d) Proposed earthworks, grading and mounding of land including details of level
changes, final contours and relationships between such areas and surrounding landform;

e) Proposed positions, design, materials and type of boundary treatments on the
development site and its perimeter.

All planting, seeding, turfing, fencing, walling or other treatment comprised in the approved
details of landscaping as set out in condition 6 shall be carried out in the first planting and
seeding seasons following the completion of each agreed phase of the development and any
trees or plants which, within a period of five years of the development, die, are removed or
become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with
others of similar size and species.

Heritage / Conversation

8.

PRE-COMMENCEMENT CONDITION

Prior to development commencing (including any demolition) a photographic survey and
written schedule of all architectural details to the Infirmary and former Nurses Home /Isolation
Unit shall be undertaken/produced. The resulting photographs and survey should be
deposited with the National Monuments Record of Wales, operated by The Royal
Commission on the Ancient and Historical Monuments of Wales, National Monuments Record
of Wales, Plas Crug, Aberystwyth, SY23 1NJ Tel: +44(0)1970 621200,
nmr.wales@rcahmw.gov.uk.

Prior to their application, details/samples of the proposed materials and colour finishes to be
used on the walls, roofs, windows, doors, residential paths and boundary treatments on the
site shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Those
details shall include stonework, slates, coping stones, bargeboards, fascias, pointing and
painting and only those details subsequently agreed shall be applied and maintained

Page 185



10.

thereafter.

Any existing external openings to be blocked up as part of the proposed demolition works and
/ or existing walls / stonework to be restored in accordance with the approved plans shall be
carried out with materials that match those used on the existing walls of which they form part,
in texture, type, colour, mortar and pointing unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local
planning authority.

Highways / Parking

11.

For the avoidance of doubt and in accordance with condition no.3 of this permission full
details of the layout, design, construction, means of traffic calming, street lighting, signing and
drainage of the internal estate roads, pedestrian links and turning areas on the development
site shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the
commencement of the residential phases of the development. Those details subsequently
approved shall be implemented in full thereafter.

Drainage

12.

No development shall be permitted to commence on any of the residential units hereby
permitted until a scheme for the comprehensive and integrated drainage of the site showing
how foul, surface water and land drainage will be dealt with has been submitted by the
developer and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Only those details and
management arrangements agreed shall be implemented thereafter.

The reason(s) for the condition(s) is(are):-

10.
11.
12.

To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.
To ensure that development proceeds in a safe and satisfactory manner and to ensure the
restoration and re-use of historic buildings.

To ensure adequate amenity is provided to the occupants of any buildings on the site.

In the interests of highways safety, visual and residential amenity and to ensure the site is
developed in a safe and satisfactory manner.

In the interests of the favourable conservation of relevant species.

To ensure, in the interests of visual and residential amenity, that a satisfactory standard of
landscaping is provided throughout the development site.

To ensure in the interests of visual and residential amenity a satisfactory standard of
landscaping is provided throughout the development site.

In the interests of recording the historic environment.

In the interest of visual amenity and the character and appearance of the historic buildings.
In the interests of visual amenity and the character and appearance of the historic buildings.
In the interests of highway safety.

To ensure that effective drainage facilities are provided for the proposed development and
that no adverse impact occurs to the environment of the existing public sewerage system.

Page 186



Agenda Iltem 6
PLANNING COMMITTEE

AGENDA ITEM NO.6

REPORT BY THE HEAD OF PLANNING AND PUBLIC PROTECTION

RECONSIDERATION OF PLANNING APPLICATION

DEVELOPMENT OF 0.09HA OF LAND BY THE ERECTION OF A DWELLING (OUTLINE APPLICATION

11

2.1

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

- ALL MATTERS RESERVED)
FORMER COACH PARK GRAIGFECHAN RUTHIN

APPLICATION NO. 45/2013/1545/PO

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To seek the resolution of Planning Committee on a planning application considered at Committee
on 16™ April, 2014.

The report will provide Members with the relevant background information and the reason why
Officers are presenting the application to Committee for reconsideration.

BACKGROUND

The planning application for the erection of a dwelling on land outside the development boundary of
Graigfechan village was recommended for refusal by Officers, having regard to the specific
circumstances of the case, relevant Local Development Plan policies and Guidance, and to
representations received.

A copy of the Officer report to the April Committee is attached as Appendix 1 to this item. The report
recommended refusal on two grounds, these being that the need for the dwelling had not been
demonstrated, and the unacceptable loss of the parking area for the garage business opposite.

There was lengthy debate at Planning Committee on the item. The applicant spoke in favour of the
grant of permission. Members expressed general support for the aspirations of the applicant as a
local businessman with family links to the village. Officers drew Members attention to the basis of
current Development Plan policies and Supplementary Guidance on development proposals outside
settlement boundaries, and in particular the ‘eligibility tests’ for affordable housing, questioning
whether the information provided demonstrated the tests were met to justify the grant of permission.

A proposition was made and seconded to GRANT planning permission, and the majority vote of
Committee was in favour of granting permission. The resolution as minuted was subject to :

“..Officers seeking additional information from the applicant on Affordable need / eligibility, the willingness to
complete a Section 106 Obligation to tie the occupation of the dwelling to those in affordable need; and
alternatively to agree to a condition or legal agreement to tie occupation of the dwelling to persons involved
with the running of the garage business opposite. The application to be referred back to Committee for
reconsideration if the additional information indicates no affordable need case and there is no willingness to
accept the suggested ties to those in affordable need and / or linked to the garage business.”

Page 187



3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

DEVELOPMENTS SINCE THE APRIL PLANNING COMMITTEE

Following the deliberations at Committee, the applicants were formally advised of the basis of the
resolution and were requested to furnish information to assist the progression of the application.

The applicant duly sought an appraisal of the affordable housing need case from Grwp Cynefin,
who in turn confirmed that the applicants were eligible for affordable housing and met the relevant
‘local connections’ test. The applicant also provided additional information in relation to the
proposed parking arrangements, to demonstrate provision could be made for the parking of vehicles
associated with the repair garage across the road and for the occupants of the proposed dwelling.

To move matters forwards, Officers then sought to negotiate with the applicants regarding the
controls to be attached to any permission on the occupancy of the proposed dwelling and over its
future sale price, to ensure it would be retained as an affordable dwelling for local needs in
perpetuity, all in line with adopted local and national planning policies.

The applicants have indicated willingness to accept an occupancy condition on any permission,
restricting the occupation of the dwelling to those that meet the Supplementary Guidance definition
of ‘local needs affordable housing’. However, it has not been possible to reach an agreement as to
how the future price of the affordable dwelling is to be calculated, which is considered an important
component part of any consent, as the principle behind the affordable housing restriction is that the
price for subsequent occupiers has to meet with the definition of ‘affordability’.

Officers have followed the stance taken in the drafting of other Section 106 Obligations in respect of
setting the maximum future price of the dwelling in accordance with the Supplementary Planning
Guidance Note on Affordable Housing. This method is based on multiplying the median household
income for the area by a factor of 3.3, and then controlling the maximum price through applying a
percentage of that total figure depending on the dwelling type. For a 1 bed dwelling the maximum
price as a % of the affordable value would be 80%, and for a 4 bed dwelling this would be 110%.
The median income in Graigfechan is £28,584, and by applying this to a 4 bedroom dwelling would
currently translate to the sale value of the dwelling being capped at £103,759.92. Appendix 2 is an
extract from the SPG and sets out the mechanism for the calculation of the maximum price.

The applicants view is that the above mentioned approach is unrealistic as the dwelling would cost
them approximately £130,000 to build, meaning the dwelling would be valued at £25,000 below the
build cost on first occupation. They have suggested the discount to be applied should be 70% - 80%
of the open market value (representing a 20% - 30% reduction). Estimated figures provided by the
applicant indicate that a 4 bedroom bungalow in Graigfechan could be worth about £300,000 on the
open market, hence a reduction of 20% - 30% would result in a sale price between £210,000 and
£240,000.

In respecting the position of the applicants, based on their own figures of a sale price of between
£210,000 and £240,000, this would clearly not be ‘affordable for local needs’ given the value
calculated on the median household income for the community of £28,584. As the whole basis of
the decision to grant permission for a dwelling in a location outside a development boundary is an
exception to normal planning policies, and may be justified by providing a benefit for the community
in the long term by retaining an affordable dwelling for local needs in perpetuity, this benefit would
not be delivered if the applicant’s suggested discount were to be accepted. The Legal Officer has
advised that all Section 106 Obligations setting out the criteria for establishing future sales prices of
affordable dwellings are based on the SPG in place at the time of completing such agreements.

The ‘alternative’ option referred to by Planning Committee of linking the dwelling to the applicant’s
motor repair business, which it has been stated is run from the old bus garage building opposite,

Pager188



has also been explored. In line with national planning policy and guidance on Rural Enterprise
dwellings, Officers have sought details of the business from the applicant, so that Committee can be
informed on the ‘need’ case for a dwelling to assist with the operation of that business. This would
normally be in the form of a viability assessment indicating the financial standing of a business and
supporting information on the need for a dwelling in close proximity. No information has been
submitted in response to this approach. Notwithstanding this, even if it were established that there
was a viable business involved, and a case was made for a dwelling in close proximity, the
guidance in national policy is for Local Planning Authorities to impose a secondary safeguard to
retain any dwelling as affordable if the situation arose that the business failed.

3.9 In relation to the extent of parking which may be available to the dwelling and any business run from
the garage building opposite, Officers accept that the additional information provided demonstrates
it would be feasible to provide a level of parking sufficient to address the previous objection on this
ground.

4, CONCLUSIONS

4.1 The resolution of the April Planning Committee was to grant permission subject to clarification of the
affordable need / eligibility case and the willingness of the applicants to accept the relevant ties on
any permission to those in affordable need and / or ties to the garage business.

4.2 Grwp Cyefin have concluded the applicants are eligible for affordable housing and meet the ‘local
connections’ tests for eligibility. The applicants are willing to accept a planning condition restricting
occupancy of the dwelling to local needs affordable housing. However, it has not been possible to
agree terms for the mechanism for discounting the price of the dwelling for the next occupiers, to
meet the Council’s Supplementary Guidance definition of ‘affordability’, which Officers believe is
fundamental to the grant of permission in the circumstances.

4.3 Having due regard to the above, Officers consider this is a case where the reasonable aspirations
of Members to grant planning permission on the basis of providing a local needs affordable dwelling
would not be delivered given the applicants refusal to enter into an agreement that would limit the
future sale price of the dwelling to what would be affordable as defined in the Council's Affordable
Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance.

5. RECOMMENDATION

5.1 Taking the above into account, and in acknowledging the previous resolution of the Committee, it is
recommended that Planning Committee adopt the original recommendation of the Planning Officer
and REFUSE planning permission for the development, without the suggested reason for refusal
which related to highway impact.

The revised reason for refusal being recommended is:

1. The proposal involves the erection of a dwelling on a site which is located outside the development
boundary of Graigfechan village as defined in the Denbighshire Local Development Plan. Local and
National policy and guidance advises that in such locations residential development must be strictly
controlled and may only be permitted where it is demonstrated that there is an essential need for the
development for either local affordable housing needs purposes or to support a rural enterprise, and where
such need is established, there is a suitable mechanism in place for retaining the dwelling in perpetuity for
those purposes. It is the opinion of the Local Planning Authority that there is no case presented to
demonstrate the need for a rural enterprise dwelling, and that whilst the applicants may meet the Council’s
affordable housing need and local connections tests, in the absence of agreement on the mechanism to

Page 189



ensure the future sale price of the dwelling meets the Council’s definition of affordability, the development
is not in accordance with Denbighshire Local Development Plan Policies BSC 4 Affordable Housing, BSC 8
Rural Exceptions Sites, Planning Policy Wales 7, and Technical Advice Note 6 Planning for Sustainable
Rural Communities.

Attached are :
APPENDIX 1 — Officer report to April 2014 Planning Committee

APPENDIX 2 — Supplementary Planning Guidance methodology for calculating the sale price of an
affordable dwelling

GRAHAM H. BOASE
HEAD OF PLANNING & PUBLIC PROTECTION

Page: 190



Appendix 1 - Oftticer

Denbighshire LL16 3RJ

Tel: 01824 706800 Fax. 01824 706709

Repoﬂ
Committee April 2014
EIREOR Headi;:!Zm 3/1545
SH D(_bn b_)/ (Sh Former Coach Park
Denbighshire Graigfechan
v COUNTY COUNCIL
Graham Boase Applicalion Site N
Head of Planning & Public Prolection \
Denbighshire County Council Date 3/4/2014 Scale 1/2500
Caledfryn Centre = 314977 E 354043 N
Smithfield Road
Denbigh

This plan is intended solely to give an indiction of the LOCATION of
the application site which forms the subject of the accompanying report
It does not form any part of the application documenis, and should not

be taken as representative of the proposals to be considered, which are
available for inspection prior to the meeting

\Je D28 AR

ol N

Tyddyn Leha

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey materlal with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Cantrolier of Her Majesty's Stationery
& Crown copynght Unauthorized repraducton infringas Crown copytight and may lead 15 prosstution of tivil procesdings. D

Office.
enbighshire County Council 100023408, 2011
élwnhyrﬂur ¥ map hwn o ddaunydd yr Ominanca Survey gyda chaniatad yr Ordnance Survey ar ran Rhaohwr Liyirfa Ei Mawrhydi
awll

Y
fraint y Goron Mae atgynhyrchu heb ganiatad yn tomi hawlfraint y Goron a gall hyn arwain at eryniad neu achos sifil. Cynger Sir Ddinbych. 100023408 2011

Page-191

e

et e

to


jude5019
Typewritten Text
Appendix 1 - Officer Report to 
Committee April 2014


CYsGon
%Sir Ddinbych Mapiau cynigion - CDLI
@« Denbighshire Proposals maps - LDP

COUNTY CouML

emuuun oaTavcu oL sm oY MAP 20B - PENTREF GRAIGFECHAN VILLAGE

DENBIGHSHIRE LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN
2008 - 2021

1 r I i -

~ LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN

DEVELOPMENT ROUNDARY fOR -
GRAMGFECHAN VILLAGE

DEVELOPMENT
BOUNDARY

t 314500

Graddfa/Scale 1:5000 © Hawlfraint y Goron a hawllau cronfa ddata 2012 Arolwg Ordnans 100023408,
| | | | | © Crown copyiight and database tights 2012 Ordnance Survey 100023408,
0 50 100 150 200 G/N

Medrau/Metres




20/2MM3 /1545/PO0

RLceSS TO CRNG FECHAN
GROWING CLup,

(MATVREe ) TR EE 5

COMPACTED HARDCORE

=
2

™ |
s 2
B N L
; o 5D
= 7 ] ((\\
< B .
O =\ §
' H w
_ | e
. & zZ
D| «
=
&
WA P-?) g

OFFIcE J ::__&_‘,z;.,f.-————-‘J

0 2 4 é £ t'o
M&ZTRES

EXISTING CORCH YARD
GRAIGFECHAN
arr Wil To Roqaes OIsi)

jeleSgee Sire MAP [BxisTING )



20/20M3 /1543/P0

ACeSS 1D CoMG FechAN
GhowinG CLvp, —n

(MATVRETR FE 5

RETRINED HARDCORE

PORKIN AREA Revoced
Access
wibTH
T = (o
FENCE g
m -
o Pl &
y 2. GARDEN §
£ TARMAG S
3 A A
=~
& uTitit'
S <&
qﬂfbéw Kirat & :
Aken ... Pote H N
> | €12
' ) g b|x
RAMP_p. |EVTAN C& p _:.'
\ E
VE4£TABL

PAT1cy

(NEW) HEDGINT

PRoOPoSED ax-concH PBRK DEVZLOPMENT
GRAIGFECHAN

AT, N6 1o Roceas OIs1l;
Page 194 sz mal (PRo oseb)




ITEM NO:

WARD NO:

WARD MEMBER(S):

APPLICATION NO:
PROPOSAL:
LOCATION:
APPLICANT:
CONSTRAINTS:

PUBLICITY
UNDERTAKEN:

Paul Griffin
2

Llanfair Dyffryn Clwyd / Gwyddelwern

Councillor H H Evans

20/2013/1545/ PO

Development of 0.09ha of land by the erection of a dwelling
(outline application - all matters reserved)

Former Coach Park Graigfechan Ruthin

Mr Kevin Rogers Rogers Mechanics

AONB

Site Notice - YesPress Notice - YesNeighbour letters - Yes

REASON(S) APPLICATION REPORTED TO COMMITTEE:

Scheme of Delegation Part 2

e Member request for referral to Committee

CONSULTATION RESPONSES:
LLANFAIR DYFFRYN CLWYD COMMUNITY COUNCIL:
“My members considered this application very carefully. They fully supported the application in
principle. They also considered the implications of the LDP on the local business which has
already been established and would in future provide employment.”

CLWYDIAN RANGE AND DEE VALLEY AREA OF OUTSTANDING NATURAL BEAUTY
JOINT ADVISORY COMMITTEE:

“The JAC notes that this site is outside the LDP Settlement Boundary for Graigfechan. Given
that the former garage building is very close to the village, where it might be expected that
opportunities exist for alternative accommeodation to serve the proposed business, the JAC
would emphasise the need for a particularly strong case to justify an additional new rural
enterprise dwelling on this site. It is also noted that no such justification appears to have been

submitted with the application, which would make the development contrary to planning policy.

Although not in the ownership of the applicant, the JAC would suggest that the modestly sized

triangular site which immediately adjoins the garage and is within the Development Boundary is

a preferable location for @ modestly sized dwelling which is well related to the proposed new

business.”

NATURAL RESOURCES WALES:

No objections

DWR CYMRU / WELSH WATER:

No objections

Page 195



DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL CONSULTEES -
Head of Highways and Infrastructure

- Highways Officer

No objections

RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY:
None received
EXPIRY DATE OF APPLICATION:

REASONS FOR DELAY IN DECISION {where applicable):

° additional information required from applicant
. re-consultations / further publicity necessary on amended plans and / or additional
information

PLANNING ASSESSMENT:
1. THE PROPOSAL;
1.1 Summary of proposals
1.1.1  Outline planning permission is sought for the erection of a single dwelling on land
outside the development boundary of Graigfechan village. All details are reserved for
later consideration, should the principle of development be found to be acceptable.

1.1.2 As part of the submission, the applicant has put forward information to support the
grant of permission.

1.1.3 The applicant makes the case that since ‘Rogers Coaches’ ceased trading, he has
utilised the workshop on land across the road to run a new business, 'Rogers
Mechanics’. He advised this use does not require the former coach park, (the
application site), and it is submitted that the proposal would develop this otherwise
unsightly and disused piece of land. It is stated the site would also afford additional
security for the mechanics business, and help to develop the business further.

1.1.4 The applicant indicates that the dwelling would be affordable for himself and would
help to accommodate his growing family; stating that premises larger than his current
house are beyond his means. The applicant's current address is given as Haulfryn in
Ruthin.

1.2 Description of site and surroundings
1.2.1 The site is located at the southern end of Graigfechan village fronting the minor road
running towards Llanarmon yn lal, outside the village development boundary as
defined in the Local Development Plan.

1.2.2 The site was formerly used as a coach park for the business ‘Rogers Coaches'. Itis a
flat area of approximately 30 metres by 35 metres with a compacted hardcore
surface.

1.2.3 There is an existing dwelling, Smithy Cottage to the north west of the site boundary.

1.3 Relevant planning constraints/considerations
1.3.1 The site is gutside the defined development boundary of Graigfechan and within the
Clwydian Range and Dee Valley Area of Qutstanding Natural Beauty. The village
development boundary, as approved as part of the Local Development Plan in June
2013, is shown on the plan at the front of the report.

Page 196



1.4 Relevant planning history
1.4.1 The site was granted planning permission in 1992 (at Planning Committee) for use as

a parking and turning space for public service vehicles, to support the bus business
using the large building on the opposite side of the road. This business has ceased
operating at the site.

1.5 Developments/changes since the original submission
1.5.1 Following an initial objection to the proposal from Natural Resources Wales, the
applicant has submitted additional information relating fo the potential groundwater
poltution resulting from disturbing the ground during construction. Natural Resources
Wales have subsequently lifted the objection.

1.5.2 Additional justification for the proposal was requested from the applicant having
regard to the planning policy context set in the Local Development Plan. The
response is copied as drafted below; in relation to Policy BSC 8 of the LDP:

“i} No likely sites are to be available "within 5 years" as this is shorter than the life
span of the new LDP.,

i) The proposal clearly does form a logical extension to the development boundary -
this was stated in the application covering letter; emphatically we queried WHY the
coach park was not included within the revised LDP.

iif) Graigfechan is an ageing village; the lalest new-build (a monstrosity approved by
your organisation) is on the market for 400,000+ is this affordable? The village needs
young families; Mr Rogers can build the proposed dwelling for the price of the existing
cramped home in Ruthin. This would be progress!!

iv) The proposal has already been demonsirated (in the Design & Access Statement)
not to be an intrusive feature or create traffic/access problems.

v) No further comment is needed - see the Design & Access Statement.

vi) Mr & Mrs Rogers are not planning to build for an invesiment- their growing family
live in a two-bed house, and they want to relocate to a bigger but AFFORDABLE
home, close to where Mr Rogers wants to build up his business. This is a brown-field
site that needs improvement, why the obstacles?"

1.6 Other relevant background information
1.6.1 The application, if granted, would constitute a departure from adopted planning policy,
and has been advertised as such.

1.6.2 The application has been referred to Planning committee by Councillor Hugh Evans to
allow discussion of the planning policy issues.

DETAILS OF PLANNING HISTORY:

2.1 Turning space and parking area for public service vehicles 30/12572 - GRANTED at Planning
Committee 6™ March 1992

RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE:
The main planning policies and guidance are considered to be:
Denbighshire Local Development Plan (adopted 4" June 2013)
Policy RD1 — Sustainable development and good standard design
Policy BSC1 — Growth Strategy for Denbighshire
Policy BSC3 - Securing infrastructure contributions from Development
Policy BSC4 — Affordable Housing
Policy BSC6 — Local connections affordable housing in hamlets
Policy BSC8 — Rural exception sites
Policy BSC9 - Local connections affordable housing within small groups or clusters

Page 197



Policy BSC11 — Recreation and open space

Policy PSE 3 — Protection of Employment Land and Buildings

Policy VOE2 — Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty and Area of Outstanding Beauty
Policy ASA3 - Parking Standards

3.1 Government Policy / Guidance
Planning Policy Wales Edition 6 (February 2014)
Technical Advice Note 2 — Planning and Affordable Housing
Technical Advice Note 6 — Planning for Sustainable Rural Communities

MAIN PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS:

In terms of general guidance on matters relevant to the consideration of a planning application,
Planning Policy Wales Edition 6, February 2014 (PPW) confirms the requirement that planning
applications 'should be determined in accordance with the approved or adopted development plan
for the area, unless material considerations indicate otherwise' (Section 3.1.2). PPW advises that
material considerations must be relevant to the regulation of the development and use of land in
the public interest, and fairly and reasonably relate to the development concerned., and that these
can include the number, size, layout, design and appearance of buildings, the means of access,
landscaping, service availability and the impact on the neighbourhood and on the environment
(Sections 3.1.3 and 3.1.4).

The following paragraphs in Section 4 of the report therefore refer to the policies of the
Denbighshire Local Development Plan, and to the material planning considerations which are
considered to be of relevance to the proposal.

4.1 The main land use planning issues in relation to the application are considered to be:

Principle

Amenity Considerations/impact on AONB
Open Space

Contaminated land

Affordable Housing
Loss of employment land

RN
—\—\—I—L’-—L-ﬁ
pabwioo

4.2 In relation to the main planning considerations:
4.21 Principle
The site is located outside the development boundary for Graigfechan. Denbighshire’s
adopted Local Development Plan advises, in the preamble to Chapter 6, that
development boundaries are drawn to define clear physical limits to developed areas.
It further outlines that development within boundaries will in principle be supported,
but that the boundary exists to protect the county's landscapes and open spaces.

Planning Policy Wales also advises that development in the countryside should be
located within and adjacent to those settlements where it can best be accommodated
in terms of infrastructure, access, habitat and landscape conservation. It goes on
further stating that infilling, or mincr extensions to existing settlements may be
acceptable in particular where it meets a local need for affordable housing. This is
amplified in Technical Advice Note 2, and Technical Advice Note B, which relates
specifically to development in rural areas and supports the concept of ‘Rural
Exceptions' Policies.

In terms of the LDP, the site being considered is outside the development boundary of
the village of Graigfechan. The most relevant LDP policy is considered to be Policy
BSC 8, Rural Exceptions Sites, which supports affordable housing development as an
exception to normal policy (i.e. outside development boundaries) where the following
criteria are met:

Page 198



" j) evidence must be produced to demonstrate that allocated sites are not likely to
come forward within 5 years. The greater the need for affordable housing
demonstrated for the selilement the more likely an exception site would be permitted
ahead of an allocated site; and

i} the proposal adjoins and forms a logical extension to the development boundary
whilst avoiding ribbon and fragmented patterns of development; and

iii) evidence exists in the form of a local housing needs survey that there is a genuine
demonstrable need for such accommodation; and

iv) the proposal would not form an intrusive feature in the landscape or create Iraffic
or access problemns; and

v) the siting, layout, scale, design, density and materials of the proposal are
sympathetic and appropriate to the size and character of the settiement and also
reflect the level of local need identified; and

vi) safisfactory arrangements can be made to ensure that the dwellings are retained
as affordable housing for local needs in perpetuity”.

In relation to the tests of BSC 8.

in respect of criterion i) above, reference is made to a housing allocation in
Graigfechan (land south of the The Three Pigeons public house). The allocation was
made when the Local Development Plan was adopted in 2013, following a public
inquiry. Whilst the applicant states that there are no allocated sites likely to come
forward in 5 years, this is not supported with any evidence. The proposal does not
therefore comply with criterion i).

In reference to criterion ii), it is considered that the proposal does not form a logical
extension to the development boundary and would represent an unacceptable
extension in the form of ribbon development along the minor road leading out of the
village. The existing boundary to the south of the Smithy Cottages is considered to
be a well established boundary that should be defended for the sake of preserving the
open countryside, as per guidance in Planning Policy Wales.

Criterion iii) requires it to be demonstrated in a local housing needs survey that there
is a need for the development in that location. The applicant argues that the house
would be for himself and his family as he cannot afford a house in Graigfechan. No
other information regarding the family's eligibility for affordable housing has been put
forward. Additionally, no reference has been made to the allocated housing site in
Graigfechan and whether or not that would meet any identified affordable housing
need within the community. In Officers’ opinion, there is clear conflict with test iii) of
Policy BSC 8.

Criteria iv), v) and vi) of Policy BSC 8 are all detailed tests which can be addressed at
later stages should the principle of the proposal be accepted.

in terms of Planning Policy Wales, there is reference to supporting businesses in the
rural areas (chapter 7). Technical Advice Note 6 (section 4.3} expands upon this and
outlines the circumstances where residential development in the open countryside to
support a rural enterprise may be acceptable as a departure to normal planning
policy. Such circumstances are where it is clearly demonstrated with robust
supporting evidence that:

a. there is a clearly established existing functional need;

b. the need relates to a full-time worker, and does not relate to a part-time
requirement;

Page 199



4.2.2

c. the enterprise concerned has been established for at least three years, profitable
for at least one of them and both the enferprise and the business need for the job, is
currently financially sound, and has a clear prospect of remaining so;

d. the functional need could not be fulfilled by another dwelling or by converting an
existing suitable building already on the land holding comprising the enterprise, or any
other existing accommodation in the locality which is suitable and available for
occupation by the worker concerned; and

e. other normal planning requirements, for example sifing and access, are satisfied.

In addressing whether the proposal meets the above tests, it is Officers’ opinion that
the information submitted does not demonstrate that there is an established functional
need for a mechanic to be living on the site. There are no details of the length of time
the business has been running, or the profitability of the business, and no evidence
that any ‘perceived’ need on the applicants part could not be met by seeking suitable
housing elsewhere in the village.

With regard to the options where residential development may be permitted in the
open countryside (local affordable needs and rural enterprise dwellings) it is
considered that a case has not been made which demonstrates the proposal satisfies
any of the tests outlined above.

Whilst the site history and the former use of the site as a coach park is noted, Officers
are of the opinian that the site does not fall within the definition of 'previously
developed land’ as outlined in Planning Policy Wales, fig 4.3. The coach park was
previously allowed on the basis that it was required for the day to day parking of
coaches in association with the garage building opposite, as there was inadequate
space to accommodate activity associated with the depot. The proposal now being
considered is essentially for a private dwelling, which does not have essential
functional links to the adjacent business 'Rogers Mechanics’. In acknowledging the
arguments put forward by the applicant that to live there may ‘assist’ his business, no
robust need case has been made for a dwelling in open countryside and the
arguments in favour are matters of personal convenience rather that essential need.

In respecting the case advanced for a security presence for the mechanic’s business,
Members may appreciate that it would open an extremely wide door if it was accepted
that a dwelling was justified for security reasons next to a building in open
countryside, given the number of isolated commercial/agricultural buildings where
equally meritorious arguments could be put. The former coach business was run for
many years without a ‘security’ dwelling nearby. Itis not an unreasonable expectation
on owners of rural businesses to take appropriate measures to secure their premises
from interference.

The proposal is therefore considered to be in fundamental conflict with local and
national planning policies and guidance in refation to the principle of new dwellings
outside development boundaries.

Amenity Considerations/impact on AONB

In referring to what may be regarded as material considerations, Planning Policy
Wales 3.1.4 refers to the number, size, layout, design and appearance of buildings,
the means of access, landscaping, service availability and the impact on the
neighbourhood and on the environment. The impact of a development on visual
amenity is therefore a relevant test on planning applications. This is emphasised in
Paragraph 3.1.7, which states that proposals should be considered in terms of their
effect on the amenity and existing use of land and buildings in the public interest. As
the Courts have ruled that the individual interest is an aspect of the public interest, it
is therefore valid to consider the effect of a proposal on the amenity of neighbouring
properties.

The proposal is an outline application with all matters reserved for later consideration.
With regard to the nature and history of the site and its relationship to surrounding

Page 200



423

4.24

425

4.2.6

development and land uses, there are no concerns at this point that the site could not
be developed in a way that would not be detrimental to the general amenity of the
area, including impact upon the AONB and highways and access considerations.

Open Space

Policy BSC 3 seeks to secure, where relevant, infrastructure contributions from
development. Policy BSC 11 requires all new residential development to provide a
contribution to recreation and open space either on site, or by the provision of a
commuted sum.

The proposal is for a single dwelling. A commuted sum in the region of £2660
towards the provision of improved facilities, and the ongoing maintenance of the
recreation space in Graigfechan would be required if permission is granted.

It is considered that in this instance the provision of a commuted sum is preferable to
the option of on site provision, given that the proposal is for a single dwelling. It is
therefore considered that the proposal is in accordance with Policy BSC 3 and Policy
BSC 11, subject to a condition to agree the mechanism by which the commuted sum
would be secured.

Contaminated land

The need to consider the potential impact of contaminated land in relation to
development proposals is contained in Chapter 13 of Planning Policy Wales, which
requires planning decisions to take into account the potential hazard that
contamination presents to the development itself, its occupants and the local
environment; and assessment of investigation into contamination and remedial
measures to deal with any contamination. Where there may be contamination issues,
the Council must require details prior to determination of an application to enable the
beneficial use of land. Planning permission may be granted subject to conditions
where acceptable remedial measures can overcome such contamination. Otherwise,
if contamination can not be overcome satisfactorily, permission should be refused.

The site is a former coach park, and in response to the initial consultation NRW raised
objections on the grounds of potential contamination to the groundwater supply
caused by disturbing land which may have been polluted by oil from the coaches.
Following the submission of further information from the applicant, NRW are satisfied
that the risk is minimal and have removed their objection.

It is not considered that the proposal would have a detrimental impact upon the
ground water supply, and the proposal accords with Planning Policy Wales.

Affordable Housing

As discussed in the above paragraphs, even if the other key tests of Policy BSC 8
were satisfied, it would be necessary for the applicant to meet with criterion iii) which
requires evidence of local housing need. As there is no detailed evidence presented
to assess whether the applicants would ‘qualify’ as meeting local affordable housing
need, it is not possible for Officers to conclude the requirements of the policy would
be met.

Loss of employment land

Policy PSE 3 of the Local Development Plan seeks to retain employment premises
not specifically allocated as ‘employment sites’ on the Proposals Maps of the Plan.
The policy sets 3 tests for proposals, which will only be supported provided:

i) there are no other suitable sites available for this development;

i) and a continuous marketing process of 1 year, alongside all practical attempts
possible to retain the employment use, has demonstrated that the site or premises is
no longer capable of providing an acceptable standard of accommodation fro

Page 201



employment purposes; and

iif) the loss of the site or premises would not prejudice the ability of an area to meet a
range of local employment needs or the proposal involves the satisfactory relocation
of & non-conforming use from an unsuitable site.

There is no information in the submission which suggests the tests of PSE 3 have
been addressed.

In Officers’ opinion, the loss of the parking area in connection with the business
premises opposite poses canflicts with Policy PSE 3. The land was consented for
parking of coaches in the first place, because there was such limited external space
around the buildings that the business could not function properly. If the land is now
developed for a new dwelling, removing the parking required in connection with the
previous use, this re-creates the potential ‘problem’ for a successful business
operating in the buildings, leading to a possibility of vehicles being parked close
to/along the road when waiting to be worked on or after completion of works. Officers
believe this to be a relevant consideration in the determination of the application.

5. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS:
5.1 The application involves the erection of a new dwelling outside the development boundary of
a village, hence in planning policy terms, in open countryside.

5.2 To justify such development in terms of the Local Development Plan it would be necessary to
comply with the tests of Policy BSC8. Officers’ assessment of the applicant's submission
clearly concludes that the key tests of the policy can not be met.

5.3 In terms of Welsh Government policy and guidance in Technical Advice Note 6 in relation to
supporting businesses in rural areas, Officers’ conclusions are that the evidence submitted
does not address the key tests relating to establishing a ‘functional’ or ‘financial’ need for a
rural enterprise dwelling.

5.4 Additionally, it is considered that the development would result in the loss of a valuable
parking area for vehicles associated with the commercial use in the old garage building
opposite, leading to potential parking/congestion problems in the vicinity of the site if the
mechanics business is successful,

5.5 Officers’ conclusions are that the development is contrary to policy, and wouid represent a
clear departure from the Local Development Plan.

RECOMMENDATION: REFUSE- for the following reasons:-

1. The proposal involves the erection of a dwelling on a site which is located outside the
development boundary of Graigfechan village as defined in the Denbighshire Local
Development Plan. Local and National policy and guidance advises that in such locations
residential development must be strictly controlled and should only be permitted where it is
demonsirated that there is a clear and essential need for the development far either local
affordable housing needs purposes or to support a rural enterprise. It is the opinion of the
Local Planning Authority that it has not been demonstrated that there is an essential need for
a dwelling in this location, and that the proposal is therefore contrary to Denbighshire Local
Development Plan Policies BSC 4 Affordable Housing, BSC 8 Rural Exceptions Sites,
Planning Policy Wales 6, and Technical Advice Note 6 Planning for Sustainable Rural
Communities.

2. The development would take away an important parking area originally created to meet the
needs of the coach business operating in the building on the opposite side of the minor road.
The garage building has very limited space around it to permit the parking of staff or
customers’ vehicles and the loss of the application site for such purposes is considered in
conflict with Policy PSE 3 of the Local Development Plan, and is alse likely to lead to an

Page 202



unacceptable potential for congestion and highway dangers from the movement and parking
of vehicles in connection with the garage use, in conflict with Policy ASA3 of the Local
Development Plan which requires adequate parking spaces for development proposals.

NOTES TO APPLICANT:

None.

Page 203



This page is intentionally left blank



d)

APPENDIX 2

AFPORDABLE
HOLUSING SPG

Calculation for the value of affordable units:

This calculation is based on median household income for the local area
multiplied by 3.3. The resultant value is then discounted according to the
table below:

(Hx3.3)xP=£V
H is the median household income for the local area

P is the percentage specified in the table below
V is the value of the affordable unit.

Type of property Maximum price as a % of the affordable
value
1 bedroom 80%
2 bedroom 90%
3 bedroom 100%
4 bedroom 110%

Information relating to household incomes is provided via CACI Paycheck
data and can be provided by the Council. This figure will be updated on a
regular basis.

Example
For a 2 bedroom flat in Prestatyn Central, assuming the median household

income is £23,445 (available on request from the Council), the value would
be:

(£23,445 x 3.3) x 90% = £69,632

Page 205



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	1 APOLOGIES
	Votingupdated1212

	4 MINUTES
	5 APPLICATIONS FOR PERMISSION FOR DEVELOPMENT
	Maes Llan
	105-107 High St
	105-107 High St CA
	55 Pendre Ave
	23 Marine Drive AC
	23 Marine Drive
	Fronfraith a
	Fronfraith b
	Honeyclub
	Bronwylfa
	Bryn Gobaith
	H M Stanley

	6 FORMER COACH PARK GRAIGFECHAN
	Special report appendix 1
	Special report appendix 2




